
               
  AGENDA 

ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION
November 17, 2010

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

               
 

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

EXECUTIVE SESSION AT OR AFTER 5:00 PM
Pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(1) Personnel Matters - Setting Town Manager Goals

RESUME REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS 
COUNCIL REPORTS
DEPARTMENT REPORTS

The Mayor and Council may consider and/or take action on the items listed below:

ORDER OF BUSINESS:  MAYOR WILL REVIEW THE ORDER OF THE MEETING
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
 

a. DIS Customer Feedback Forms  
 

b. Staff Recognition Letters  
 

c. Magistrate Court Report - October 1, 2010  
 

d. Tobin Sidles Recognition Email  
 

CALL TO AUDIENCE  – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and
Town Council on any issue  not listed on today’s agenda . Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting
Law, individual Council Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be
placed on a future agenda, or respond to criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and
Council may not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to
speak during “Call to Audience” please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue
speaker card.
 

PRESENTATIONS
 

a. PRESENTATION OF PLAQUES OF APPRECIATION TO ROBERT HARRIS AND DAN
TOTH FOR THEIR SERVICE ON THE FINANCE AND BOND COMMITTEE

 

 



 

b. PRESENTATION OF ACHIEVEMENT OF EXCELLENCE IN PROCUREMENT AWARD TO
BRIAN GARRITY, PROCUREMENT ADMINISTRATOR

 

 

c. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES TO GRADUATES OF THE COMMUNITY ACADEMY
- LOCAL GOVERNANCE 101 CLASS

 

 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
(Consideration and/or possible action)

 

A. Minutes - September 22 & October 6, 2010  
 

B. Development and Infrastructure Services Department, Permitting Division - September
2010 Reports

 

 

C. Economic Development Division Quarterly Report: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010  
 

D. Fiscal Year 2010/11 Financial Update through September 2010  
 

E. Police Department - September 2010 Statistics  
 

F. Procurement Division Quarterly Report - July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010  
 

G. Metropolitan Tucson Convention and Visitors Bureau Quarterly Report: July 1, 2010 -
September 30, 2010

 

 

H. Public Safety Providers Quarterly Report to Council - July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010  
 

I. Resolution No. (R)10 - 79  Authorizing and Approving an Amendment to
the Intergovernmental Master Agreement between Pima County and the Town of Oro
Valley for Joint Use of Facility Space

 

 

J. Resolution No. (R)10 - 80  Authorizing and Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement
Between the Governor’s Office of Economic Recovery and the Town of Oro Valley Under
the Public Safety Stabilization Program

 

 

K. Resolution No. (R)10 - 81  Amending Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and
Procedures Manual to rescind Policy 25, Advisory Board For Oro Valley Employees
(ABOVE) and Policy 27, Annual Employee Forum; replacing with an Administrative Directive
to accomplish those policies and more

 

 

L. Approval of 2011 Regular Town Council Meeting Schedule  
 

M. OV1203-31F  Request for a final plat amendment to remove a requirement regarding
rooftop, mechanical equipment screening for the Mercado at Canada Hills, located near the
northeast corner of La Canada Drive and Lambert Lane, directly north of the Fry's Food
Store

 

 

N. Reappointment of Mr. C. Kent Russell to the Municipal Property Corporation Board of
Directors with term effective through December 31, 2013

 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE NO. (O)10 - 14  AMENDING ORO VALLEY TOWN  



2. PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE NO. (O)10 - 14  AMENDING ORO VALLEY TOWN
CODE, CHAPTER 15, WATER CODE, ARTICLE 24, STORMWATER, SUBSECTION
15-24-13(K), REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, AND RULES OF THE
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; PRESERVING THE RIGHTS AND
DUTIES THAT HAVE ALREADY MATURED AND PROCEEDINGS THAT HAVE ALREADY
BEGUN THEREUNDER.

 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING - RESOLUTION NO. (R)10 - 82    AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING
INCREASES IN WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE TOWN OF ORO
VALLEY WATER UTILITY

 

 

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING RESOLUTION NO. (R) 07-55, THE
TOWN'S FORMAL POSITION ON DEVELOPMENT OF PROPOSED ROSEMONT MINE
IN THE SANTA RITA MOUNTAINS

 

 

5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE PUBLIC ART 1% IN-LIEU
OPTION

 

 

6. DISCUSSION REGARDING SIGN CODE TASK FORCE RECOMMENDATIONS
RELATED TO TEMPORARY SIGNS

 

 

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  (The Council may bring forth general topics for future meeting
agendas. Council may not discuss, deliberate or take any action on the topics presented
pursuant to ARS 38-431.02H)

 

CALL TO AUDIENCE – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and Town
Council on any issue  not listed on today’s agenda. Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting Law,
individual Council Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be placed on a
future agenda, or respond to criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and Council may not
discuss or take legal action on matters raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to speak during “Call to
Audience” please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue speaker card.
ADJOURNMENT

POSTED: 11/05/10  
                3:00 p.m.
                tg

When possible, a packet of agenda materials as listed above is available for public inspection at least 24
hours prior to the Council meeting in the office of the Town Clerk between the hours of 8:00 a.m. –
5:00p.m.

The Town of Oro Valley complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If any person with a
disability needs any type of accommodation, please notify the Town Clerk’s Office at least five days prior
to the Council meeting at 229-4700.

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO SPEAKERS

Members of the public have the right to speak during any posted public hearing. However, those
items not listed as a public hearing are for consideration and action by the Town Council during
the course of their business meeting. Members of the public may be allowed to speak on these
topics at the discretion of the Chair.

If you wish to address the Town Council on any item(s) on this agenda, please complete a speaker card



located on the Agenda table at the back of the room and give it to the Town Clerk. Please indicate on
the speaker card which item number and topic you wish to speak on, or if you wish to speak
during “Call to Audience”, please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue
speaker card.

Please step forward to the podium when the Mayor announces the item(s) on the agenda which you are
interested in addressing.

1. For the record, please state your name and whether or not you are a Town resident.
2. Speak only on the issue currently being discussed by Council. Please organize your speech, you will
only be allowed to address the Council once regarding the topic being discussed.
3. Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.
4. During “Call to Audience” you may address the Council on any issue you wish.
5. Any member of the public speaking must speak in a courteous and respectful manner to those present.

Thank you for your cooperation.



    Item #:  a.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  

Submitted By: Arinda Asper, Town Manager's Office

Information
Subject
DIS Customer Feedback Forms

Attachments
Link: DIS Customer Feedback Forms











    Item #:  b.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  

Submitted By: Arinda Asper, Town Manager's Office

Information
Subject
Staff Recognition Letters

Attachments
Link: Staff Recognition Letters







    Item #:  c.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Magistrate Court Report - October 1, 2010

Information
Subject
Magistrate Court Report - October 1, 2010

Summary

Discussion

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Link: Magistrate Court Report
Link: Case Filings



                     

Memorandum 

  
To:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:  George A. Dunscomb, Town Magistrate 

 CC:  Jerene Watson, Town Manager; Daniel Sharp, Chief of Police 

SUBJ:  Magistrate Court Report 

Date:  10.13.2010 

 
The Numbers 
The total number of filings in September was 569, with 536 citations, 8 Orders of Protection, 
5 injunctions against Harassment, and 23 DUI’s.  
 
A jury trial is scheduled for October 28th and 29th.  
 
Fire Lane Parking Violation Issue  
 
In January 2007, the Town Council repealed and replaced the limited version of a fire code 
previously in the Town Code with the International Fire Code, a comprehensive 480-page 
document. This change also included the repeal of an ordinance prohibiting parking in “fire 
lanes.” Due to the complexity of the newly adopted fire code and limitations on staff time at 
the Court, the Police Department and the Legal Department, citations continued to be 
written and fines were collected for fire lane parking violations. Now that information 
regarding the code changes has been conveyed to all departments we will be refunding 
those fines. The total collected was about $2700, and we will be able to get back about 
$1000 paid to the State as surcharges. I will be glad to discuss this further if you wish. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
  

Oro Valley Case Filings 2010 - 2011 
 



ORO VALLEY MAGISTRATE COURT CASE FILINGS

FY 2010 - 2011

JULY 27 853 10 2 892 5 627 4 4 640

AUG 27 603 14 7 651 21 658 15 4 698

SEPT 35 537 4 6 582 23 536 8 2 569

OCT 27 657 4 3 691 0

NOV 17 570 7 7 601 0

DEC 31 543 7 9 590 0

JAN 37 762 7 2 808 0

FEB 20 650 2 5 677 0

MAR 33 636 5 12 686 0

APR 29 423 5 5 462 0

MAY 16 488 8 2 514 0

JUN 27 647 9 5 688 0

TOTAL 326 7369 82 65 7842 49 1821 27 10 1907

2009-2010 2010-2011

DUIMONTH
OTHER 

CITATIONS
OOP IAH TOTAL DUI

OTHER 

CITATIONS
OOP IAH TOTAL



    Item #:  d.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  

Submitted By: Rachel Mooney, Legal

Information
Subject
Tobin Sidles Recognition Email

Attachments
Link: Tobin Sidles Recognition Email



From: Janet  
Sent: Tuesday, October 26, 2010 7:48 AM 
To: Sidles, Tobin 
Subject: Dogs off leashes 
 
Thank you for talking with us a couple of weeks ago.  I wanted you to know, the HOA 
has put up a very "official" looking sign at the entrance to the open property west of us, 
posting the PC leash information, up to and including picking up after the little critters.  I 
greatly appreciate your support in the matter.   
  
Everyone from the person answering the phone, to office personnel and the police 
officers, have always been pleasant and helpful to me, no matter what the situation.  The 
OVPD most especially with regard to the open acreage out back.  I only see what I see 
when I am walking my pets, there are signs of all kinds of activity back there, however, I 
am sure it is in the dark of night.   
  
I am one old lady who feels safe here.   Again, thank you for your help.   
  
  
  
Janet Hefferan 
8263 N. Oracle Rd # 35 
 



    Item #:  a.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Kathryn Cuvelier, Town

Clerk
Submitted By: Kathryn Cuvelier, Town

Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
PRESENTATION OF PLAQUES OF APPRECIATION TO ROBERT HARRIS AND DAN TOTH FOR
THEIR SERVICE ON THE FINANCE AND BOND COMMITTEE

SUMMARY:
Robert Harris served on the Finance and Bond Committee from February 2007 to October 2010.  He will
receive a Plaque of Appreciation for volunteering his time to serve on the Finance and Bond Committee. 
Dan Toth served on the Finance and Bond Committee from July 2007 to October 2010. He will receive a
Plaque of Appreciation for volunteering his time to serve on the Finance and Bond Committee.

DISCUSSION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A.

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
N/A.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This is a presentation.

Attachments
Link: Dan Toth
Link: Bob Harris







    Item #:  b.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Stacey Lemos, Interim Assistant Town Manager
Submitted By: Stacey Lemos, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
PRESENTATION OF ACHIEVEMENT OF EXCELLENCE IN PROCUREMENT AWARD TO BRIAN
GARRITY, PROCUREMENT ADMINISTRATOR

SUMMARY:
For the third year in a row, Oro Valley's Procurement Division has received national recognition.  The
National Purchasing Institute has honored the Town and its Procurement Administrator, Brian
Garrity, with its 15th annual Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award (AEP Award).

DISCUSSION:
The AEP Award program is sponsored by every major public procurement association in the country and
is recognized as a benchmark of excellence in the profession.  This award is earned by those
organizations that demonstrate excellence by obtaining a high rating score on extensive criteria
designed to measure innovation, professionalism, productivity, e-procurement and leadership attributes
of the procurement organization.  The Town would like to recognize Mr. Garrity's leadership in his field
by making a presentation of the award this evening.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This is a presentation.



    Item #:  c.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Matt Michels, Senior Planner Submitted By: Matt Michels,

Development
Infrastructure
Services

Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES TO GRADUATES OF THE COMMUNITY ACADEMY - LOCAL
GOVERNANCE 101 CLASS

SUMMARY:
The Town of Oro Valley is pleased to recognize the graduates of the Town's inaugural Community
Academy-Local Governance 101 class.

The classes covered a variety of topics, including:

Town History, Organization, Staff’s Role 
Local Government & the Law 
The General Plan & Strategic Plan 
Sustainability and Smart Growth 
How to Make Your Voice Heard 
Roles & Duties of Board/Commission Members & How Meetings are Run

DISCUSSION:
The Community Academy provides residents with an opportunity to learn more about their community,
including classes on Town organization, sustainability, and the role of citizens in the planning process.  It
serves to inform, educate, and engage residents to be active participants in building and sustaining their
community.  Members of the graduating class are listed in Attachment A.

Specialized Community Academy classes for appointed Board and Commission members are
tentatively scheduled to begin in the Spring.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This is for presentation only.

Attachments
Link: Attachment A - Graduate List



Community Academy-Local Governance 101  
Fall 2010 Graduates 
 
Roger Angeloni 
Donald Bristow 
Anne Campbell 
Karen Chatterton 
Jeremy Christopher 
Rick Davis 
Ellen Kuhse 
Gail Munden 
John Pledl 
Valerie Pullara 
John Scheuring 
Kathryn Sinnott 
Ronald Todd 
Dana Whitson 
Wendy Wise 
 



    Item #:  1. A.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  

Submitted By: Kathryn Cuvelier, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Minutes - September 22 & October 6, 2010

SUMMARY:

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Attachments
Link: 9 22 10 Minutes
Link: 10 06 10 Minutes



MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL  

STUDY SESSION  
September 22, 2010  

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
11000 N. LA CANADA DRIVE  

   
STUDY SESSION  
 
CALL TO ORDER - At 6:02 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT:  Satish Hiremath, Mayor  

Bill Garner, Vice Mayor (via telephone) 
Barry Gillaspie, Councilmember  
Joe Hornat, Councilmember  
Mary Snider, Councilmember  
Steve Solomon, Councilmember  
Lou Waters, Councilmember  

 
Mayor Hiremath acknowledged Councilmember Snider’s birthday.  
 
Mayor Hiremath stated that item number three (3) will be discussed first since the 
presenter is in Town from Phoenix. 
 
3. Discussion regarding the assessment of options for insurance to 

augment Risk Retention Pool Coverage 
 
Safety/Risk Manager Bob Easton gave a brief overview of the Town’s current 
insurance coverage. 
 
-Current coverage is more than adequate 
-No need to augment or broaden coverage at this time 
-Deductibles have been increased which have saved a fairly significant amount 
on premium costs 
 
The Town’s current limit for any single claim is $2,000,000 and if that limit would 
be exceeded, the $10,000,000 excess limit would cover any overage. 
 
The auto policy consists of a $2,500 deductible for at fault claims.  Boiler and 
machinery (equipment breakdowns) have a $1,000 deductible.  Inland marine 
(misc. equipment) has a $500 deductible and municipal liability (negligent 
actions) has a $100,000 deductible.     

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79162
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79164
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79166
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79166


09/22/10                             Minutes, Town Council Study Session  2

Mr. Ed Bantel from Southwest Risk Services explained the Town’s land use 
lawsuits coverage. 
-$2,000,000 limit 
-Free consultation regarding land use issues 
-No deductible: Town pays 20% of the claim and AMRRP pays 80%.  However, 
the Town remains responsible for the following: 
     -The time and cost of collecting and providing copies of documents 
     -The time and cost of staff interviews or depositions 
     -The loss of staff productivity while they spend time at a court trial 
     -20% of the legal fees, costs and plaintiffs damages 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the claims process and general events that are 
covered by the Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool (AMRRP). 
 
Town Attorney Tobin Rosen stated that unlike a traditional insurance 
agency, AMRRP works with the town to determine ways to bring certain claims 
into coverage instead of trying to exclude claims.    
 
Mr. Ed Bantel said that when calculating premiums, the AMRRP looks at the loss 
ratio (The amount of money AMRRP pays out to a Town/City as opposed to the 
amount of money collected by AMRRP from the Town/City).  Those members 
that have a lower loss ratio have lower premiums and those with higher loss 
ratios have higher premiums.  
 
1. Presentation and Status Report Regarding Golder Ranch Fire District 

(GRFD) Annexations  
 
Assistant to the Town Manager Kevin Burke gave an overview of the Golder 
Ranch Fire District annexation efforts. 
-Town Council approved an Ordinance in 1995 which allowed Golder Ranch 
Fire District to extend its boundaries by annexing property within the jurisdiction 
of the Town 
-Starting in 2006, Golder Ranch Fire District began a phased annexation process 
to bring property within the Town boundaries as well as adjacent property in 
unincorporated Pima County, into the Golder Ranch Fire District boundaries 
-First two annexation phases have been successfully completed 
-Property owner signatures are being obtained for the third and final annexation 
phase  
 
Fire Chief Randy Karr and Division Chief John Sullivan gave an overview of the 
Golder Ranch Fire District and their annexation efforts.  
 
Division Chief John Sullivan stated that Golder Ranch Fire District is a political 
subdivision of the State and is likened to a County Fire Department. 
 
Golder Ranch Fire District: 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79174
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79174


09/22/10                             Minutes, Town Council Study Session  3

     -Governed by Arizona Revised Statutes 48-805 
     -Services 215 square miles of Pima and Pinal Counties 
     -Provides emergency medical services to over 373 square miles 
 
Division Chief John Sullivan said that the Golder Ranch Fire District focuses on 
the three P’s: Prepare, Prevent, and Protect.  The Fire District prepares by 
continually training, offering public education and outreach, emergency 
operations planning and water resource planning.  The Fire District promotes 
prevention by utilizing the Fire Code, reviewing plans, performing inspections and 
conducting investigations.  The Fire District protects by offering medical and 
ambulance transport services, motor vehicle collision assistance and 
fire services.      
 
Division Chief John Sullivan stated that the Golder Ranch Fire District also 
provides non-emergent services such as desert creature removal, home safety 
inspections, blood pressure evaluations, and fire extinguisher training. 
  
Medical and ambulance services comprise over 70% of the total call volume.  As 
of September, 2009, Golder Ranch Fire District has resumed full ambulance 
services in the Town for everything north of Hardy Road. 
 
Division Chief John Sullivan stated that health care costs in the state of Arizona 
are among the highest in the nation.  These costs include pre-hospital costs and 
hospital room costs.      
 
Division Chief John Sullivan discussed the annexation process and stated that 
the annexation process first started in 2006 when the Golder Ranch Fire District, 
Rural Metro, and the Town met and discussed standards of services.  A plan was 
created to ensure that a services delivery model was in place in order to address 
the standards that were adopted.  Essentially, a standard was required that didn’t 
have the infrastructure to support it.  Golder Ranch Fire District has since built 
additional fire stations in order to meet the adopted standards. 
 
Roughly 99.5% of the Town is already served by a fire district.   
Currently, there are 120 parcels in Oro Valley that do not pay taxes for 
emergency services and have not been transitioned in.  Golder Ranch Fire 
District would like to annex these parcels. 
 
Division Chief John Sullivan said that the annexation process is similar to the 
Town’s annexation process in that at least 50% of the property owners would 
have to support the annexation and sign a petition. 
 
Division Chief John Sullivan stated that county islands pose problems because 
there is no dedicated emergency service provider assigned to those areas which 
can then lead to delayed response times.     
 



09/22/10                             Minutes, Town Council Study Session  4

Division Chief John Sullivan stated that if an additional unit/station was created, 
emergency response times will improve.       
 
Division Chief John Sullivan said that there is opposition to the proposed 
annexation of La Cholla Airpark because some citizens are worried that their 
taxes will increase and they won’t see any increase in services. 
 
Division Chief John Sullivan clarified that the Golder Ranch Fire District is not 
legally bound to assist with calls from the non-annexed areas but each time they 
do respond, the taxpayers of Oro Valley pick up the tab.  
 
Golder Ranch Fire District - Proposed La Cholla Annexation status: 
-Total of 250 signatures needed to pass the annexation 
-Currently, 175 signatures have been collected   
 
Discussion ensued between Council regarding: 
-Water pressure and infrastructure problems located at La Cholla Airpark 
-Alternative services to assist La Cholla Airpark 
-Costs associated with responding to emergencies in La Cholla Airpark 
-Fuel tanks located in La Cholla Airpark 
-Signage indicating "No Emergency Coverage" for those areas that choose not 
to be annexed 
-Legal requirements regarding the annexation process 
 
Fire Chief Randy Karr said that the main issue at hand is an equity issue.  If 
services are rendered, they should be paid for by those that use them. 
 
Fire Chief Randy Karr stated that Golder Ranch Fire District has prepared an 
extensive campaign to inform the public about the goals of the proposed La 
Cholla Airpark annexation.    
 
2. Discussion Regarding Water Rates Analysis Report 
 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta gave a brief overview of the Water Rates 
Analysis.  Mr. Saletta stated that the Water Utility staff started the water rates 
analysis in mid June.  The Water Utility Commission and the Finance 
Subcommittee met several times since the start of the analysis and on 
September 13th, the Water Utility Commission reviewed and approved the Water 
Rates Analysis Report.  
 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta reviewed: 
-Customer comments from last year’s Water Rates Analysis 
-Cost recovery of fees 
-Concern for cash balances 
-Uses of Groundwater Preservation Fee 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79187


09/22/10                             Minutes, Town Council Study Session  5

-Concern for economic situation 
-No increase in base and commodity rate for FY 10-11   
 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta discussed several water utility cost savings 
which included: 
-The reduction of outstanding debt improved the debt service coverage ratio 
-Management of water resources related to recovery wells, long term storage 
credits & extinguishment credits 
-Budget reductions in operating costs and capital projects   
 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta stated that the Water Utility has three funds 
that are separate from the general fund.  These consist of the Water Utility, 
Enterprise, and Impact Fee Funds.  These three funds are combined to calculate 
the debt service coverage ratio which is one of the main drivers of the water 
rates. 
 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta gave an overview of the current 
Enterprise Fund operating expenses, Water Utility debt, Water Utility annual debt 
service, and the AWRDIF fund projected revenue for FY 10-11.  
 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta gave a brief history of the Groundwater 
Preservation Fee (GPF). 
-Established GPF in water rates in 2003 
-Currently, GPF is being used to pay for: 
     -The debt associated with the acquisition of wastewater effluent for the 
      reclaimed water system and the Town’s CAP water 
     -Series 2003 bonds to finance construction of Phase I of the Reclaimed Water 
      Delivery System 
     -2007 WIFA loan to finance construction of Phase 2 of the Reclaimed Water 
      Delivery System 
     -Studies of alternatives for the future delivery of CAP water 
-Future debt on CAP water infrastructure 
     -GPF increases are paced with the future delivery of CAP water in 2016  
 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta provided a history of GPF increases since FY 
03-04 and gave an overview of Council water policies which included: 
-Water Utility is self supporting with rate based revenues 
-No transfer of excess revenues to General Fund 
-Water rates and charges reviewed annually 
-Debt service coverage ratio of 1.30 
-Cash reserves of at least 5% of budget 
-Reduced or subsidized rates will be paid by General Fund 
-Avoid sudden or large scale shifts in rates 
-Rate structure to encourage water conservation 
-Rate structure to encourage use of reclaimed water 
-Cost of Service approach (AWWA methodology)   



09/22/10                             Minutes, Town Council Study Session  6

 
Water Utility Administrator Shirley Seng gave a brief overview of the Enterprise 
Fund, the Alternative Water Resource Development Impact Fee Fund, and the 
Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Fund. 
 
Water Utility Administrator Shirley Seng discussed: 
-The process for reviewing and recommending new water rates. 
-Proposed rate increases for potable water, reclaimed water, and cost recovery 
charges pertaining to new service establishment fees and meter installation fees 
-Financial impact to an average residential customer 
  
Discussion ensued between Council regarding: 
-Effects of proposed rate increases on golf courses 
-Allocation of Groundwater Preservation Fees  
-Timeline for the delivery of CAP water and alternative options 
-Sufficient reserves for CAP water construction costs 
-Policy regarding cash reserves 
-Water meter replacement project 
-Process for paying bonds         
 
4. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
Vice Mayor Garner requested that an item be placed on a future Work Study 
agenda regarding the various CAP water delivery options as well as the different 
partners involved in the process.     
 
Mayor Hiremath clarified that this information will be distributed internally rather 
than holding a study session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by 
Councilmember Gillaspie to Adjourn at 8:08 p.m.   
 
MOTION carried, 7-0. 
 

Prepared by: 
 
     _______________________ 
     Michael Standish 
     Deputy Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1039&meta_id=79201


09/22/10                             Minutes, Town Council Study Session  7

I hereby certify the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes 
of the work session of the Town of Oro Valley Council of Oro Valley, Arizona held 
on the 22nd day of September 2010.  I further certify that the meeting was duly 
called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this _____ day of ___________________, 2010 
 
 
_____________________ 
Kathryn E. Cuvelier, CMC 
Town Clerk 



MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL  

October 6, 2010  
ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS  

11000 N. LA CANADA DRIVE  
   

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM  
 
CALL TO ORDER - At 6:00 p.m.   
 
ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT:  Satish Hiremath, Mayor  

Bill Garner, Vice Mayor  
Joe Hornat, Councilmember  
Mary Snider, Councilmember 
Steve Solmon, Councilmember 
Lou Waters, Councilmember  

 
EXCUSED:  Barry Gillaspie, Councilmember 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                               
 
Mayor Hiremath led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Mayor Hiremath reported that Mr. Bob Delaney passed away on September 23, 
2010.  Mr. Delaney was an active member of the community and a long time 
supporter of many programs and services within the Town. 
 
Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources & Library Director Ainsley Legner stated 
that Mr. Bob Delaney was the Vice-Chair of the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board and he will be remembered as a kind, respectful man who loved to 
serve the community. 
 
Communications Administrator Mary Davis said that the contributions made by 
Mr. Bob Delaney were significant and long lasting, but the contributions he made 
to our lives were timeless and will forever be remembered.  Mr. Delaney was a 
gentle giant, a giving soul and most importantly, a good friend. 
 
Oro Valley resident Terry Parish stated that he remembered Mr. Bob Delaney as 
a father, stepfather, mentor, and as a friend.  Mr. Delaney was a soldier for the 
community and he always looked for the positive in every situation. 
 
Mayor Hiremath reported that Mr. Greg Albert also passed away.  Mr. Albert was 
a loving husband and dedicated father, leaving behind his wife and three 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79923
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79926
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79927


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  2

children.  He left behind a legacy of professionalism, integrity, and a sincere 
desire to help make Oro Valley a vibrant business community.  
 
UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS    
 
Communications Administrator Mary Davis announced the upcoming 
Town meetings. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS   
 
No reports received.  
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS      
 
Town Clerk Kathryn Cuvelier stated that artwork from Oro Valley resident Phyllis 
Kutcher will be on display in the Council chambers for the month of October. 
 
Town Clerk Kathryn Cuvelier introduced new Deputy Town Clerk, Mike Standish.  
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:   
 
Mayor Hiremath stated that the order will stand as is.  
 
CALL TO AUDIENCE   
 
Oro Valley resident Mr. Don Bristow commented on the temporary sign program 
and requested Council to direct the Town Manager to stop issuing more 
temporary sign hardship waivers until the approval, implementation, and follow 
up process and procedures are improved.  
 
Oro Valley resident Sue Bishop thanked the Mayor and Town staff for creating 
the new 2010 economic development video.  Non-profit arts and cultural 
organizations are a vital amenity to the Town because they help to seek and 
retain businesses, residents, and visitors.  Ms. Bishop stated that she would like 
to see a stronger presence of the theater arts in the community.  
 
PRESENTATIONS  
 
a. PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE MONTH OF 

OCTOBER 2010 AS NATIONAL ARTS & HUMANITIES MONTH  
 
Mayor Hiremath presented a proclamation to Sue Bishop and Kate Marquez 
declaring the month of October 2010 as National Arts and Humanities month.    
 
b. *PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING OCTOBER 17-23, 

2010 AS FRIENDS OF LIBRARIES WEEK  

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79928
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79932
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79933
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79936
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79937
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79941
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79941
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79944
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79944


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  3

 
Mayor Hiremath presented a proclamation to Martha Briggs, representing the 
Friends of Libraries, declaring the week of October 17-23 as Friends of Libraries 
week.  
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Councilmember Hornat requested that item B be removed from the consent 
agenda to be voted on separately. 
 
Councilmember Snider requested that items F and G be removed from the 
consent agenda to be voted on separately. 
  
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by 
Councilmember Waters to approve the Consent Agenda with the exceptions of 
items B, F, and G. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0  
 
A. Minutes - September 1, 2010
 
C. Development & Infrastructure Services Department Permitting Division 

Report - August 2010 
 
D. Resolution No. (R)10-66 Authorizing and Approving Amendment Number 1 

to Addendum 1 of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of 
Oro Valley and the City of Tucson relating to Effluent and to Reclaimed 
Water 

 
E. Resolution No. (R) 10-67,  Adopting Issuance and Post-issuance 

Compliance Procedures Relating to Tax-Exempt Bonds, Tax Credit Bonds, 
Build America Bonds (Direct Pay), Tax Credit Bonds (Direct Pay), and 
Recovery Zone Bonds for the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona; and Providing 
for an Effective Date 

 
B. Coyote Run Monthly Report - August 2010
 
Councilmember Hornat asked for clarification regarding the $10,000 increase in 
expenses from the previous month. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by 
Councilmember Snider to approve item B. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
 
 

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79947
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79950


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  4

F. Resolution No. (R)10-63, Ratifying the Appointment of Members to the 
Town of Oro Valley Police Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 
Board (continued from September 15, 2010)  

 
Councilmember Snider thanked all of the citizens who volunteered for the 
PSPRS Board. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Snider and seconded by 
Councilmember Hornat to approve item F. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
 
G. Appointment of members to the Arts Review Commission with terms 

effective through December 31, 2010  
 
Councilmember Snider thanked the three new members for volunteering for the 
Arts Review Commission. 
 
Councilmember Waters stated that the three new members are very talented and 
he is looking forward to working with them in the future. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Snider and seconded by 
Councilmember Waters to approve item G. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0. 
 
2. RESOLUTION NO. (R)10-68, PROVIDING NOTICE OF INTENT TO 

INCREASE WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE ORO 
VALLEY WATER UTILITY  

 
Water Utility Director Philip Saletta gave a brief overview of the Notice of Intent to 
increase water rates, fees & charges and discussed the following: 
     -Statutory requirements 
     -Mayor and Council water policies 
     -Preferred financial scenario 
     -Customer analysis 
     -Groundwater Preservation Fee (GPF) 
     -Review of schedule 
 
Discussion ensued between Council regarding: 
     -Proposed water rates 
     -Allocation of funds generated from the proposed rate increase 
     -Base and Commodity rates 
     -Central Arizona Project (CAP) water  
 

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79959
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79959
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79959
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79962
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79962
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79966
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79966
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79966


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  5

Oro Valley resident Jeff Jones urged the Council to be aware of the unintended 
consequences of raising water rates or fees.   
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Snider and seconded by 
Councilmember Hornat to approve Resolution No. (R) 10-68. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.   
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING 

AN APPLICATION FOR A SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR 
LICENSE FOR THE KEG RESTAURANT & BAR LOCATED AT 12005 N. 
ORACLE ROAD.  

 
Mayor Hiremath opened the public hearing. 
 
No comments were received. 
 
Mayor Hiremath closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Waters and seconded by 
Councilmember Solomon to recommend approval of the issuance of the Series 
12 Liquor License to the Arizona State Liquor Board for Mr. David Campbell and 
principals at The Keg Restaurant and Bar located at 12005 N. Oracle Road, Oro 
Valley, AZ 85737. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING 

AN APPLICATION TO ADD SAMPLING PRIVILEGES TO AN ACTIVE 
SERIES 9 (LIQUOR STORE) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR SAFEWAY FOOD 
& DRUG #1521 LOCATED AT 12122 N. RANCHO VISTOSO 
BOULEVARD.  

 
Mayor Hiremath opened the public hearing. 
 
No comments were received. 
 
Mayor Hiremath closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by 
Councilmember Waters to recommend approval of the issuance of the Series 9S 
Liquor License to the Arizona State Liquor Board for Safeway Inc. dba Safeway 
Food & Drug #1521 located at 12122 N. Rancho Vistoso Boulevard, Oro Valley, 
AZ 85737. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0. 

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79980
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79980
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79980
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79980
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79983
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79983
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79983
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79983
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79983


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  6

 
5. OV1209-20 CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE PANDA EXPRESS RESTAURANT, 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ORACLE ROAD AND 
MAGEE ROAD WITHIN ESCONDIDO PLAZA  

 
Planning Manager David Williams gave a brief overview of the Development Plan 
for the Panda Express restaurant.   
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Solomon and seconded by 
Councilmember Hornat to approve, subject to the conditions in Exhibit A, 
OV1209-20 development plan for the Panda Express restaurant. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” 
OV1209-20 
Panda Express 
October 6, 2010 
 
Engineering 

1. Address all redlined comments within the attached Development Plan.  
Provide a detailed comment response letter and please return all redlined 
originals back to the Town of Oro Valley. 

2. Provide the recorded information of all streets and easements where 
indicated by the redlines. 

3. Sheet DP2: Update the “easement line” line-type and the “existing 8” dia. 
Sewer line” line-type to match what is shown within the Legend Table and 
on other sheets. 

4. Sheet DP3: identify the drainage wall opening within the new trash 
enclosure by its Detail No. 

5. Sheet DP3: Provide a 0.5% minimum slope where redlined adjacent to the 
Trash Dumpster. 

6. Landscape: Please match the easement and utility information as shown 
on the Development Plan. 

 
MOTION carried, 6-0. 
 
6. OV510-007 DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING 

APPEAL OF THE DECISION OF THE ART REVIEW COMMISSION’S 
(ARC) DENIAL OF THE CONCEPTUAL PUBLIC ART FOR ORO VALLEY 
RETIREMENT RESIDENCE, LOCATED AT 30 WEST LAMBERT LANE 
BY HARVEST DEVELOPMENT LLC, REPRESENTED BY LENITY 
GROUP  

 
Planning Manager David Williams gave a brief overview of the Oro Valley 
Retirement Residence and the proposed metal art installation by artist Joe Tyler.  
 

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79986
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79986
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79986
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79986
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79991
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79991
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79991
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79991
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79991
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=79991


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  7

Mr. Moutafis, Chairman of the Arts Review Committee, stated that he was 
concerned with staff recommending approval based on aesthetics.  The Arts 
Review Commission should review the art and make recommendations since 
they have the expertise. 
 
Mr. Moutafis reviewed the proposed artwork and stated that some proposed 
pieces were acceptable but others lacked clarity and/or didn’t fit with the theme.     
 
Zev Cywan, Vice Chair of the Art Review Commission (ARC), stated that (ARC) 
did fulfill its duties because the Commission: 
-Evaluated the aesthetics of the proposed public art 
-Facilitated the integration of the artwork into public accessible spaces 
-Considered improvements and threats to public health, safety, and welfare by 
ensuring that public artwork does not pose any safety hazards and is accessible 
to all members of the community. 
 
Mr. Cywan stated that he was concerned over the duplication of artwork 
regarding exhibits #1 and #2 and also the durability of the proposed artwork 
since similar metal pieces by artist Joe Tyler have had rust issues. 
 
Mr. Cywan further stated that the proposed artwork lacked a maintenance plan 
that outlines how repairs/maintenance shall be completed.     
 
Mr. Dan Roach, principal architect and owner of Lenity Group, stated that he felt 
that the Art Review Commission did not execute their duties for the same 
reasons that the Art Review Commission thought that they did fulfill their duties. 
 
Mr. Roach stated that there is no requirement in the Oro Valley Code regarding 
the amount of metal that can be used in the artwork.  The developers went 
through a long process and looked at many different artists before they decided 
on Mr. Joe Tyler. 
 
Mr. Roach said that Mr. Tyler’s artwork is safe, unique and is accessible and 
enjoyed by the public.  
 
Discussion ensued between Council regarding the criteria used for evaluating 
artwork by the Art Review Commission. 
 
Artist Mr. Tyler stated that he thought that the ARC meeting was a conceptual 
meeting and that he would be able to fine tune his artwork before bringing it back 
for a second meeting.  Mr. Tyler stated that the artwork is original and that he 
went through the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process and had 
conversations with the owner who gave him the mission to design artwork and 
meld it with the landscape.  
 
Mayor Hiremath recessed the meeting at 7:50 p.m.  

 



10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  8

 
Mayor Hiremath reconvened the meeting at 7:59 p.m.  
 
Mr. Moutafis stated that he believes in meeting in the middle and working things 
out so that the project can move forward.   
 
Oro Valley resident Mr. Jeremy Christopher stated that aesthetics are important 
to the community and that the Council should compromise and develop a win-win 
scenario between competing interests.  The Town needs to preserve public 
safety and define objective requirements.  Mr. Christopher encouraged the 
Council to take this opportunity to make it clear that they value economic 
development within the Town and that the Council is friendly toward business 
development.       
 
Oro Valley resident Mr. Bill Adler stated that rules and procedures have been 
adopted for the Arts Review Commission and the rules indicate that staff is 
required to provide an analysis of their evaluation.  If these rules and procedures 
are unclear, they should be amended.  Mr. Adler stated that concepts are 
malleable and that minor revisions or suggestions should have been brought up 
during the conceptual phase as to the location, size, and shape of the proposed 
artwork.  
 
Oro Valley resident Mr. Ben Baker stated that staff should be allowed to tie up all 
of the loose ends so that the project could move forward.   
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Solomon and seconded by 
Councilmember Waters to overrule OV0510-007, the decision of the Art Review 
Commission for Conceptual Public Art at Oro Valley Retirement Center with the 
conditions of Exhibit A and with the stipulation that the artist and owner take into 
consideration the comments from the Art Review Commission in their finalization 
of the artwork. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” 
OV510-007, Harvest Development LLC 
October 6, 2010 
 

1. For final public art submittal, provide the following information for each 
piece: 

- Indicate whether it is freestanding or permanently affixed, and if 
piece is to be permanently affixed, provide foundation details. 

- Provide final measurements. 
 

2. The property owner shall provide evidence of insurance in a minimum 
amount equal to the purchase and installation costs of the public artwork. 

 

 



10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  9

3. A maintenance plan for the artwork must be provided in accordance with 
OVZCR Section 27.3.E.6., 7. and 8. 

 
4. Art pieces #2 and #4 should be designed to not include water use. 

 
MOTION carried, 4-2 with Vice Mayor Garner and Councilmember Hornat 
opposed.  
 
7. RESOLUTION NO. (R)10-69 AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE POLICY GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR 
COMMUNITY FUNDING PROGRAMS  

 
Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources & Library Director Ms. Legner gave an 
overview of the amendment to the policy guidelines and procedures for 
community funding programs.  Ms. Legner stated that staff recommends 
removing the "Special Events" funding category from the Town’s Community 
Funding Policy in order to allow these types of events to fall under the Enhanced 
Special Events Permitting and Funding Policy.   
 
She stated that if the amendment is adopted, then the end result will be that the 
Community Funding Policy and process will solely be for agencies that are 
eligible under the remaining four categories:  Youth Development and Education, 
Services for Senior Citizens, Art Cultural Heritage, and Community 
Enhancement.  
 
Councilmember Hornat requested that applications that fall under the Enhanced 
Special Events Permitting and Funding Policy be sent to the Town Council in 
order for the Council to make the determination as to whether there is available 
funding for each event. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council regarding the permitting and funding 
process for Special Event applications.   
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by 
Councilmember Waters to table item 7 until a future Council meeting with a 
friendly amendment by Mayor Hiremath to strikeout the last bullet point in item 
1.1. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
 
8. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE 

ENHANCEMENTS TO THE TOWN’S SPECIAL EVENTS PERMITTING 
AND FUNDING POLICY  

 
Ms. Legner gave an overview of the enhancements to the Town’s Special Events 
Permitting and Funding Policy.  Applicants would have to submit applications on 

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80010
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80010
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80010
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80019
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80019
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80019


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  10

or before March 31st to be considered for a community event discount for the 
following fiscal year.  Evaluation criteria to apply for a community event discount 
include:  
     -501c3 non-profit organization for at least three years 
     -The special event must be open to either public participation or observation 
     -Needs to provide a positive economic benefit to the Town 
 
Ms. Legner further discussed: 
     -Department cost estimates 
     -50% Community Event discount option 
     -Major event waiver option for events providing extraordinary economic 
benefit to Oro Valley 
     -Up front deposit from applicant 
     -Establishing funding mechanism for Special Events from Bed Tax Fund to 
cover discount 
     -Event coordinators to respond to a follow-up survey  
 
Discussion ensued between Council regarding: 
     -Major event waiver option criteria 
     -Process for reviewing and determining major events 
     -Metropolitan Tucson Convention & Visitor’s Bureau (MTCVB) review of 
economic impact 
     -Oro Valley branding 
 
Oro Valley resident Mr. Bill Adler stated that he was concerned with the accurate 
reporting of the amount of money that may be generated by a special event.  
 
Discussion ensued between Council regarding: 
     -Process for verifying estimated economic impact of special events 
     -Refund/cancellation policy  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by 
Councilmember Waters to approve the proposed changes noted herein to the 
Special Events Permitting and Funding Policy with an inclusion in the policy, 
under item L, to state "The Manager would advise Council of decision or request 
input prior to approval or rejection" and to include a branding statement and 
refund policy. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0. 
 
9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
 
Councilmember Hornat stated that he would like to revisit the Town's letter 
regarding Rosemont Mine; seconded by Councilmember Solomon. 
  
Councilmember Snider requested staff to look into the possibility of holding a 

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80027


10/06/10                          Minutes, Town Council Regular Session                                                                  

 

11

regular Council meeting at the Sun City social hall before the end of the year; 
seconded by Councilmember Waters.  
 
CALL TO AUDIENCE   
 
No comments received.  
 
ADJOURNMENT   
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Waters and seconded by 
Councilmember Snider to adjourn the meeting at 9:03 p.m. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0. 
 
     Prepared by: 
 
     _______________________ 
     Michael Standish 
     Deputy Town Clerk 
 
I hereby certify the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes 
of the regular session of the Town of Oro Valley Council of Oro Valley, Arizona 
held on the 6th day of October 2010.  I further certify that the meeting was duly 
called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this ____ day of __________________, 2010 
 
 
________________________ 
Kathryn E. Cuvelier, CMC 
Town Clerk 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80030
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=1045&meta_id=80031


    Item #:  1. B.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Development & Infrastructure Services, Permitting Division September 2010 Reports

Information
Subject
Development and Infrastructure Services Department, Permitting Division - September 2010 Reports

Summary

Discussion

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Link: Activity Report
Link: Customer Chart
Link: Permit Activity
Link: Plan Review Chart
Link: Inspection Activity
Link: Revenue chart



Development and Infrastructure Services Department

Permitting Division

Building Permits Monthly Activity Reports - September 2010

CURRENT MONTH PREV MONTH

SAME MONTH ONE 

YEAR AGO

CUMULATIVE LAST 

FISCAL YEAR 2009/10

CUMULATIVE THIS FISCAL 

YEAR 2010/11

CLASS 
DESCRIPTION CODE PERMITS VALUATION REVENUES PERMITS REVENUES PERMITS REVENUES PERMITS REVENUES PERMITS REVENUES

SFR Detached 0101 4 $1,898,601 $23,439 1 $7,625 7 $30,792 17 $63,966 9 $63,182

SFR Attached 0102

Res Pools 0329 5 $33,321 $1,258 4 $1,157 6 $3,022 19 $7,299 16 $5,027

Revisions/Alter/Addit 0434 8 $426,889 $7,913 11 $9,164 16 $11,020 42 $23,313 26 $21,451

Res Walls 0434 1 $3,500 $220 1 $220

Garage/Carport Encl 0438 2 $40,000 $1,249 1 $1,232 2 $1,249

Misc Residential 66 $31,800 $3,155 50 $1,944 40 $2,077 173 $5,583 172 $6,932

Model Plans 4 $8,370

Multi-Family Res.
Res Demo 1 $137 1 $331 2 $451 1 $137

Subtotal Residential 

Permits
86 $2,434,111 $37,234 67 $20,027 70 $47,242 258 $110,214 227 $98,198

Condos > 5 units 0105

Commercial Shell

Hotels or Motels 0213

Social or Recreation 0318

Churches, Temples 0319

IndstPlnts/PublicWks 0320 2 $927

Pkg/Grgs/Ramada/Maint 0321

Service Stations/Washes 0322

Hospitals/Clinics 0323

Offices/Banks/Proff/Rest 0324

Schools 0326

Stores 0327

Commercial Pools 0329 1 $18,763 $659 1 $659

TI's & Comm Reno 0437 4 $303,942 $7,189 2 $2,576 6 $14,825 12 $21,387 10 $29,912

CommAlter/Revisions 0328 2 $350,000 $4,740 6 $20,681 2 $137 7 $4,351 9 $26,457

Misc Commercial 2 $0 $160 2 $240 5 $15,511 10 $17,052 8 $1,064
CommerDemo

Subtotal Commercial 

Permits
9 $672,705 $12,748 10 $23,497 13 $30,473 31 $43,717 28 $58,092

Signs 12 $0 $2,010 8 $1,652 13 $4,082 48 $10,020 39 $7,131

Total Residential & 

Commercial Permits
107 $3,106,816 $51,992 85 $45,176 96 $81,797 337 $163,951 294 $163,421

Resid. Impact Fees $24,312 $6,078 $40,687 $102,720 $54,702
Comm. Impact Fees

Total Dev Imp Fees $24,312 $6,078 $40,687 $102,720 0 $54,702

* Revenues / Fees represent the total cost of the permits issued, and is not a representation of actual revenues within a given month.

September-2010 August-2010 September-2009  (Revised 7/09)



Development Services Customers for September 2009 thru September 2010

496

603

519
535

570

520

602

640

520

581

487 485

459

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Sep '09

O
ct '09

N
ov '09

D
ec '09

Jan '10

Feb '10

M
ar '10

Apr '10

M
ay '10

Jun '10

Jul '10

Aug '10

Sep '10



Building Safety Permit Activity for September 2009 thru September 2010
1

04

9
7

1
1
1

1
07

1
1
3

1
04

1
1
9

1
45

1
21

1
27

1
23

1
14

1
1
9

9
9

9
9

9
7

1
03 1

0
6

1
21

1
09

1
47

1
10

1
27

1
07

1
1
9

1
21

1
04

1
03

9
6

1
0
5

9
9

1
2
4

1
1
3

1
51

1
1
2

1
2
5

1
1
2

1
08

1
21

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Sep '09

O
ct '09

Nov '09

Dec '09

Jan '10

Feb '10

M
ar '10

Apr '10

M
ay '10

Jun '10

Jul '10

Aug '10

Sep '10

Applied Permits

Approved Permits

Issued Permits



Building Safety Plan Review Activity for September 2009 thru September 2010

6
5

5
7

8
1

7
8

7
7

8
4

7
6

1
0

2

8
2

8
9

8
1

8
1

7
0

1
5

2
1

1
3

1
9

2
4

1
6 1

9

3
5

3
1 3
2

2
9

2
8

2
2

1 2 2 1

3 2 3

1

3
1

1
61

8

1
6

2
2

2
02

4

2
12

3

1
9

1
51
5

2
8

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Sep '09

O
ct '09

N
ov '09

D
ec '09

Jan '10

Feb '10

M
ar '10

Apr '10

M
ay '10

Jun '10

Jul '10

Aug '10

Sep '10

Building Plan Review (Initial)

Building Plan Review (Subsequent)

Building Plan Revision (Initial)

Building Plan Revision (Subsequent)



Building Safety Inspection Activity for September 2009 thru September 2010

1
11

1

1
29

5

1
17

1 1
2
4

9

1
2
3

9

1
14

7

1
48

0

1
3
6

0

1
31

6 1
38

5

1
23

1 1
29

5

1
0
3

8

4
12

4
89

4
36

5
07

4
80

4
4
0

5
7
1

5
44

4
76

5
4
9

4
47 4

7
9

4
01

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Sep '09

O
ct '09

Nov '09

Dec '09

Jan '10

Feb '10

M
ar '10

Apr '10

M
ay '10

Jun '10

Jul '10

Aug '10

Sep '10

Actual

Inspections

Inspection

Stops



Building Safety Revenue for September 2009 thru September 2010
(Does not include Impact Fees, Engineering Fees, Zoning Fees, Books, Copies or APA Deposits)

$120,563 

$45,511 

$65,958 

$77,343 

$69,806 

$91,998 

$71,941 

$88,663 

$54,948 
$62,664 

$105,599 

$35,430 

$51,572 

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

Sep '09

O
ct '09

Nov '09

Dec '09

Jan '10

Feb '10

M
ar '10

Apr '10

M
ay '10

Jun '10

Jul '10

Aug '10

Sep '10



    Item #:  1. C.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Amanda Jacobs, Economic Development Manager
Submitted By: Amanda Jacobs, Town Manager's Office
Department: Town Manager's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Economic Development Division Quarterly Report: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

SUMMARY:
Attached is the Economic Development Division quarterly report for the period July 1, 2010 – September
30, 2010.

DISCUSSION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Report is for information only.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This report is for information only.

Attachments
Link: Economic Development Division Quarterly Report from July - September 2010
Link: New Local Business Report from July - September 2010



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Economic Development Division  

Quarterly Report: 

July 1, 2010 – September 30, 2010 

 

 

Presented to Town of Oro Valley Mayor and Council 

November 17, 2010 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 2 

Business Retention Activity 
 

1051

1095

982

900

950

1000

1050

1100

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

Business Navigator Statistics 

Q1: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Unique Visitors

Unique Visitors 1051 1095 982

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

 

 

0 2 4 2 4 3
2

203

7

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

Business Navigator 

(New, Updated and Inactive) 

Q1: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Number of New 0 2 2

Number of Updated 2 4 203

Number of Inactive 4 3 7

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 3 

Business Retention Activity Continued 
 

5

1

5

2

5

0

0

1
2

3
4

5

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

Business Retention & Expansion Site Visits 

Q1: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Number of BR/E

Letters

5 5 5

Number of BR/E Visits 1 2 0

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

 

 
Responses from Business Retention & Expansion (BR/E) Site Visits 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Strengths of Conducting Business in Oro Valley Q1: 

July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Demographics

40%

Public Safety

40%

/ Education

Workforce

20%



 4 

Business Retention Activity Continued 
 

Weaknesses of Conducting Business 

in Oro Valley

 Q1: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Signage

50%
Location

33%

 Difficult to

 start a

 business in

Oro Valley

17%

 
 
Business Attraction 
 
 

5

3

8

3

7

10

4

6

10

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

New Business Welcome Packets 

Q1: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Welcome Packets -

Store Fronts

5 3 4

Welcome Packets -

Home-Based

3 7 6

Total 8 10 10

Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

 



 5 

Attachment ‘1’ 
New Local Business Report: July 1, 2010 – September 30, 2010 

 



07/01/2010 thru 09/30/2010Report Dates:

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

New Local Business Report

Business No. Business Name Business Address Phone Start DateHome Y/N

TOV1000221 JUDYS PIANO STUDIO 12356 N ECHO VALLEY DR 520-219-5952 07/06/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85755

Y

TOV1000247 DESERT SKY SPINE AND SPORTS 
MEDICINE PC                                         

1920 W LEMONWOOD ST 480-285-6221 07/09/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85755

N

TOV1000268 CT GOETZE PROPERTIES 
LLC                                                        

411 W KLINGER CANYON DR 520-609-0206 07/09/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85755

Y

TOV1000269 VISTOSO AUTOMOTIVE 
LLC                                                          

12945 N ORACLE RD 520-403-9360 07/09/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

N

TOV1000272 RAHN 
CONSULTING                                               
                  

1965 W MISTERBEE DR 520-577-0682 07/20/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

Y

TOV1000277 FLAVOR OF INDIA 
RESTAURANT                                              
        

12112 N RANCHO VISTOSO BL #100 520-861-2700 07/20/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

N

TOV1000280 SAN CARLOS GRILL 
LLC                                                            

12125 N ORACLE RD 520-544-0066 07/22/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

N

TOV1000287 MHR CONSULTING 
LLC                                                              

7790 N ORACLE RD #140 520-490-1063 07/27/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

N

TOV1000301 GGS BY 
DESIGN                                                         
          

PO BOX 69023 520-271-3817 08/11/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

Y

TOV1000302 PAUL LOOMIS CONSULTING 
LLC                                                      

10551 N LAMBERT PL 520-603-1075 08/11/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

Y

TOV1000295 HELPDESK ETC 
LLC                                                                

7625 N ORACLE RD #125 520-505-6955 08/12/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

N

TOV1000305 ORO VALLEY EYECARE 
PLLC                                                         

10515 N ORACLE RD#145 520-229-2010 08/12/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ  85737

N

TOV1000308 SOUTHERN AZ CLEANUP SPEC IN 
FORECLOSURE LLC

650 E WINDWARD PL 520-906-4423 08/17/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

Y

TOV1000310 ALWAYS BEST CARE 
TUCSON                                                       
  

PO BOX 68652 520-225-0561 08/17/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85755

Y

TOV1000314 TAHNI P 
MCINTYRE                                                    
            

783 E CAMINO CORRIDA 520-219-8906 08/19/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ  85704

Y

TOV1000319 LAURA 
NEWMAN                                                      
              

7645 N ORACLE RD 520-481-2689 08/24/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

N

TOV1000324 SURVIVE 2 
LIVE                                                              
    

10950 N LA CANADA DR #21210 520-241-7446 08/27/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

Y

TOV1000325 DOLSBERRY STUDIO AND ART 
GALLERY                                                

14156 N BILTMORE DR 520-825-8090 08/31/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85755

Y

Tuesday, October 26, 2010 Page 1 of 2Date This Report Was Printed:



Business No. Business Name Business Address Phone Start DateHome Y/N

TOV1000326 JUST 
PEACHY                                                        
             

1725 E DEER HOLLOW LP 310-989-9084 09/01/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

Y

TOV1000329 OCLARO PHOTONICS 
INC                                                            

10831 N MAVINEE DR #165 408-383-1400 09/01/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

N

TOV1000327 TOO CLEAN 
INDUSTRIES                                                 
           

PO BOX 69752 520-401-2436 09/03/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

Y

TOV1000332 GILBERTS 11752 N PEACEFUL NIGHT RD 520-882-8457 09/03/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

Y

TOV1000345 BANDANA UNDERDOG 
LLC                                                            

8271 N ORACLE RD #251    -   -    09/15/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

Y

TOV1000352 PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS 7963 N ORACLE RD 520-730-1080 09/22/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

N

TOV1000355 TREK BICYCLES OF 
TUCSON                                                       
  

7645 N ORACLE RD #100 520-797-9330 09/22/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

N

TOV1000357 CREATIVE DESIGNS BY DIANA 
DARLING                                               

490 W LINDA VISTA BLVD 520-575-8376 09/24/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

Y

TOV1000360 AFC ACCOUNTING 
SERVICES                                                    
     

8370 N AUSTIN NIKOLAS CT 520-204-2613 09/28/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85704

Y

TOV1000362 LE PEABODY AND ASSOCIATES 
INC                                                   

760 E PUSCH RIDGE LN 520-531-1060 09/28/2010

ORO VALLEY AZ 85737

N

Total Number of Store Fronts 12

Total Number of Home-Based Businesses 16

Total Number of Businesses on this Report: 28

Tuesday, October 26, 2010 Page 2 of 2Date This Report Was Printed:



    Item #:  1. D.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Wendy Gomez, Budget and Management Analyst
Submitted By: Wendy Gomez, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
Fiscal Year 2010/11 Financial Update through September 2010

SUMMARY:
The attachments capture total revenues earned and departmental expenditures through the end
of September 2010 for the major funds in the budget that are tax-based (General, Highway, Bed Tax,
and Public Transportation).  A projected year-end total revenue estimate is provided for each fund and
compared to the budgeted revenue for the year.  A projected year-end expenditure estimate is also
provided for each fund and compared to the budgeted expenditures for the year.  Comparing the
projected year-end revenue amount to total estimated year-end expenditures in each fund will show the
anticipated operating deficit/surplus resulting in respective increases or decreases to the fund balance at
year-end.  

Attachment A provides a summary of the four funds. 
Attachments B through E include additional detail on each fund.  
Attachment F contains the financial dashboard charts which display historical revenue and expenditure
trend data, along with the actuals through September 2010.  

An explanation of the figures by fund is provided below. 

DISCUSSION:
General Fund

Attachment B shows General Fund revenues and expenditures-to-date through September as well as
year-end estimates for each.  Through September, revenue collections totaled $6,257,650 and
expenditures totaled $4,848,697.

The estimated year-end projections in the General Fund are as follows:

                   Revenues                                  $24,917,737
                   Expenditures                               26,191,514
 
                   Estimated Operating Deficit   ($1,273,777)

The above year-end projections should be considered preliminary estimates.  Staff will update these
year-end projections each month as revenue and expenditure trends become more discernible. 

Revenue Trends

Local sales tax revenue estimates for the General Fund were adjusted down by about 7.5%, or about
$929,000, due to construction sales taxes, which are likely to come in considerably below budget.  With
the federal tax housing credit coming to an end and the delay in the Ventana Medical Systems
expansion, staff has observed continued declines in these revenues.  

License & Permit revenues have been adjusted down by about 19.4%, or about $250,000.  This



License & Permit revenues have been adjusted down by about 19.4%, or about $250,000.  This
variance is attributable to the delay in the Ventana Medical Systems expansion.  Staff will keep the Town
Council informed regarding the status of this project.  

Interest Income has been adjusted down by nearly 60%, or about $90,000.  Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP) interest earnings have averaged less than 0.25% for the first three months of FY
2010/11.  On September 15, 2010, Council approved a revised Town investment policy that provides
for additional diversification of funds.  We can expect the Town's interest earnings rate to improve as a
result, but the process will be gradual and it may take some time for results to materialize.   

Federal Grants have been adjusted down by about $69,000; however, this is due to budgeted Federal
Grant dollars that are actually being distributed by a State agency and are thus being recorded as State
Grant revenues.  As a result, State Grants have been adjusted upward by the same amount and the
budget variance nets to zero.  

Single family residential (SFR) permits are trending below budget, with nine (9) permits having been
issued through the month of September (75 SFR permits were budgeted for FY 2010/11).  At this time,
residential building permit revenues may still come in on budget, as building valuations (which
determine permit amounts) are exceeding budgeted estimates.  Staff will continue to monitor residential
permit revenues as the fiscal year progresses.  

Charges for Services are expected to come in slightly under budget, due to an accounting change for
recreation in lieu fees.  All other General Fund revenue sources are anticipated to come in on budget at
this time.  

Expenditure Trends  

Year-end expenditures are estimated to come in under budget by approximately $369,000, or about
1.4%.  Of this amount, approximately $165,000 is comprised of liability insurance premium
savings.  Other operations & maintenance savings are estimated at $96,000, while vacancy savings are
estimated at approximately $177,000.  Roughly $170,000 in capital expenditures through
Council-approved use of contingency reserves is included in the year-end expenditure estimate. 
This amount reflects the additional funding needed for Steam Pump Ranch over and above
remaining Pima County bond funds.  Additionally, because the Public Transportation Fund had a
higher than anticipated ending fund balance for FY 2009/10, staff can transfer a reduced subsidy
amount from the General Fund to the Public Transportation Fund in FY 2010/11.  General Fund savings
are estimated at $100,000 as a result.     

The estimated decrease in year-end fund balance in the General Fund is now approximately $1,274,000
which includes the $170,000 for Steam Pump Ranch.  The budgeted decrease was $344,350.  The
General Fund budget was adopted with one-time expenditures totaling approximately $1.1 million that
are comprised primarily of energy efficiency upgrades at the Town Hall campus ($1.06M) and the
remaining carryforward project costs associated with the Environmentally Sensitive Lands Ordinance
(ESLO) ($50K) and the cultural resources inventory ($10K).  While at this time the estimated deficit is
limited to one-time expenditures, staff is closely monitoring financial conditions in this fund. 

Highway Fund

In the Highway Fund (Attachment C), revenues collected through September total $812,976, while
expenditures through September total $530,275.  The estimated year-end projections in the Highway
Fund are as follows:

                   Revenues                                  $3,582,402
                   Expenditures                               4,105,231



                   Estimated Operating Deficit   ($ 522,829)

Local sales tax revenue estimates were adjusted down by about 29%, or about $185,000 as a result of
the declines in construction activity.  Interest Income has been adjusted down by nearly 57%, or about
$30,000 for reduced interest earnings rates and the expected delay in diversification of Town funds.  All
other revenue sources are expected to come in on budget at this time.  Expenditures are also estimated
to come in on budget at this time, although it is anticipated that, as the fiscal year progresses, staff can
identify expenditure savings in sufficient amounts to close the larger than budgeted deficit in this fund. 
The FY 2010/11 Highway Fund budget was adopted with a planned use of cash reserves in the amount
of $307,389 to fund energy efficiency upgrades.  

Bed Tax Fund

In the Bed Tax Fund (Attachment D), revenues collected through September total $168,437.  Of the
$600,000 budgeted allocation in Bed Tax revenues to the General Fund, $105,000 has been allocated
through September.  This brings total year-to-date revenues of $63,437 remaining in the Bed Tax Fund. 
Year-to-date expenditures total $20,254.  The year-end projections in the Bed Tax Fund are as follows:

                  Revenues                                    $267,351
                  Expenditures                                 358,101

                  Estimated Operating Deficit    ($ 90,750)

Interest Income has been adjusted down by nearly 36%, or about $3,200 for reduced interest earnings
rates and the expected delay in diversification of Town funds.  Approximately $44,000 in O&M
expenditures through use of contingency reserves is included in the budgeted figures and the
year-end expenditure estimate for funding of TREO.  Personnel expenditures are estimated to come
in slightly under budget, due to reduced economic development intern hours during the summer
months.  The FY 2010/11 Bed Tax Fund budget was adopted with a planned use of cash reserves in the
amount of $44,779.  Inclusion of TREO funding brings the budgeted use of cash reserves to $88,300. 
        

Public Transportation Fund

In the Public Transportation Fund (Attachment E), revenues collected through September total $10,807,
while expenditures total $102,539.  The estimated year-end projections in the Public Transportation
Fund are as follows:

                   Revenues                                   $361,739
                   Expenditures                                482,320
   
                   Estimated Operating Deficit   ($120,581)

Revenues are estimated to come in under budget by about $93,000, or about 20.5%.  Farebox
revenues are estimated to come in over budget by roughly $8,400, due to maintained service levels for
FY 2010/11.  The budget for farebox revenues had assumed reduced service levels for FY 2010/11 due
to the elimination of Local Transportation Assistance Funds (LTAF) by the State.  Second, as mentioned
in the General Fund discussion, the Public Transit Fund has approximately $130,000 in remaining
available cash reserves from FY 2009/10 that have been carried forward to fund FY 2010/11
expenditures, so the FY 2010/11 subsidy transfer from the General Fund will likely be approximately
$100,000 under budget.  Expenditures are anticipated to come in on budget at this time.  The FY
2010/11 Public Transportation Fund budget was adopted with a planned use of cash reserves in the
amount of $27,475.     



FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
None, informational purposes only. 

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This report is for information only.

Attachments
Link: Attachment A - Summary
Link: Attachment B - Gen Fund
Link: Attachment C - HW Fund
Link: Attachment D - Bed Tax Fund
Link: Attachment E - Transit Fund
Link: Attachment F - Dashboard



ATTACHMENT A

Actuals % Actuals Year End % Variance

Fund thru 09/2010 Budget to Budget Estimate to Budget

General 6,257,650$      26,215,984$    23.9% 24,917,737$    -5.0%

Highway 812,976$         3,797,842$      21.4% 3,582,402$      -5.7%

Bed Tax 63,437$           270,569$         23.4% 267,351$         -1.2%

Transit 10,807$           454,845$         2.4% 361,739$         -20.5%

Actuals % Actuals Year End % Variance

Fund thru 09/2010 Budget to Budget Estimate to Budget

General 4,848,697$      26,560,334$    18.3% 26,191,514$    -1.4%

Highway 530,275$         4,105,231$      12.9% 4,105,231$      0.0%

Bed Tax 20,254$           358,869$         5.6% 358,101$         -0.2%

Transit 102,539$         482,320$         21.3% 482,320$         0.0%

Year End Year End

Fund YTD Budgeted Estimate Budgeted Estimate

General 1,408,953$      (344,350)$        (1,273,777)$  10,620,363$    9,061,072$      *

Highway 282,701$         (307,389)$        (522,829)$     3,772,144$      3,509,083$      

Bed Tax 43,183$           (88,300)$          (90,750)$        987,870$         898,795$         

Transit (91,732)$          (27,475)$          (120,581)$     54,532$           15,455$           

*  Represents 34.6% of General Fund year-end estimated expenditures

September 2010 Monthly Financial Report

Expenditures

Surplus/(Deficit) Fund Balance

Revenues

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2010-2011\1Q\SEP\Sep FY11 Fund Update 10/26/2010



ATTACHMENT B

          September YTD Financial Status      FY 2010/2011

% Budget Completion through September  ---  25%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget

REVENUE:

LOCAL SALES TAX                2,864,767      12,464,250  23.0% 11,534,805   -7.5%

BED TAX ALLOCATION 105,000         600,000       17.5% 600,000        0.0%

(allocation from Bed Tax Fund to Gen Fund)

LICENSES & PERMITS                 212,607         1,276,510    16.7% 1,028,301     -19.4%

FEDERAL GRANTS                     257,666         881,239       29.2% 811,956        -7.9%

STATE GRANTS                       62,824           145,700       43.1% 214,983        47.6%

STATE/COUNTY SHARED                2,071,283      8,360,415    24.8% 8,360,415     0.0%

OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL            30,000           607,781       4.9% 607,781        0.0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES               179,696         1,021,715    17.6% 991,715        -2.9%

FINES                              51,886           195,000       26.6% 195,000        0.0%

INTEREST INCOME                    7,590             151,374       5.0% 60,681          -59.9%

MISCELLANEOUS                      47,330           145,000       32.6% 145,100        0.1%

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 367,000         367,000       100.0% 367,000        0.0%

6,257,650      26,215,984  23.9% 24,917,737   -5.0%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget
EXPENDITURES:

TOWN COUNCIL 74,717           220,610       33.9% 220,610        0.0%

TOWN CLERK 74,645           378,581       19.7% 378,581        0.0%

TOWN MANAGER 162,569         974,906       16.7% 922,153        -5.4%

HUMAN RESOURCES 74,764           484,189       15.4% 465,926        -3.8%

FINANCE 138,642         727,613       19.1% 727,304        0.0%

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 290,252         1,120,106    25.9% 1,120,106     0.0%

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 381,891         3,458,898    11.0% 3,394,447     -1.9%

LEGAL 140,970         842,785       16.7% 770,785        -8.5%

COURT 148,106         753,772       19.6% 753,772        0.0%

DEV & INFRASTRUCTURE SVCS 539,400         3,084,586    17.5% 2,923,542     -5.2%

PARKS, REC, LIBRARY, & CULT RSCS 606,739         2,947,715    20.6% 2,947,715     0.0%

PUBLIC SAFETY 2,216,001      11,566,573  19.2% 11,566,573   0.0%

4,848,697      26,560,334  18.3% 26,191,514   -1.4%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 1,408,953      (344,350)      (1,273,777)    

TOTAL FINANCING USES

 Year End 

Estimate 

Budget
 Year End 

Estimate 

General Fund

Budget
FINANCING SOURCES

FINANCING USES

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2010-2011\1Q\SEP\Sep FY11 Fund Update 10/26/2010



ATTACHMENT C

          September YTD Financial Status       FY 2010/2011

% Budget Completion through September  ---  25%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget

REVENUE:

LOCAL SALES TAX                99,045          630,188        15.7% 444,875       -29.4%

LICENSES & PERMITS                 10,235          50,192          20.4% 50,192         0.0%

STATE GRANTS 47,000          317,000        14.8% 317,000       0.0%

STATE/COUNTY SHARED                636,253        2,669,767     23.8% 2,669,767    0.0%

INTEREST INCOME                    2,789            53,205          5.2% 23,078         -56.6%

MISCELLANEOUS                      1,454            12,686          11.5% 12,686         0.0%

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 16,201          64,804          25.0% 64,804         0.0%

 

812,976        3,797,842     21.4% 3,582,402    -5.7%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget
EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATION 130,367        1,029,154     12.7% 1,029,154    0.0%

TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING 103,364        1,285,320     8.0% 1,285,320    0.0%

PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT 37,743          201,893        18.7% 201,893       0.0%

STREET MAINTENANCE 161,886        954,481        17.0% 954,481       0.0%

TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 96,914          634,383        15.3% 634,383       0.0%

530,275        4,105,231     12.9% 4,105,231    0.0%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 282,701        (307,389)       (522,829)     

Highway Fund

Budget
FINANCING SOURCES

FINANCING USES

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES

TOTAL FINANCING USES

 Year End 

Estimate 

Budget
 Year End 

Estimate 

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2010-2011\1Q\SEP\Sep FY11 Fund Update 10/26/2010



ATTACHMENT D

          September YTD Financial Status

% Budget Completion through September  ---  25%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget

REVENUE:

BED TAXES 167,796       861,569     19.5% 861,569      0.0%

less allocation to General Fund (105,000)      (600,000)    17.5% (600,000)     0.0%

INTEREST INCOME                    641              9,000         7.1% 5,782          -35.8%

 

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES 63,437         270,569     23.4% 267,351      -1.2%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget
EXPENDITURES:

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 20,254         358,869     5.6% 358,101      -0.2%

TOTAL FINANCING USES 20,254         358,869     5.6% 358,101      -0.2%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 43,183         (88,300)      (90,750)       

Bed Tax Fund

Budget
FINANCING SOURCES

FINANCING USES

FY 2010/2011

 Year End 

Estimate 

Budget
 Year End 

Estimate 

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2010-2011\1Q\SEP\Sep FY11 Fund Update 10/26/2010



ATTACHMENT E

          September YTD Financial Status      FY 2010/2011

Public Transportation Fund

% Budget Completion through September  ---  25%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget

REVENUE:

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 10,737           34,545          31.1% 42,948        24.3%

INTEREST INCOME 70                  1,800            3.9% 291             -83.8%

MISCELLANEOUS                      -                 18,500          0.0% 18,500        0.0%

TRANSFER FROM GEN FUND -                 400,000        0.0% 300,000      -25.0%

 

10,807           454,845        2.4% 361,739      -20.5%

Actuals % Actuals % Variance

thru 9/2010 to Budget to Budget
EXPENDITURES:

PUBLIC TRANSIT 102,539         482,320        21.3% 482,320      0.0%

102,539         482,320        21.3% 482,320      0.0%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (91,732)          (27,475)         (120,581)     

TOTAL FINANCING USES

 Year End 

Estimate 

Budget
 Year End 

Estimate 

Budget
FINANCING SOURCES

FINANCING USES

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2010-2011\1Q\SEP\Sep FY11 Fund Update 10/26/2010



Town of Oro Valley

 Financial Dashboard

September Actuals 

ATTACHMENT F

Retail Sales Tax Collections

 $1.1M 

 $4.7M  $5.0M  $4.8M 

$-

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
*thru Sept.

Hotel/Motel Sales Tax Collections

 $168K 

 $1.0M  $900K 

$1.3M

$-

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
*thru Sept.

Construction Sales Tax Collections

 $601K 

 $2.8M 

 $7.6M 

 $6.0M 

$-

$2,500,000

$5,000,000

$7,500,000

$10,000,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
*thru Sept.

Restaurant/Bar Sales Tax Collections

 $761K  $774K 

 $884K 

 $220K 

$-

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
*thru Sept.

Utility Sales Tax Collections

 $398K 

 $1.0M 

 $1.4M  $1.3M 

$-

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
*thru Sept.



Town of Oro Valley

 Financial Dashboard

September Actuals 

ATTACHMENT F

State Shared Sales Tax Collections

 $3.1M 

 $3.6M 

 $2.9M 

 $710K 

$-

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011*

State Shared Income Tax Collections

 $5.5M  $5.9M 

 $5.0M 

 $959K 

$-

$1,500,000

$3,000,000

$4,500,000

$6,000,000

$7,500,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011*

State Shared County Auto Lieu Collections

 $402K 

 $1.5M  $1.6M 
 $1.7M 

$-

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011*

*thru Sept.

*thru Sept.

*thru Sept.



Town of Oro Valley

 Financial Dashboard

September Actuals 

ATTACHMENT F

General Fund

$- $8,000,000 $16,000,000 $24,000,000 $32,000,000

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

F
Y
 2
0
0
8

F
Y
 2
0
0
9

F
Y
 2
0
1
0

F
Y
 2
0
1
1
*

Budget Actual*thru Sept.

Highway Fund 

$- $4,000,000 $8,000,000

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

F
Y
 2
0
0
8

F
Y
 2
0
0
9

F
Y
 2
0
1
0

F
Y
 2
0
1
1
*

Budget Actual

Bed Tax Fund

$- $500,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000 $2,000,000

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

F
Y
 2
0
0
8

F
Y
 2
0
0
9

F
Y
 2
0
1
0

F
Y
 2
0
1
1
*

Budget Actual*thru Sept.

Transit Fund

$- $500,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

F
Y
 2
0
0
8

F
Y
 2
0
0
9

F
Y
 2
0
1
0

F
Y
 2
0
1
1
*

Budget Actual

*thru Sept.

*thru Sept.



Town of Oro Valley

 Financial Dashboard

September Actuals 

ATTACHMENT F

Stormwater Fund

$- $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

F
Y
 2
0
0
8

F
Y
 2
0
0
9

F
Y
 2
0
1
0

F
Y

2
0
1
1
*

Budget Actual

Water Utility Enterprise Fund

$- $10,000,000 $20,000,000

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

F
Y
 2
0
0
8

F
Y
 2
0
0
9

F
Y
 2
0
1
0

F
Y

2
0
1
1
*

Budget Actual

Single Family Residential Permits

285

250

120

65

320

9

75

60

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget YTD

Actual

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

P
e
rm

it
s
 I
s
s
u
e
d

*

*thru Sept.*thru Sept.

*thru Sept.

Projected YE Fund Balances

Fiscal Year 2011

 $6.9M 

 $290K 

 $15K 

 $3.5M 

 $9.1M 

 $899K 

$-

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

$10,000,000

G
en

er
al

H
ig
hw

ay

Be
d 

Ta
x

Tr
an

si
t

St
or

m
w
at

er
 

En
te

rp
ris

e



    Item #:  1. E.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
September 2010 Stats

Information
Subject
Police Department - September 2010 Statistics

Summary

Discussion

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Link: September 2010 Stats



2010 TOTAL JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Total Calls 12929 1357 1343 1492 1345 1635 1371 1393 1527 1466

Commercial Veh Enforcement 136 11 6 30 22 5 1 1 3 57

Residential Burglaries**** 44 3 8 2 7 2 4 4 6 8

Non-Residential Burglaries**** 15 3 1 3 2 2 3 0 1 0

All Burglary Attempts**** 7 1 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 3

Thefts 483 32 45 42 62 69 38 61 70 64

Vehicle Thefts**** 21 3 2 1 2 4 0 4 4 1

Recovered Stolen Vehicles**** 5 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 0

Attempted Vehicle Thefts**** 5 1 0 1 0 2 0 1 0 0

DUI 177 28 14 20 22 22 16 10 17 28

Liquor Laws 35 4 4 1 8 7 1 2 5 3

Drug Offenses 134 17 13 20 12 22 11 9 12 18

Homicides 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Robbery 8 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 2 3

Assault 94 12 7 8 11 13 5 10 16 12

Total Arrests*** 1532 174 193 164 179 217 144 118 175 168

Assigned Cases 557 60 66 70 50 64 53 56 71 67

Alarms (Residential) 674 56 68 69 61 69 104 100 81 66

Alarms (Business) 394 28 44 49 50 46 41 55 43 38

K9 Searches 214 26 10 33 18 18 24 30 20 35

First Aid Calls 1769 177 184 207 208 212 197 190 209 185

Accidents 365 48 41 41 42 43 38 23 39 50

Citations (Traffic)** 4517 683 650 536 351 609 477 588 623 **

Warnings 5018 723 612 531 426 491 492 614 590 539

Repair Orders 1082 127 156 150 107 78 59 67 96 242

Public Assists* 1717 175 201 264 228 196 95 141 250 167

Reserve Man Hours 959 133.5 132.5 140 176.5 140 46 67 81.5 42

Dark House Checks* 12750 846 462 641 1215 1729 1219 2219 2684 1735

Drug Task Force Arrest 91 6 1 28 25 5 11 2 8 5

CVAP Dark House Cks 8037 413 145 204 767 1354 767 1474 1925 988

CVAP Public Assists 672 81 66 97 104 96 39 59 90 40

CVAP Total Hours 12928.5 1435 1448.5 1417 1544 1468 1186 1497 1727.5 1205.5
(Arrest stats updated for the year 07/19/10)

*  Total Includes CVAP
**  Traffic data delayed 30 days due to data entry backlog
*** As of 1/1/09 "Total Arrests" are compiled through the Spillman database and include all cite and release arrests along with all physical arrests.
Based on further investigation, actual classifications may change resulting in small variances of case counts.

****Burglary Attempts and Non‐Residential Burglaries/Vehicle Theft Attempts and Stolen Vehicle Recoveries have been separated from total counts as of August, 2010

ORO VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT POLICE ACTIVITY SUMMARY



ORO VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY BREAKDOWN OF CITATIONS BY VIOLATION

Citations 2009 TOTAL JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

TOWN CODE 108 18 17 7 1 13 19 15 18

SIZE, WEIGHT, LOAD 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

INSURANCE VIOLATION 1007 168 149 112 83 112 103 141 139

REGISTRATION VIOLATION 513 116 72 51 33 66 55 57 63

DRIVERS LICENSE VIOLATION 407 65 53 50 35 66 46 40 52

DUI 151 28 15 20 23 22 16 10 17

RECKLESS/AGGRESSIVE DRIVING 13 1 1 1 3 1 3 1 2

SPEEDING 1287 151 163 130 98 123 177 210 235

LANE VIOLATIONS 159 20 21 17 11 26 23 19 22

RED LIGHT 86 10 19 10 5 13 11 7 11

STOP SIGN 81 18 13 8 11 5 2 2 22

FAILURE TO YIELD 81 12 18 8 9 12 7 7 8

SEATBELT VIOLATION 277 26 44 53 2 77 19 42 14

CHILD RESTRAINT 8 1 1 1 1 2 1 0 1

EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 205 29 37 36 9 38 9 31 16

PARKING 12 2 0 1 1 2 3 1 2

LITTERING 14 1 0 2 2 4 2 3 0

ALL OTHER CITATIONS 242 49 38 33 25 40 21 17 19

Total Citations 4524 697 645 534 351 609 477 588 623

Based on further investigation and updating of information, actual classifications may change resulting in small variances in counts.

TITLE 28 VIOLATIONS

Citations 2010



Jan-Sep Jan-Sep Jan-Sep September September September

2008 2009 2010 2008 2009 2010

Total Calls 12510 12510 12929 1323 1297 1466
Commercial Veh Enforcement ## ## 136 ## ## 57
Residential Burglaries 63 61 44 11 9 8
Non-Residential Burglaries**** 24 11 15 4 2 0
All Burglary Attempts**** 12 11 7 1 1 3
Thefts 436 390 483 55 36 64
Vehicle Thefts 30 16 21 3 2 1
Recovered Stolen Vehicles**** 7 7 5 0 0 0
Attempted Vehicle Theft**** 5 3 5 1 1 0
DUI 181 198 177 23 25 28
Liquor Laws 55 57 35 4 8 3
Drug Offenses 153 143 134 16 15 18
Homicides 1 0 0 0 0 0
Robbery 5 2 8 1 0 3
Assault 101 88 94 4 7 12
Total Arrests*** 1370 1854 1532 167 178 168
Assigned Cases 858 576 557 78 59 67
Alarms (Residential) 647 724 674 72 70 66
Alarms (Business) 316 313 394 35 36 38
K9 Searches 134 209 214 6 25 35
First Aid Calls 1820 1809 1769 178 205 185
Accidents 458 403 365 43 38 50
Citations (Traffic)** 7366 6156 4517 799 510 **
Warnings 2444 5389 5018 234 587 539
Repair Orders 557 855 1082 47 135 242
Public Assists* 1706 1624 1717 122 212 167
Reserve Man Hours 281 1877 959 62 117.5 42
Dark House Checks* 7115 10515 12750 969 1753 1735
Drug Task Force Arrest 46 303 91 0 19 5

CVAP Dark House Cks 5759 5655 8037 850 1177 988
CVAP Public Assists 723 597 672 56 85 40
CVAP Total Hours 11535.5 10275.5 12928.5 1216 1088.5 1205.5
*Totals include CVAP  ** Traffic data delayed 30 days due to data entry backlog

## New Category as of 01/01/10

***As of 1/1/09 "Total Arrests" are compiled through the Spillman database and include all cite and release arrests along with all physical arrests. The 
"Total Arrests" line has been updated through this Spillman database method for previous years for comparison.  ****Burglary Attempts and Non-

Residential Burglaries/Vehicle Theft Attempts have and Stolen Vehicle Recoveries have been separated from total counts as of August, 2010



# of calls % # of calls %

Dispatch Time < 1 minute 30 97% Dispatch Time < 2 minute 84 100%
                     > 1 minute 1 3%                     > 2 minute 0 0%
Travel Time   < 4 minutes 24 77% Travel Time    < 6 minutes 75 89%
                    > 4 minutes 7 23%                     > 6 minutes 9 11%

27 87% 80 95%
4 13% 4 5%

Total Calls Total Calls

# of calls % # of calls %

Dispatch Time < 5 minute 286 100% Dispatch Time < 10 minute 788 98%
                     > 5 minute 1 0% > 10 minute 19 2%
Travel Time   <10 minutes 259 90% Travel Time    < 20 minutes 793 98%

>10 minutes 28 10%                     > 20 minutes 14 2%

276 96% 795 99%
11 4% 12 1%

Total Calls Total Calls
 

ORO VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT
SEPTEMBER 2010

> 30 minutes

Total Response Time

Priority 4

< 8 minutes
> 8 minutes

84

Total Response Time

Priority 1

287

< 15 minutes
> 15 minutes

< 5 minutes
> 5 minutes

Priority 3

Total Response Time

31

Priority 2

807

Total Response Time
< 30 minutes



    Item #:  1. F.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Quarterly Prcourement Report

Information
Subject
Procurement Division Quarterly Report - July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Summary

Discussion

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Link: Q3 2010 Report



 ORO VALLEY  QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT -  October 2010 

 Awarded Contracts  
 Solicitation Title Department Awarded Contractor Award Date Amount Notes 
  Number 

 10 044 JOC FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICES WATER SUNWESTERN CONTRACTORS; SABINO 9 /15/2010 $0.00 NEGOTIATED REDUCTIONS IN  
  ELECTRIC RATES OF APPROX. 20%  
 WITH SABINO 
 SUNWESTERN RATES WITHIN  
 COMPETITIVE RANGE 

 10 049 SOLAR PV INSTALLATION PLANNING AND ZONING APS ENERGY SERVICES, INC. 7 /9 /2010 $2,369,288.00 

 10 051 WELL E-1 B EQUIPPING AND SITE  WATER CURRIER CONSTRUCTION INC. 8 /25/2010 $445,431.00 OV 20-01-10 
 IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE -  
 $579,000 

 Friday, October 22, 2010 Page 1 of 1 



 ORO VALLEY  QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT -  October 2010 

 Awarded Contracts  
 Solicitation Title Department Awarded Contractor Award Date Amount Notes 
  Number 

 11 001 STEAM PUMP RANCH  PUBLIC WORKS CONCORD GENERAL CONTRACTING,  9 /3 /2010 $370,400.00 APPROXIMATELY $40K LESS  
 REHABILITATION AND REPAIRS INC THAN ORIGINAL BID 

 11 005 ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER  HUMAN RESOURCES TRAAEN & ASSOCIATES 9 /24/2010 $3,600.00 $3,350 PLUS MILEAGE 
 CANDIDATE ASSESSMENT 

 Friday, October 22, 2010 Page 1 of 1 



ORO VALLEY QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT October 2010 

Current Solicitations / Agreements 
Solicitation  Title Department Opening  Notes 
Number Date 

 11 002 EL CONQUISTADOR C-D BOOSTER STATION WATER OV20-02-10 

 11 004 POOL UPGRADE AND EXPANSION FEASIBILITYPARKS AND RECREATION10/19/2010 
  STUDY 

 11 006 SOLAR LIGHTING FOR BIG WASH RAMADA PUBLIC WORKS 

 11 007 PISTACHIO / POMEGRANATE DRAINAGE  PUBLIC WORKS 
 IMPROVEMENTS 

 11 008 WEB REPORTING PORTAL IT 

 Friday, October 22, 2010 Page 1 of 1 



    Item #:  1. G.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Amanda Jacobs, Economic Development Manager
Submitted By: Amanda Jacobs, Town Manager's Office
Department: Town Manager's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Metropolitan Tucson Convention and Visitors Bureau Quarterly Report: July 1, 2010 - September 30,
2010

SUMMARY:
The 2010/11 Financial Participation Agreement (FPA) between the Town of Oro Valley and the
Metropolitan Tucson Convention and Visitors Bureau (MTCVB) stipulates that a quarterly report be
compiled by MTCVB and submitted to the Economic Development Division and Mayor and Council.  The
enclosed report satisfies the FPA requirement for the first quarter of FY 10/11.

DISCUSSION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
The FY 10/11 FPA between the Town of Oro Valley and MTCVB is $71,800.

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Information only.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This report for information only.

Attachments
Link: FY2010-11 MTCVB FPA
Link: MTCVB First Quarter Report





















    Item #:  1. H.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  

Submitted By: Arinda Asper, Town Manager's Office

Information
Subject
Public Safety Providers Quarterly Report to Council - July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Attachments
Link: Public Safety Providers Quarterly Report















    Item #:  1. I.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Daniel G. Sharp, Police

Chief
Submitted By: Colleen Muhr, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)10 - 79 Authorizing and Approving an Amendment to the Intergovernmental Master
Agreement between Pima County and the Town of Oro Valley for Joint Use of Facility Space

SUMMARY:
On May 5, 2010, the Town Council adopted Resolution No. (R) 10-24, approving an Intergovernmental
Master Agreement between Pima County and the Town of Oro Valley for joint use of facility space
(Exhibit "A").  This agreement was reached to facilitate the construction of the Pima County Wireless
Integrated Network (PCWIN) for county wide public safety communication including the Oro Valley
Police Department.  Included in the Master Agreement was a Site-Specific Supplemental Agreement
(SSA) which we are requesting be amended to reflect agreements reached as a result of the continued
planning and evaluation of the county wide system.

DISCUSSION:
Since the original agreement was adopted, Pima County has become aware of a potential need to
increase the structural capability of the monopole antenna tower to support antenna arrays for multiple
cellular providers.  The original design of the tower would support the Pima County Wireless Integrated
Network (PCWIN) antenna load and the needs of the Town of Oro Valley with an additional growth factor
of approximately twenty-five percent.  Pima County estimates the original design would have supported
a single cellular antenna array. 

The amended SSA will allow the monopole tower to be engineered to support a second cellular antenna
array at an additional cost of approximately $30,000. To support three or more cellular arrays, a three or
four legged self-supporting tower would be required. Given the specific limitations of the site, and
inconsistencies between a new three or four legged tower design and our public messaging, Pima
County and the Town of Oro Valley, through the amended SSA, agree to a monopole tower engineered
to support two cellular arrays and the future antenna loads for the PCWIN project.  The monopole tower
will be provided by the PCWIN project. If the amended SSA is approved, the monopole erected will be
no higher than initially presented and will be consistent in appearance with the conceptual design
presented to the public.  The base of the Monopole will be 38” in diameter. The top diameter will be
12.56” 

The County and Town previously discussed the possibility that new PCWIN microwave links might also
provide additional service and cost saving opportunities for the Town.  Upon further discussion, the
County agrees to provide the Police Department, through the amended SSA the following:

(1)  data connectivity to support a video conferencing link between the Oro Valley Town Hall complex
and the Pima County Adult Detention center for the purpose of establishing services to support video
court arraignments;
(2) to provide connectivity between the Police Department and the Pima County Sheriff’s Department’s
Spillman Records Management System.  This will permit the Town to discontinue commercial
telecommunication services supporting the Spillman Link. 

The amended SSA creates additional benefits to the Town such as:
(1) allow enhanced communication with police department substations by providing more direct



(1) allow enhanced communication with police department substations by providing more direct
connections and high band width data communication, such as streaming video, off site servers for
backup, and the potential for town wide wireless connectivity;
(2) allow for the eventual provision of remote data warehousing by utilizing the high speed band width to
move data quickly and creating redundancy at off site locations.
(3) enhanced communication for other town departments to utilize the current 450 MHz Legacy system,
enabling Public Works, Water, IT, Parks and other departments to have direct radio contact with the
police department, as well as each other, beneficial particularly in any emergency situation that is
managed by town emergency operations team. 

In consideration of the County’s capital improvement investment, and the ongoing provision of these
telecommunication services, the Town of Oro Valley and Pima County agree to share any future revenue
realized from additional co-location of equipment on the tower, an added benefit that is expected to be
more profitable and was not in the original agreement with the Town.

The provision for sharing revenue at 50% was included in the amendment in order to facilitate
coordination and consistency by all PCWIN partners.

The following changes have been made to the master agreement:

Section III Alterations – References to the -48VDC charger/regulator/distribution system are deleted.
This equipment is defined in Section IV Equipment, and will be retained by the County as personal
property.

Section IV Equipment – A summary description of County’s equipment has been inserted.

Section V Space – This section is amended to clearly state that the space to be licensed to the County is
an approximately 12 foot x 16 foot motorcycle garage that will be converted into an equipment room. The
description is also expanded to include a description of the space required for the dispatch console
equipment.

Section VI Other Services – This section is updated to reflect that the Town will provide generator
backup power and to define the minimum generator runtime on County equipment electrical load.

Original IGA Section IX - Amended Site Specific Section VIII - Special Terms and Conditions – This
section is updated to delete references to the County retaining all improvements as personal property.
The language is further modified to specify a revenue sharing arrangement in consideration of the
County’s capital improvement costs and the commitments above.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Potential positive fiscal impacts are expected to result from a variety of items, some of which will include
eliminating a T-1 line at a savings of approximately $300 per month, video conferencing for court
appearances replacing prisoner transports and related costs while enhancing officer safety.  The new
agreement will increase opportunity for higher revenue sharing from the lease of cellular service antenna
space.   Future impacts will include elimination of future T-1 needs as well as replacing current point to
point phone circuits with wireless technology.

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Acceptance is recommended.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to adopt Resolution No. (R) 10 - 79, Authorizing and Approving an Amendment to the
Intergovernmental Master Agreement between Pima County and the Town of Oro Valley for Joint Use of
Facility Space.

Attachments



Link: Resolution 10-79
Link: Exhibit 'A'
Link: Exhibit 'B'
Link: Statement and Scope of Work



RESOLUTION NO. (R) 10-79 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL MASTER AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN PIMA COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF ORO 
VALLEY FOR JOINT USE OF FACILITY SPACE 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona vested with all 
associated rights, privileges and benefits and is entitled to the immunities and exemptions granted 
municipalities and political subdivisions under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arizona and 
the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the Town is authorized to enter into or renew 
agreements for joint and cooperative action with other public agencies; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town is authorized to establish and maintain the Oro Valley Police Department, 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-240 (B)(12); and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 5, 2010, Mayor and Council approved Resolution No. (R) 10-24, the 
Intergovernmental Master Agreement (IGA) with Pima County to design, procure, deploy and 
operate a countywide public safety voice communications network; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Site Specific Supplemental Agreement, attached as Exhibit “A” and an element of 
the IGA, was executed by the Town and Pima County to construct a monopole communications 
tower; and   
 
WHEREAS, Pima County proposes an amendment to the IGA, replacing Exhibit “A”, the original 
Site Specific Supplemental Agreement in the IGA with an Amended and Restated Site Specific 
Supplemental Agreement, in order to increase the structural capability of the monopole antenna 
tower to support antenna arrays for multiple cellular providers. 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town to enter into the amendment to the IGA, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference, to provide for the health, safety and 
welfare of the residents in the Town of Oro Valley.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Oro Valley, Arizona, that: 
 

1. The Amended and Restated Site Specific Supplement Agreement to the 
Intergovernmental Master Agreement between Pima County and the Town of Oro 
Valley, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference, to 
increase the structural capability of the monopole antenna tower to support antenna 
arrays for multiple cellular providers is hereby authorized and approved. 

\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_I_Att1_Resolution 10-79.docTown of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/101810 



\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_I_Att1_Resolution 10-79.docTown of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/101810 

2. The Mayor and any other administrative officials are hereby authorized to take such 
steps as necessary to execute the Amendment.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, 
this 17th day of November, 2010. 
 
 
      TOWN OF ORO VALLEY 
      
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
            
Kathryn E. Cuvelier, Town Clerk  Tobin Rosen, Town Attorney 
 
Date:       Date:       







































 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED  
 

SITE-SPECIFIC SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 
Oro Valley Police Department 

 
 
RECITALS 
 

A. Pima County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (“County”) and the 
Town of Oro Valley, a municipal corporation (“Town”) entered into a Master 
Agreement for Joint Use of Facility Space (the “Master Agreement”) recorded 
on August 20, 2010 at Docket 13877 page 450 sequence 20101610165 of the 
records of the Pima County Recorder. 
 

B. Pursuant to the terms of the Master Agreement, a Site-Specific Supplemental 
Agreement was entered into on July 6, 2010 between County and Town for the 
Premises located at 11000 La Canada Drive, Oro Valley, Arizona at which the 
Town of Oro Valley Police Department is located (the “Site-Specific 
Supplemental Agreement”). 
 

C. County and Town desire to amend and restate the Site-Specific Supplemental 
Agreement in its entirety as set forth below. 

 
 
I. Premises 
 

“Premises” means buildings or communication towers that are owned, 
controlled, or leased by a Site Provider to which the Requestor has requested 
access. 
 
This Site-Specific Supplemental Agreement applies exclusively and specifically 
to the following Premises:  
 

Town of Oro Valley Police Department 
 

Address of Space Provider Premises:  
 

11000 La Canada Dr., Oro Valley, AZ 85737 
Pima County Assessor Parcel # 224-26-5700 

 
Coordinates (NAD83):  32.40791, -110.99518 
 
Elevation (GL) (feet):  2,999 AMSL 

Page 1 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 



Overall Tower Height with appurtenances (AGL):  New 125ft Monopole tower 
will be constructed 

 
 

List Space Provider landlord and lease information here, if applicable: 
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________ 
   

 
II. Emergency Contact Information (24-hour contact information) 
 

Space Provider: 
Oro Valley Police Department 
(520) 229-4935 
 

Requestor: 
Pima County IT Department 
(520)740-8471 
 

III. Alterations 
 

“Alteration” means rearrangement, modification, improvement, or other 
alteration or construction changes to the interior or exterior portions of the Space 
or the Premises, or any part thereof, including improvements to the power 
systems, air conditioning systems (i.e. HVAC), or other items related to the 
Space or Premises. 
 
Unless otherwise provided by this applicable Site-Specific Supplemental 
Agreement, any Alteration shall become the property of Space Provider and 
remain on the Premises at the expiration or earlier termination of this Site-
Specific Supplemental Agreement or the Master Agreement, and the title to such 
Alteration shall immediately vest in the Space Provider. 
 
Provide a description of any requested Alterations that are necessary for the 
installation, maintenance, and operation of Requestor’s Equipment, or the 
operation or maintenance of the Space or Premises in connection with the 
Equipment.    If applicable, specify any Alterations that will not become the 
property of the Space Provider. 

 
The Requestor’s alterations, as described in the attached Exhibit – 
Oro Valley Police Department - Statement of Work, will require the 
construction of a complete, new telecommunications physical facility 
located on the grounds of the Oro Valley Police Department.  The 
project will require the conversion of an existing garage into an 
equipment room, the construction of a 125ft monopole 

Page 2 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 



communication tower with concrete foundations, installation of an 
HVAC system with master controller, and installation of a 4-inch 
conduit between the converted garage and the main electronic 
equipment room. 
 

IV. Equipment 
 
“Equipment” means Requestor’s communications equipment, other associated 
support equipment and personal property, as further described here. 
 
 
Provide a summary description of the Equipment to be installed by the 
Requestor.  (Attach a complete equipment list) 

 
Requestor’s equipment will include Motorola 800 MHz repeaters, 
Ceragon microwave radios, -48VDC power plant, Motorola MCC7500 
Radio Dispatch Consoles, Motorola Conventional Site Controllers, 
Motorola APX Consolettes with digital desk sets, Motorola Simulcast 
Prime Site Controllers, antennas, and associated equipment. 
 
Exhibit – Oro Valley Police Department - Statement of Work further 
describes Requestor’s Equipment. 

 
V. Space 
 

“Space” means each individual allowable space (area) located in the Premises 
for the placement of the Equipment.  Space shall include tower space for 
antennas and coaxial cable entry ports. 

 
 

Delineation of Space 
Attach a floor plan and all applicable Requestor specifications or drawings in 
connection with this Site-Specific Supplemental Agreement. 
 
Space requirements: 
 

An existing motorcycle garage, approximately 12ft x 16ft, will be 
converted into an equipment room and licensed to Requestor for its 
equipment.  Space will also include tower space on a new 125 foot 
monopole tower to attach Requestor’s antennas as itemized in 
Exhibit – Oro Valley Police Department - Statement of Work Tables 2-
17-6, and 2-17-7. 
 
Dispatch consoles will be installed on existing furnishings provided 
by Space Provider.  Exhibit B: Motorola Dispatch Console Position 
(attached), illustrates the type and size of dispatch console and 

Page 3 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 



accessory equipment that will need to be accommodated by the 
Space Provider’s furnishings.  Requestor’s equipment will be 
positioned at four (4) dispatch positions. 
 

Rack/Cabinet Space requirement: 
Quantity of Racks:   N/A 

 
Power requirement (Volts/Amp Draw) (Duty Cycle):   
 

See Exhibit – Oro Valley Police Department - Statement of Work 
Table 2-17-3 

 
Tower Space Requirement 
 
Antenna type (s): _________________________________AGL: ____________ 
Coax type, number of runs: ______________________ 
Proposed location on tower (supply photos if available): __________________ 
Copy of FCC License attached?  Yes × No 
 
See listing of NEW antennas in Exhibit – Oro Valley Police Department - 
Statement of Work Tables 2-17-6, and 2-17-7. 

 
 

VI. Other Services or Resources to be Provided by Space Provider 
 

Describe all other services to be provided by the Space Provider.  The 
description should include services such as microwave or optic fiber network 
connectivity circuits to support Requestor’s Equipment, engineering services, 
rigger services to install or maintain antennas, or any other services or resources 
relating to the Space or any Alteration which the Space Provider has agreed to 
provide. 

 
a. UPS Backup Power?  Yes × No 

Expected Minimum Runtime: ______(hrs) 
 

b. Generator Backup Power? × Yes  No 
Expected Minimum Runtime:  72  (hrs) 
 

Requestor’s Equipment electrical equipment load is described in Exhibit 
– Oro Valley Police Department - Statement of Work, Table 2-17-3.  
Requestor’s Equipment generator load contribution is estimated at 
30.3KW.   

 
c. DC Battery Power  Yes × No 

Expected Minimum Runtime: ______(hrs) 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 



d. Commercial Electric Service × Yes  No 
Number and size of circuits:  Space Provider to provide 208/120 VAC, 3 
Phase, 4 wire, 300 amp electric service to Requestor’s equipment. 

 
e. Alarm Monitoring Services  Yes × No 

Specify 
Services:___________________________________________   
   

 
f. All Other Services 
            
            
            
             

 
VII. Costs 
 

A. Antenna and Rack 
Space: 

 
Total Monthly Rental $0 

 
B. Utilities: 

 
Total Monthly Service Cost $0  
 
All utilities will be provided at Space Provider’s expense 

 
C. Connectivity Network 

Services: 
 

Total Monthly Service Cost $0 
 

D. Direct cost for other 
services or resources requested from Space Provider: 

 
None 

 
E. Payment Terms (as 

applicable) 
 

N/A 
 
VIII. Special Terms and Conditions 
 

As applicable, describe any other special terms and conditions, such as 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 



electrical, HVAC, or power studies, cultural or environmental assessments, 
geotechnical evaluations, structural analysis, or other engineering studies 
required. 
 
The attached Exhibit SOW will serve as the description and location of the 
Space requested by the Requestor.   
 
Requestor shall provide to Space Provider the results of an R-56 
Grounding Audit conducted by Motorola.  The Parties will mutually agree 
on any grounding upgrades that are to be provided by the Requestor. 
 
Any studies required for the construction of the site will be the 
responsibility of the Requestor. 
 
Requestor will provide “as-built” documentation to the Space Provider, 
including copies of all FCC licenses applicable to the operation of the 
Equipment. 
 
Both Parties agree that pursuant to the Master Site Agreement, Section 
7.3.2, the new 125ft monopole tower, and other alterations described 
herein, will become the property of the Space Provider.  In consideration of 
the Requestor’s capital investment, the Space Provider agrees that it will 
collect fees for any future third party use of the new tower, and that any 
resulting revenue will be divided 50% to the Requestor, and 50% to the 
Space Provider in perpetuity, payable monthly. 
 

 
IX. Construction Period 
 

Estimated construction start date: TBD 
 
Estimated construction completion date: TBD 

 
 
PIMA COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (REQUESTOR): 
 

 
 
  Dated ________________ 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   

Page 6 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 



Lori Godoshian, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
   
Dr. John Moffatt 
Pima County Office of Strategic Technology Planning 
 
 
Town of Oro Valley, a municipal corporation (Space Provider): 
 
 
  Dated ________________ 
Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kathryn E. Cuvelier, Town Clerk 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT DETERMINATION 
 
The foregoing Site Specific Agreement between Pima County and the Town of Oro 
Valley has been reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 et seq. by the undersigned, who 
have determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted 
under the laws of the State of Arizona to those Parties to the Master Agreement 
represented by the undersigned. 
 
PIMA COUNTY: 
 
 
 
  
Neil J. Konigsberg, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Division 
 
 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY: 
 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 

http://www.azleg.state.az.us/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc=/ars/11/00952.01.htm&Title=11&DocType=ARS
http://www.azleg.state.az.us/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc=/ars/11/00952.htm&Title=11&DocType=ARS
http://www.azleg.state.az.us/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc=/ars/11/00952-01.htm&Title=11&DocType=ARS


 
  
Tobin Rosen, Town Attorney 

Page 8 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 



Page 9 of 9 
 

Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B' 

 
Exhibit 

 
Oro Valley Police Department 

Statement of Work 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[References to “Sections 1 and 3 of this document” in Exhibit - Oro Valley Police 
Department Statement of Work, refer to Pima County Solicitation for Qualifications No. 
1001837 for Site Development Services for the PCWIN Land Mobile Radio System, 
Attachment ‘A-1’ to Appendix ‘A’: Site Development Statement of Work (Section 1), and 
Attachment ‘A-2’ to Appendix ‘A’: Site Development Specifications (Section 3) which is 
available through the PCWIN Support Office at (520) 243-7200.] 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 1 

 

 

2.17 Oro Valley Police Department – Statement of Work 
2.17.1 Project Location 
Oro Valley Police Department - Site Code "OVPD" 
11000 La Canada Dr. 
Oro Valley, AZ 85737 
(32 24 28.5 N, 110 59 42.6 W) 
 
The following tables are referenced in this section: 
Table 2-17-1 Oro Valley Police Department Overall Task List 
Table 2-17-2 Oro Valley Police Department Garage Conversion & Electric Power 
Table 2-17-3 Oro Valley Police Department Electrical Equipment Load 
Table 2-17-4 Oro Valley Police Department BTU Heat Load 
Table 2-17-5 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Design Specifications 
Table 2-17-6 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Data 
Table 2-17-7 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Loading 
 
The following figures are referenced in this section: 
Figure 2-17-1 Oro Valley Police Department Site Location 
Figure 2-17-2 Oro Valley Police Department Site Location with Proposed Equipment Aerial View 
Figure 2-17-3 Oro Valley Police Department Proposed Equipment Room & Tower Location 
Figure 2-17-4 Oro Valley Police Department Proposed Equipment Room Location 
 
The following drawings are referenced in this section: 
Drawing 17-OVPD –EP-S Oro Valley PD Existing/Proposed Site Plan Layout 
Drawing 17-OVPD –P-R Oro Valley PD Proposed Equipment Room Layout 
Drawing 17-OVPD –P-T Oro Valley PD Proposed Tower Plan Layout 

 

2.17.2 Scope of Work 
The General Contractor shall coordinate all project activities at this site with the PCWIN Project Manager. 
 
The Pima County Solicitation for Qualifications No. 1001837 for Site Development Services for the PCWIN 
Land Mobile Radio System, Attachment ‘A-1’ to Appendix ‘A’: Site Development Statement of Work (Section 
1) and Attachment ‘A-2’ to Appendix ‘A’: Site Development Specifications (Section 3) shall be the governing 
document. 
 
The objective of this project is the construction of a complete, new telecommunications physical facility 
located on the grounds of the Oro Valley Police Department in Oro Valley, AZ.  The project will require the 
conversion of an existing garage into an equipment room, the construction of a 125ft monopole 
communication tower, the design, procurement and installation of a -48VDC charger/regulator/distribution 
system and the installation of a 4-inch conduit between the converted garage and the main electronic 
equipment room. 
 
The General Contractor shall not be responsible for installing the antennas, coax/waveguide or required 
mounting appurtenances on the tower.  The actual installation of antennas and coax/waveguide and required 
mounting appurtenances is the responsibility of the radio and microwave vendors.  
 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 2 

 

 

The General Contractor shall be responsible for the implementation of the following tasks: 
Table 2-17-1 Oro Valley Police Department Overall Task List 

Table 2-17-1 Oro Valley Police Department Overall Task List 

# Oro Valley Police Department - Overall Task List

1
The General Contractor shall be responsible for the conversion of the existing garage into an equipment 
room, as defined in Section 2.17.4, and the Oro Valley Police Department site specific specifications 
located within this section.  

2
The General Contractor shall design, procure, and construct a 125ft monopole communication tower with 
concrete foundation and connecting ice bridge, as per the following section 2.17.6.

3 The General Contractor shall specify, procure, and install any necessary concrete foundations.

4 The General Contractor shall install a grounding system as per Motorola R56 Standards.  

5
The General Contractor shall be responsible for all required construction drawings, permits and as-built 
drawings.

6
The General Contractor shall design, procure, and install a -48VDC battery plant complete with charger 
regulator system in accordance Section 2.17.4.

7
The General Contractor shall install a 208/120 VAC, three phase, 4 wire, 42 pole, 225 amp surface mount 
main panel.

8
The General Contractor shall specify, procure, and install the coax/waveguide window containing nine 4-inch 
ports.

9 The General Contractor shall specify, procure, and install a HVAC system with Master Controller.

10
The General Contractor shall install a 4-inch communication conduit between the existing equipment room 
located in the main building and the newly converted equipment room.

 
2.17.3 Site Compound Design and Drawings 
The Oro Valley Police Department has provided a garage for conversion into an equipment room and a 
location to build a communication tower as shown in Figures 2-17-3 and 2-17-4 and Drawing 17-OVPD-EP-S.  
 

2.17.4 Garage Conversion & Electric Power 
The Oro Valley Police Department has a garage that will be converted into the PCWIN equipment room as 
shown in Figure 2-17-3 and 2-17-4 and detailed in Table 2-17-2.   
 
The General Contractor shall be responsible for the conversions of the garage into a weather tight equipment 
room with an ice bridge connecting the equipment room to the monopole.  There is also a requirement for a 4-
inch conduit to be installed between the converted garage and the main electronic equipment room.   
 
The following specifications are modeled on; Absolyte GP Series batteries. The Absolyte documentation 
referenced is Absolyte GP Section 26.1 2008-08, "Constant Current Specifications, 104AH to 4800AH, 1 
Minute to 24 Hours" and Absolyte GP Section 92.61 2008-09 "Installation and Operating Instructions for 
Absolyte GP Batteries"; Eltek Valere "V-Series Power Family" Integrated DC Power System, Specifications 
and Installation Manual.  These are used for reference only and are not to be construed as a recommendation 
of a specific manufacturers make or model.  Any manufactures equivalent units may be used. 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 3 

 

 

Table 2-17-2 Oro Valley Police Department Garage Conversion into an Equipment Room 
Table 2-17-2 Oro Valley Police Department Garage Conversion & Electric Power 

#

1

2 Electrical System Design The service entrance shall be on the same wall as the waveguide window. 

3

4
Power Supply A current consumption 
(includes 25% future growth)

350 Amps @ 48VDC nominal

5 Power Supply A - Run Time Capability 2 hrs
6 Power Supply A - Minimum Voltage 43.4VDC
7 Power Supply A – Recharge Current 40Amps
8 Power Supply A – Recharge Time Fully recharged within 24 hours (as per Motorola R56)
9 Battery Module A location As per Drawing 17-OVPD-P-R

10 Power Supply A charger/regulator 
N+1 Rectifier design (Eltek Valere V-Series Power Family or equivalent).  In 
the event of a major power failure, the charger/regulator must be capable of 
supplying full station load plus battery re-charge current to the A side load

11 Power Supply A distribution panel
The distribution panel shall have a minimum of 24 fully protected load 
positions

12
Power Supply B current consumption 
(includes 25% future growth)

350 Amps @ 48VDC  nominal

13 Power Supply B - Run Time Capability 2 hrs
14 Power Supply B - Minimum Voltage 43.4VDC
15 Power Supply B – Recharge Current 40Amps
16 Power Supply A – Recharge Time Fully recharged within 24 hours (as per Motorola R56)
17 Battery Module B location As per Drawing 17-OVPD-P-R

18 Power Supply B charger/regulator 
N+1 Rectifier design (Eltek Valere V-Series Power Family or equivalent).  In 
the event of a major power failure, the charger/regulator must be capable of 
supplying full station load plus battery re-charge current to the A side load

19
Power Supply A & B common distribution 
panel

Power Supply A and Power Supply B must utilize a common distribution 
buss system. The A & B rectifiers must be capable of load sharing.  The 
failure of either power supply A or power supply B should not affect the 
voltage to the -48VDC buss nor current limit the -48VDC buss below the 
minimum level required to maintain full simulcast system operation. The 
distribution system should have a minimum of 24 fully protected circuits

20

21

22

23

24
The General Contractor shall install a 4-inch communication conduit between the existing equipment room located in 
the main building and the newly converted equipment room .

The General Contractor shall specify, procure, and install the HVAC, with Master Controller, system.  There shall be 
redundant 4-ton units each solely capable of cooling the Room under full electronic equipment load and located as 
shown in drawing 17-OVPD-P-R.  The electrical equipment heat load requirements are listed in Table 2-17-4 BTU Heat 
Load.

The General Contractor shall specify, procure, and install interior lighting and emergency lighting. 

Oro Valley PD - Garage Conversion & Electric Power

The General Contractor shall convert the existing garage into a weathertight equipment room in accordance with 
drawing 17-OVPD-P-R. The following specifications apply.

The General Contractor shall design, procure, and install a -48VDC battery plant complete with charger regulator 
system in accordance with the following specifications.  The battery plant and charger regulators will be two identical 
but separate systems, A & B.   The charger/regulators shall be modern Integrated DC Power Systems and both the A 
& B charger regulator and distribution will fit in one equipment rack. Power Supply A and Power Supply B must utilize 
a common distribution buss system. The A & B rectifiers must be capable of load sharing.  The following specifications 
apply:  The electrical equipment load requirements are listed in Table 2-17-3

The General Contractor shall install a 208/120 VAC, three phase, 4 wire, 42 pole, 225 amp surface mount main panel 
with the Amps Interrupting Current (AIC) determined by the General Contractor.  The General Contractor shall procure, 
and install the electrical service panel.  The electrical equipment load requirements are listed in Table 2-17-3.  The 
panel location is showin in Drawing 17-OVPD-P-R.

The General Contractor shall specify, procure, and install the coax/waveguide window containing nine 4-inch ports. The 
RF Cable Entry Window will be located on wall in close proximity to the waveguide bridge and communication tower as 
shown in drawing 17-OVPD-P-R.

 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 4 

 

 

Table 2-17-3 Oro Valley Police Department Electrical Equipment Load 
Table 2-17-3 Oro Valley Police Department Electrical Equipment Load 

# Equipment
TOTAL  
-48VDC 

Amp 

TOTAL  
-48VDC 
watts 

Total AC 
amps 

(208V-3Ø)

Total AC 
amps 
(120V)

TOTAL AC 
watts

Power 
Wire 

Gauge 
(AWG)

Max 
Distance 

from 
Batteries 

(ft)

Number 
Of 

Breakers/
Rack

Size Of 
Breakers 
(Amps)

1 Simulcast Controller 36.4 1747.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 2 80 2 40
2 Comparators 82.3 3950.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 2 80 2 70
3 GTR 8000 ESS 1 62.1 2980.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 2 80 2 50
4 Network Equipment 23.5 1128.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2 80 2 35
5 Control Station 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.6 1272.0
6 Control Station 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.1 492.0
7 Microwave Equipment 13.7 655.6 0.0 0.0 0.0
8 Charger/Regulator (battery recharge load) 0.0 0.0 18.5 0.0 3839.7
9 Charger/Regulator 208V load @ 90% efficiency 0.0 0.0 55.9 0.0 11624.4

10 Equipment Sub Total 218.0 10462.0 74.3 14.7 17228.1
11 25% growth factor 54.5 2615.5 18.6 3.7 4307.0
12 Total Equipment 272.4 13077.5 92.9 18.4 21535.1
13 Proposed HVAC Load N/A N/A 42.0 0.0 8736.0
14 Total 208/120VAC N/A N/A 134.9 18.4 30271.1

15

16

Customer Supplied

Diesel Powered Generator Altitude Deration & Sizing

Diesel Tank Sizing

The Oro Valley PD PCWIN equipment will be provided emergency power by the buildings emergency generator system.  No PCWIN generator is 
required.

The Oro Valley PD PCWIN equipment will be provided emergency power by the buildings emergency generator system.  No PCWIN fuel tank is 
required.

Oro Valley Police Department - Electrical Equipment Load

 
2.17.5 HVAC System 
The conversion of the garage into a PCWIN electronic equipment room will require the addition of a 
redundant HVAC cooling system. 
 
The following HVAC related specifications are modeled on Bard Wall Mount series of HVAC units and 
MC3000 Master Controller.  These are used for reference only and are not to be construed as a 
recommendation of a specific manufacturers make or model.  Any manufactures equivalent units may be 
used.   
Table 2-17-4 Oro Valley Police Department BTU Heat Load 

Table 2-17-4 Oro Valley Police Department BTU Heat Load 

# Equipment
Total HVAC Load

(BTU/hr)
1 Simulcast Controller 5963
2 Comparators 13482
3 GTR 8000 ESS 1 10173
4 Network Equipment 3850
5 Control Station 4341
6 Control Station 1679
7 Microwave Equipment 2237
8 Charger/Regulator 208V load @ 90% efficiency 4408
9 Equipment Sub Total 46134
10 25% growth factor 11534
11 Total Heat Load 57668
12 Total Heat Load in TONS 4.8

Oro Valley Police Department - BTU Heat Load

 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 5 

 

 

2.17.6 Communication Tower Design  
A 125ft monopole with concrete foundation shall be constructed as shown in Drawings 17-OVPD-EP-S, 17-
OVPD-P-T, and Figures 2-17-2 and 2-17-3. 
 
The monopole placement shall obtain as much camouflaging as possible by placing the monopole in the 
shadow of the of the buildings turret, as shown in Figures 2-17-2 and 2-17-3. 
 
The antennas to be mounted on the tower are shown in Table 2-17-6. 
 
The mechanical characteristics for the proposed antennas are shown in Table 2-17-7. 
 
The General Contractor shall be responsible for the Communication Tower design based upon the following 
Table 2-17-5.  
 

Table 2-17-5 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Design Specifications 
Table 2-17-5 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Design Specifications 

#

1

2
3
4 The structure type shall be a monopole.

5

6

7

Oro Valley PD - Communication Tower Design Specifications

The General Contractor shall design, procure, and install a monopole communication tower in accordance with 
the drawings 17- OVPD -EP-S, 17-OVPD-P-T and FIGURES 2-17-2 and 2-17-3.  The new tower will be 
designed in accordance with TIA-222-G “Structural Standard for Antennas Supporting Structures and 
Antennas” and with a “Future Capacity Overbuild” as specified in Section 3.7 of the specification.

The General Contractor shall provide construction drawings and as-built drawings.
The Tower Structure Height will be 125ft AGL.

The microwave dish "Twist & Sway" limits will be specified by the microwave vendor.

The General Contractor shall procure and install a 2ft wide ice bridge between the tower and the equipment 
room.

The General Contractor shall place the monopole on the center-line of the "clubhouse" and the center-line of 
the equipment room, as shown in Figures 2-17-2 and 2-17-3.

 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 6 

 

 

Table 2-17-6 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Data 
Table 2-17-6 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Data 

Ant # Item Detail
Tower Structure Height 125ft
Tower Structure Type monopole

Existing Antenna Loading None - new tower to be built
1 120ft - LMR Rx
2 120ft - LMR Rx
3 120ft - Tower Top Amplifier
4 110ft - 2.6ft Dish
5 95ft - Cell Array
6 95ft - Tower Top Amplifier
7 85ft - 4ft Dish
8 80ft - LMR Tx
9 70ft - Cell Array

10 70ft - Tower Top Amplifier
11 60ft - Flat Panel Array
12 60ft - Flat Panel Array
13 60ft - Flat Panel Array
14 60ft - Flat Panel Array
15 60ft - Flat Panel Array
16 60ft - Flat Panel Array
17 55ft - 4ft Dish
18 40ft - Console Dispatch Antenna (Migrated)
19 30ft - Console Dispatch Antenna (Migrated)
20 30ft - GPS Antenna
21 30ft - GPS Antenna
22 20ft - 4ft Dish

Coax & Waveguide Loading See TABLE 2-17-7
Tower Structural Analysis Required None - new tower to be built

Microwave Dish "Twist & Sway" limits As specified by microwave vendor

Oro Valley PD Tower Data

New/Future Antennas

 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 7 

 

 

Table 2-17-7 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Loading  
Table 2-17-7 Oro Valley Police Department Tower Loading 

  

A
n

t 
#

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
M

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 
H

e
ig

h
t 

(f
t)

A
n

te
n

n
a

 
T

yp
e

A
n

te
n

n
a

 M
a

ke
 &

 
M

o
d

e
l

M
o

u
n

t 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n

L
M

R
 

A
n

te
n

n
a

 
L

e
n

g
th

 (
in

)

W
e

ig
h

t 
(l

b
s)

 
(e

x
c 

m
o

u
n

t 
&

 
ic

e
)

W
in

d
 A

re
a

 
(s

q
-f

t)

u
W

a
ve

 D
is

h
 

D
ia

m
e

te
r 

(S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
D

is
h

 w
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
R

a
d

o
m

e
)

T
o

w
e

r
L

e
g

 o
r 

F
a

ce

A
zi

m
u

th
(°

)

T
ra

n
sm

is
si

o
n

 
L

in
e

/
W

a
ve

g
u

id
e

T
ra

n
sm

is
si

o
n

 
L

in
e

/
W

a
ve

g
u

id
e

 r
u

n
-

le
n

g
th

 (
e

st
, 

le
n

g
th

+
25

ft
)

T
ra

n
sm

is
si

o
n

 
L

in
e

/
W

a
ve

g
u

id
e

 
w

e
ig

h
t 

(1
b

s/
ft

)

1
N

ew
12

0
LM

R
-R

x
A

nt
el

 B
C

D
-8

00
7

cl
am

p
85

.9
20

1.
6

N
/A

TB
D

O
m

ni
 7

/8
14

5
0.

29

2
N

ew
12

0
LM

R
-R

x
A

nt
el

 B
C

D
-8

00
7

cl
am

p
85

.9
20

1.
6

N
/A

TB
D

O
m

ni
 7

/8
14

5
0.

29

3
N

ew
12

0
To

w
er

 T
op

 
A

m
pl

ifi
er

B
ird

 4
28

-8
3H

-0
1

cl
am

p
N

/A
20

TB
D

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

4
N

ew
11

0
uW

av
e

V
H

LP
80

0-
11

-6
W

H
B

ra
ck

et
s 

to
 4

in
 

pi
pe

N
/A

48
S

ee
 D

at
a 

S
he

et
2.

6
N

/A
43

.5
1

E
W

P
90

13
5

0.
32

5
A

T&
T 

W
ire

le
ss

95
C

el
lu

la
r 

A
rr

ay

P
ow

er
w

av
e 

R
A

11
.7

72
1.

00
 (

12
 -

 
12

0°
 P

an
el

s)
S

ec
to

r 
F

ra
m

es
62

16
.4

TB
D

N
/A

A
-B

-C
0°

/1
20

°/
24

0°
 7

/8
88

0.
29

6
A

T&
T 

W
ire

le
ss

95
TT

A
P

ow
er

w
av

e 
LP

G
18

60
1 

(1
2 

- 
TT

A
s)

S
ec

to
r 

F
ra

m
es

N
/A

9.
9

TB
D

N
/A

A
-B

-C
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

7
N

ew
85

uW
av

e
V

H
LP

X4
-1

1-
6W

H
B

ra
ck

et
s 

to
 4

in
 

pi
pe

N
/A

10
1

S
ee

 D
at

a 
S

he
et

4
N

/A
26

1.
73

E
W

P
90

11
0

0.
32

8
N

ew
80

LM
R

-T
x

A
nt

el
 B

C
D

-8
00

7
cl

am
p

85
.9

20
1.

6
N

/A
TB

D
O

m
ni

 7
/8

10
5

0.
29

9
A

T&
T 

W
ire

le
ss

70
C

el
lu

la
r 

A
rr

ay

P
ow

er
w

av
e 

R
A

11
.7

72
1.

00
 (

12
 -

 
12

0°
 P

an
el

s)
S

ec
to

r 
F

ra
m

es
62

16
.4

TB
D

N
/A

A
-B

-C
0°

/1
20

°/
24

0°
 7

/8
88

0.
29

10
A

T&
T 

W
ire

le
ss

70
TT

A
P

ow
er

w
av

e 
LP

G
18

60
1 

(1
2 

- 
TT

A
s)

S
ec

to
r 

F
ra

m
es

N
/A

9.
9

TB
D

N
/A

A
-B

-C
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

11
F

ut
ur

e
60

F
la

t 
P

an
el

Te
ra

be
am

 A
5.

3F
P

23
-M

cl
am

p
15

.3
9.

7
1.

5
N

/A
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
85

TB
D

12
F

ut
ur

e
60

F
la

t 
P

an
el

Te
ra

be
am

 A
5.

3F
P

23
-M

cl
am

p
15

.3
9.

7
1.

5
N

/A
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
85

TB
D

13
F

ut
ur

e
60

F
la

t 
P

an
el

Te
ra

be
am

 A
5.

3F
P

23
-M

cl
am

p
15

.3
9.

7
1.

5
N

/A
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
85

TB
D

14
F

ut
ur

e
60

F
la

t 
P

an
el

Te
ra

be
am

 A
5.

3F
P

23
-M

cl
am

p
15

.3
9.

7
1.

5
N

/A
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
85

TB
D

15
F

ut
ur

e
60

F
la

t 
P

an
el

Te
ra

be
am

 A
5.

3F
P

23
-M

cl
am

p
15

.3
9.

7
1.

5
N

/A
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
85

TB
D

16
F

ut
ur

e
60

F
la

t 
P

an
el

Te
ra

be
am

 A
5.

3F
P

23
-M

cl
am

p
15

.3
9.

7
1.

5
N

/A
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
85

TB
D

17
F

ut
ur

e
55

uW
av

e
V

H
LP

X4
-1

1-
6W

H
B

ra
ck

et
s 

to
 4

in
 

pi
pe

N
/A

10
1

S
ee

 D
at

a 
S

he
et

4
N

/A
TB

D
E

W
P

90
80

0.
32

18
M

ig
ra

te
d

40
C

on
so

le
 

D
is

pa
tc

h
C

el
w

av
e 

10
02

2
cl

am
p

1.
7

1.
6

0.
14

N
/A

TB
D

O
m

ni
1/

2
65

0.
14

19
M

ig
ra

te
d

30
C

on
so

le
 

D
is

pa
tc

h
C

el
w

av
e 

10
02

2
cl

am
p

1.
7

1.
6

0.
14

N
/A

TB
D

O
m

ni
1/

2
55

0.
14

20
N

ew
30

G
P

S
TB

D
C

la
m

p
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
N

/A
TB

D
N

/A
TB

D
55

TB
D

21
N

ew
30

G
P

S
TB

D
C

la
m

p
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
N

/A
TB

D
N

/A
TB

D
55

TB
D

22
N

ew
20

uW
av

e
V

H
LP

X4
-1

1-
6W

H
B

ra
ck

et
s 

to
 4

in
 

pi
pe

N
/A

10
1

S
ee

 D
at

a 
S

he
et

4
N

/A
79

.3
8

E
W

P
90

45
0.

32

O
ro

 V
a

ll
e

y 
=

 1
25

ft
 m

o
n

o
p

o
le

N
ot

e:
 L

M
R

 R
x 

an
te

nn
as

 (
1 

&
 2

) 
re

qu
ire

 a
 1

0f
t 

ho
riz

on
ta

l s
pa

ci
ng

 w
ith

 t
he

 R
x 

an
te

nn
as

 m
ou

nt
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
he

ig
ht

 a
nd

 fa
ce

 o
f t

he
 t

ow
er

, 
as

 p
er

 M
ot

or
ol

a 
"P

C
W

IN
 V

oi
ce

 R
ad

io
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n"
 V

2.
1,

 P
ag

e 
31

N
ot

e:
 A

ll 
W

hi
p 

an
te

nn
a 

m
ou

nt
in

g 
he

ig
ht

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
at

 t
he

 b
as

e 
of

 t
he

 a
nt

en
na

. 
F

or
 a

ll 
ot

he
r 

an
te

nn
as

 t
he

 m
ou

nt
in

g 
he

ig
ht

 is
 a

t 
ce

nt
er

 li
ne

 o
f r

ad
ia

tio
n.



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 8 

 

 

Figure 2-17-1 Oro Valley Police Department Site Location 
Figure 2-17-1 Oro Valley Police Department Site Location 

 
 
Figure 2-17-2 Oro Valley Police Department Site Location with Proposed Equipment – Aerial View 
Figure 2-17-2 Oro Valley Police Department Site Location with Proposed Equipment Aerial 

View 

 
 



AECOM Physical Facilities IFB 
September 15, 2010 

PCWIN (Pima County Wireless Integrated 
Network) 
 

 9 

 

 

Figure 2-17-3 Oro Valley Police Department Proposed Equipment Room & Tower Location 
Figure 2-17-3 Oro Valley Police Department Proposed Equipment Room & Tower Location 

 

 
 

Figure 2-17-4 Oro Valley Police Department Proposed Equipment Room Location 
Figure 2-17-4 Oro Valley Police Department Proposed Equipment Room Location 

 









    Item #:  1. J.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Daniel G. Sharp, Police

Chief
Submitted By: Colleen Muhr, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)10 - 80 Authorizing and Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement Between the
Governor’s Office of Economic Recovery and the Town of Oro Valley Under the Public Safety
Stabilization Program

SUMMARY:
On August 27, 2010, the Governor's Office of Economic Recovery announced a $10 million grant
program for local public safety agencies using the Governor's State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF)
discretionary monies allocated from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009.

The announcement of these funds provided law enforcement and fire departments an opportunity to
make proposals for funding to enhance operations and improve crime-fighting, fire-fighting and first
response capabilities during a time of economic downturn when other sources are not available. The
intention of providing the funds to local public safety agencies was to ensure they have the resources
needed to provide safety and security to citizens in their local communities given the nationwide
downturn in revenues at all levels of government.

Eligible funding levels were established based on population. The Town of Oro Valley was eligible for a
maximum of $99,999 in grant funds. Cost sharing, matching or cost participation was not a requirement
for this program.

DISCUSSION:
The proposal requested funding for the following frozen positions:

                        One full time sworn officer                = $69,930
                        One part time reserve sworn officer = $21,000
                                                                        Total = $90,930

On October 15, 2010, the Police Department was awarded $50,000 for the remainder of the period of
performance, which is 12 months commencing October 1, 2010.  

If approved, the Police Department would propose to hire an officer January 1, 2011.  This agreement
will provide for salary, overtime and fringe benefits up to the maximum reimbursement of $50,000.

FISCAL IMPACT:
If approved, the fiscal impact for the 19 pay periods from January 1, 2011 to September 30, 2011 would
result in a $1,102.35 cost to the Town, in excess of the $50,000 reimbursable grant funding.

During the FY 11/12 budget process we will address FTE funding impact after September 30, 2011 to
either fund the position with continued SFSF funds up to four years as provided for in the grant or return
it to a frozen position through attrition in order to maintain the existing number of Police
Department frozen positions into FY 2011/12.

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. (R) 10 - 80.



SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to adopt Resolution No. (R) 10 - 80, Authorizing and Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement
Between the Governor’s Office of Economic Recovery and the Town of Oro Valley Under the Public
Safety Stabilization Program.

Attachments
Link: Resolution 10-80
Link: Exhibit 'A;



RESOLUTION NO. (R) 10-80 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF ECONOMIC RECOVERY AND THE TOWN 
OF ORO VALLEY UNDER THE PUBLIC SAFETY STABILIZATION 
PROGRAM  

 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona vested 
with all associated rights, privileges and benefits and is entitled to the immunities and 
exemptions granted municipalities and political subdivisions under the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Arizona and the United States; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley is authorized to establish and maintain the Oro Valley 
Police Department, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-240 (B)(12); and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 27, 2010, the Governor’s Office of Economic Recovery (GOER) 
announced a $10,000,000.00 grant program for local public safety agencies using the Governor’s 
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) discretionary monies allocated from the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009; and 
 
WHEREAS, this grant program allowed public service agencies to apply for funding to enhance 
operations and improve crime fighting, fire fighting and first response capabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley Police Department applied for and was awarded a grant in 
the amount of $50,000.00 and the Police Department proposes to use the monies awarded to hire 
one (1) police officer and provide for that officer’s salary, overtime and fringe benefits up to 
$50,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town to enter into the Intergovernmental Agreement, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, with the Governor’s 
Office of Economic Recovery under the Public Safety Stabilization Program to enhance 
operations and improve crime fighting and first response capabilities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, that the Intergovernmental Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by this reference, between the Town of Oro Valley and the Governor’s 
Office of Economic Recovery under the Public Safety Stabilization Program to enhance 
operations and improve crime fighting and first response capabilities by hiring one (1) police 
officer is hereby authorized and approved. 

 

\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_J_Att1_Resolution 10-80.doc  Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/102610 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief of Police of the Town Oro Valley is hereby 
authorized to take such steps as are necessary to execute and implement the terms of the 
Agreement. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, this 
17th day of November, 2010. 
 
 
       TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________   ____________________________________ 
Kathryn E. Cuvelier, Town Clerk   Tobin Rosen, Town Attorney 
 
_____________________________   ____________________________________ 
Date       Date 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 

















    Item #:  1. K.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Betty Dickens, Human Resources Director
Submitted By: Betty Dickens, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)10 - 81 Amending Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual to
rescind Policy 25, Advisory Board For Oro Valley Employees (ABOVE) and Policy 27, Annual Employee
Forum; replacing with an Administrative Directive to accomplish those policies and more

SUMMARY:
In an effort to provide greater self-determination and opportunity for employee initiatives within
the work-place environment, a multi-pronged approach has been designed to give new meaning to
"employee voice." The resolution before Council rescinds Personnel Policies 25 and 27 and will be
replaced with an Administrative Directive (AD) that moves the Town culture toward using more direct
employee input through a broader spectrum of ideas and employee-driven solutions. The new framework
for addressing employee work life and organizational opportunities, concerns and challenges will be
guided by a new Administrative Directive which governs standard operating procedures.

DISCUSSION:
HISTORY
Policies 25 and 27 were established in the mid 1990s in an effort to provide mechanisms for employees
from across the organization to (1) work in a formalized committee to address employee concerns with
management (Policy 25, ABOVE group) and (2) have an opportunity to speak out on work life issues of
concern directly to Council (Policy 27, Employee Forums).  Over the past fifteen years, these
mechanisms did not effect the kind of opportunity that was envisioned to serve the employees directly.  

In the fall of 2009, focus groups were convened representing a cross-section of employees at all levels
of the organization who met to review and critique existing employee committees and working
groups.  The ABOVE group was given a negative ranking for serving its purpose and effectiveness.  A
recommendation made by Human Resources was to eliminate this committee or revise it from the form
in which it was created.  

The creation of Employee Forums, which under Policy 27 requires once-a-year meetings between a
subcommittee of three Councilmembers and any employees who wish to attend, was a conundrum--a
challenge--from the outset.  Within the Town Code, the Council-Manager form of government provides
authority to the Town Manager with the oversight and responsibility for employee work-life issues and
the personnel system.

PROCESS IMPROVEMENT & INNOVATION
In response to a challenge by the Town Manager in December 2009, 21 employees from across the
organization volunteered to meet as the Innovations Team steering committee under guidance of
several directors with the Human Resource Director as champion, guiding and supporting the work of
the team.  Their purpose has been to develop a new framework for employee voice and innovation. 
This has been initiated to move to a more effective and positive approach in addressing employee
issues.  Innovative "idea launching" and problem-solving work groups or squads will take shape through
an employee leadership umbrella; i.e., an Innovations Team.  

The Innovations Team approach will allow solutions from employees representing all levels of the
organization.  An annual employee satisfacton survey, use of a 360 degree survey instrument, and



organization.  An annual employee satisfacton survey, use of a 360 degree survey instrument, and
regular brown bag breakfast/lunch sessions with the Town Manager and directors will provide additional
options for the "employee's voice".  Annual or bi-annual employee forums with the Town Manager are
also a tool that will be explored for interest by employees if that is desired as a complement to the
self-directed team approach. 

Each of these programs will have built-in means of circular communication with the employees to
provide regular updates and ways to address process improvement or organizational needs. The
Innovation Team squads will be integral in addressing organization-wide issues that surface,
thus empowering employees in the decision-making process towards change.  This "employee voice"
effort will also provide Town management the input, justification and resources to make fact-based
decisions, and where appropriate, move recommendations to Council for action.

All employees retain the right to speak before Council in a public setting or have private discussions on
matters that are not directly personnel-related, but the intent of this new approach is to put responsibility
for change where it can truly work; i.e., with the employee and management team.

FISCAL IMPACT:
NA

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Town Management supports the recommendation to rescind Policies 25 and 27.  Administrative
Directive 33 (draft attached) will expand the "employee voice" to a greater reach in impacting the
organizational culture and workplace environment and participate in a process designed to encourage
employee ideas, innovation and participation in sound employee solutions.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to adopt Resolution No. (R)10-81.

Attachments
Link: Resolution 10-81
Link: Personnel Policy #25
Link: Personnel Policy 27
Link: DRAFT AD 33



RESOLUTION NO. (R) 10-81 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, 
REPEALING THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY PERSONNEL 
POLICY NUMBER 25, ADVISORY BOARD FOR ORO VALLEY 
EMPLOYEES (ABOVE), AND PERSONNEL POLICY NUMBER 
27, ANNUAL EMPLOYEE FORUM, OF THE PERSONNEL 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL REGARDING 
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona 
vested with all associated rights, privileges and benefits and is entitled to the immunities 
and exemptions granted municipalities and political subdivision under the Constitution 
and laws of the State of Arizona and the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 21, 1999, the Mayor and Council adopted Ordinance No. (O) 99-
25, “The Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Code”; and  
 
WHEREAS, on May 16, 2007, the Town repealed Ordinance No. (O) 99-35 and adopted 
the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual pursuant to 
Resolution No. (R) 07-60; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town desires to repeal two (2) personnel polices regarding employee 
relations, Policy 25, Advisory Board for the Oro Valley Employees (ABOVE), and 
Policy No. 27, Annual Employee Forum, of the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies 
and Procedures Manual. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Oro Valley, that Personnel Policy No. 25, Advisory Board for Oro Valley Employees 
(attached hereto as Exhibit “A”), and Personnel Policy Number 27, Annual Employee 
Forum (attached hereto as Exhibit “B”), of the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies 
and Procedures Manual” are hereby repealed. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any portion of the manual is found to not be 
enforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, that portion shall be declared severable 
and the remainder of the manual will remain in full force and effect. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by Mayor and Town Council, the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, this 17th day of November, 2010. 
 
 
       TOWN OF ORO VALLEY 
 
 
             
       Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor 

\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_K_Att1_Resolution 10-81.doc  Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/100410 



 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Kathryn E. Cuvelier, Town Clerk   Tobin Rosen, Town Attorney 
 
Date:        Date:       
 



EXHIBIT “A” 



EXHIBIT “B” 



POLICY 25 ADVISORY BOARD FOR ORO VALLEY EMPLOYEES 
 
The Town of Oro Valley is interested in granting employees an opportunity to provide valuable input on 
key issues affecting the quality of their work-life with the Town.  While the decision making process 
remains vested in the elected officials of the Town, the role of the Advisory Board for Oro Valley 
Employees (ABOVE) is to receive input and feedback from fellow employees, and provide suggestions to 
the decision-makers. 
 
Mission:  Meeting on a periodic basis, the ABOVE will be asked to consider and analyze “quality of work 
life” questions from an employee perspective.  Subsequent to their study and discussion, the ABOVE will 
provide suggestions to Town Management on the issues that they have considered.  It must be stressed that 
the ABOVE is not intended to assume any of the roles or functions of the Grievance Review Board.  
Individual complaints or grievances will not be considered as actionable items by the ABOVE. 
 
Membership:  The ABOVE will be comprised of an employee selected from among each department.  In 
addition, it will be decided by each department to open the meetings to a representative from each division 
within the department.  All meetings of the ABOVE must have representation from each Town department.  
Employees will be selected on a volunteer basis based upon the following criteria: 
 
(1) Their ability and willingness to serve in this capacity. 
(2) Their interpersonal skills and willingness to communicate and share ideas. 
(3) Their ability to best reflect the interests and concerns of their work group. 
 
The ABOVE will nominate and elect from among their membership a Chair, Vice-Chair, and Recording 
Secretary.  The term of office for each of these positions shall be six (6) months with the exception of the 
Recording Secretary, whose position and duties will revolve among the entire membership for each 
meeting.  The Chair (or Vice-Chair if the Chair is not available) will serve as the facilitator for the 
ABOVE.  The Chair will be responsible for the organization and flow of each meeting, including the 
preparation of the agenda.  The Vice-Chair will hold the office and responsibilities of the Chair if the Chair 
is unable to attend a meeting.  The Recording Secretary will be responsible for recording the minutes of 
each meeting.  The Recording Secretary will be expected to forward the draft minutes to each member on 
the ABOVE roster.  After the minutes have been accepted by the ABOVE, the Recording Secretary will 
forward the final version of the minutes to all members, as well as to the Information Technology Division 
for posting on the intranet. 
 
Agenda:  Meetings should be conducted utilizing pre-established agendas.  Group members wishing to put 
items on the agenda should contact the Chair prior to the meetings in order to provide input.  The agenda 
must be finalized, distributed to each member listed on the ABOVE roster, and posted on the intranet one 
week prior to the next scheduled meeting.  The primary emphasis of the ABOVE is to concentrate on 
“quality of work-life” issues.  These may include compensation and benefits issues, proposed revisions to 
existing personnel policies/procedures, proposed programs aimed at enhancing the quality of the working 
environment at the Town of Oro Valley, etc. 
 
Members of ABOVE should solicit feedback from other employees within their work group regarding 
agenda items for discussion.  They should remember that dissenting opinions are extremely valuable to 
tempering the end product, as well as providing insight into the feelings of the entire workforce regarding 
issues. 
 
Process:  Consensus is desirable in most situations; however, a “majority rules” philosophy will be taken in 
finalizing recommendations from the ABOVE to Town Management.  While dissent should be 
acknowledged and differing viewpoints respected, in most instances the ABOVE will be faced with 
developing a majority opinion as opposed to reaching consensus. 
 
As the ABOVE facilitator, the Chair will provide input to Town Management on ABOVE recommendation 
or proposals.   



POLICY 27 ANNUAL EMPLOYEE FORUM 
 

The Town of Oro Valley is committed to the development and continuation of harmonious and cooperative 
relationships with all of its employees.  It is the purpose of this policy to provide a framework for ongoing 
interactions that are conducive to granting employees an opportunity to communicate suggestions and 
views regarding areas that significantly impact their working conditions with the Town of Oro Valley. 
 
SECTION 1.   Annual Employee Forum 
 
 Annual Employee Forum(s) are an opportunity for individual employees; employee groups; or 
representatives of employees or employees groups (herein referred to collectively as “employees”)  to 
recommend or propose changes to compensation plans, benefit plans, or address other issues which 
significantly affect employee working conditions.  The Employee Forum(s) will be scheduled as a study 
Session before a Town Council Sub-Committee made up of a maximum of (3) three Council Members.  Up 
to (4) four separate Employee Forum(s), which would allow for the varied employee shifts will be 
scheduled no later than the second week of November of each year.  Employee questions and 
recommendations will be tracked during the Employee Forum(s) in order for the Town Council to provide 
the Advisory Board of Oro Valley Employees (ABOVE) group with a status report prior to February 15 of 
the fiscal year to allow each department adequate time to prepare budget requests if necessary. 
 
SECTION 2.  Reprisals  
 
No employee, group of employees, or representatives of any groups of employees will be subject to 
reprisals, threats, or disciplinary action as the result of their participation in these meetings with liaisons of 
the Town Council. 
 
SECTION 3.  Nothing in this policy shall be deemed to negate, preclude, or be inconsistent with the Town 
of Oro Valley Personnel Policies with regard to the Grievance Review Process and applied to Town 
employees. 
 
SECTION 4.  No agreements resulting from any meeting with the Town Council shall be deemed to negate 
any agreed upon terms of employment or working conditions that other employees may have negotiated 
previously or separately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE

 

SUBJECT  
Innovations Team 

NUMBER 
 

33 

PAGE 
 

1 of 3 
  ISSUE  DATE  

November 17, 2010 

D R A F T 
I. MISSION 
 
The Employee Innovations Team (I-Team) is a cross-functional group of Town 
employees formed to call upon the collective ideas, expertise and paradigm 
breaking perspectives of our staff to help guide the Town into the future.  This 
group will be presented with ideas and issues that address employee work-life as 
well as operational challenges or needs related to budget and finance, 
technology, processes, and services that require systematic and innovative 
solutions.  The team will develop and implement new business models and best-
practices that can be applied in our day to day operations and planning activities. 
 

II. STRUCTURE 
 
As shown in the attached diagram, the Innovations Team is a overarching 
framework which will consist of many Squads, or project teams, that flow from a 
central hub.  The First Look Team will function as the central hub of the 
Innovations Team and will be responsible for initial intake and final distribution of 
employee innovation project proposals, ideas and challenge resolutions.  
 
The Town Manager and Executive Management Team will solicit employee 
volunteers and select seven representatives to serve as the First Look Team.  A 
Director “Champion” or designee will be asked to advise and provide support to 
the First Look Team and to each Squad that is a part of the Innovations Team.  
 
 
Squad guidelines and criteria: 

 May be created by the First Look Team or recommended by the Town 
Manager.   

 Should consist of a manageable number of volunteer members. 
 Members will be drawn from a combination of at least one frontline non-

supervisory employee, one supervisory level employee, and a mid-level 
manager.   

- 1 – 



- 2 – 

 May be formed for a specific project or task with a defined timeframe or 
may be a standing team with the appropriate structure to address 
proposals and ideas related to an operational topic (e.g., safety and risk 
management, communications roundtable, subweb editors, etc.)  

 Employees from any department or division that may be impacted by the 
proposal will be encouraged to participate.   

 All employees involved with the Innovations Team will be expected to 
complete an I-Team leadership training and development program 
administered by the Human Resources department.  

 Will have a Director-champion assigned in order to provide 
management-level authority for those areas that might need approval 
and can be resolved at the squad level without going up the chain of 
command 

 Will have a Squad Lead who is responsible for the administrative work 
and a schedule for the team to complete its assignment. 

 
 
Innovations Team squads will address issues such as employee work life, 
organizational operations, technology, and professional development.  An 
employee Lead will coordinate the work of each Squad.  The names and roles of 
each Innovations Team squad will be determined by the membership, but may 
include Squads such as a “Solutions Squad” to address Town Council driven 
issues or those of a time-sensitive nature, a “Geek Squad” to address technology 
issues, a “Lightning Team” to provide a quick and innovative response, or a 
“Peacock Squad” to address employee ideas and suggestions. 
 

III. PROCESS 
 
The First Look Team will hold regularly scheduled meetings to review and assign 
project proposals submitted. The First Look Team, upon review, may: 
 

 APPROVE a proposal and assign it to a Squad for consideration 
 RETURN a proposal to the proposer for refinement and resubmission  
 TAKE NO ACTION on a proposal and respond in writing to the project 

requestor 
 

INITIAL INTAKE  
Proposals approved by the First Look Team will be assigned to a standing or 
newly created Squad for further consideration.  
 
SQUAD RESOLUTION 
Squads will submit final recommendations or resolutions to the First Look Team. 
A special meeting of the First Look Team may be called at any time for the 
purpose of reviewing Squad recommendations. Recommendations and 
resolutions will be considered and further action taken by the members present 
on a case by case basis. 
  
 
 
FINAL DISPOSITION 



- 3 – 

Depending on the nature of the proposal or issue under consideration, a Squad 
may facilitate employee resolution of an issue or develop recommendations for 
presentation to the Town Manager and Executive Management Team.  A 
response is expected to return to the First Look Team within 30 days.  
 
The First Look Team should provide the organization a quarterly report 
summarizing the actions and successes of the Innovations Team via the Intranet.  
 

IV. AMENDMENTS 
 
Guidelines and procedures will be adopted as necessary to provide for 
continuous improvement and to fulfill the mission of the Innovations Team. 
 

V. ATTACHMENTS 
 
Innovations Team Diagram 
Innovations Team Proposal Form 
 
 
 
 
AUTHORIZED: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Town Manager 



    Item #:  1. L.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Kathryn Cuvelier, Town

Clerk
Submitted By: Kathryn Cuvelier, Town

Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Approval of 2011 Regular Town Council Meeting Schedule

SUMMARY:
The attached document lists scheduled Regular Meetings of the Town Council for 2011 and the
deadlines for submitting Council Packet Materials.

DISCUSSION:
If the Mayor and Council approves the 2011 Regular Town Council Meeting Schedule, the Council will
meet on the dates listed in the attached meeting schedule.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A.

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Mayor and Council approve and/or modify the attached Regular Town
Council meeting schedule for 2011.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to approve the 2011 Regular Town Council Meeting Schedule as presented (or) approve the
schedule with the following modifications....

Attachments
Link: 2011 Regular Council Meeting Schedule



DRAFT - 2011 REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE 
AND DEADLINES FOR SUBMITTING COUNCIL PACKET MATERIALS   

      
 Submittal of items 

To be added to Agenda 
Management Report 

   

Regular 
Meeting 
Dates 

Due in Clerk’s Office & 
Town Attorney’s Office 
Tuesday 12:00 noon 
 
 

Agenda Committee 
Meetings - Kachina 
Room - Tuesday 2:30 
p.m. 

Submittal of 
Packet Materials 
In Agenda Quick 
Friday 
5:00 p.m. 

Packets 
Distributed By 
Clerk’s Office  

 

01/05/11 12/14/10 12/14/10 12/17/10 12/22/10   
01/19/11 12/28/10 12/28/10 12/31/10 01/07/11  
02/02/11 01/11/11 01/11/11 01/14/11 01/21/11  
02/16/11 01/25/11 01/25/11 01/28/11 02/04/11  
03/02/11 02/08/11 02/08/11 02/11/11 02/18/11  
03/16/11 02/22/11 02/22/11 02/25/11 03/04/11  
04/06/11 03/15/11 03/15/11 03/18/11 03/25/11  
04/20/11 03/29/11 03/29/11 04/01/11 04/08/11  
05/04/11 04/12/11 04/12/11 04/15/11 04/22/11  
05/18/11 04/26/11 04/26/11 04/29/11 05/06/11  
06/01/11 05/10/11 05/10/11 05/13/11 05/20/11  
06/15/11       05/24/11                                 05/24/11                           05/27/11                06/03/11  
07/06/11 06/14/11 06/14/11 06/17/11 06/24/11  
07/20/11 06/28/11 06/28/11 07/01/11 07/08/11  
08/03/11 MEETING CANCELED  DUE TO SUMMER  BREAK  SUMMER BREAK 
08/17/11 MEETING CANCELED DUE TO SUMMER BREAK  SUMMER BREAK 
09/07/11 08/16/11 08/16/11 08/19/11 08/26/11  
09/21/11 08/30/11 08/30/11 09/02/11 09/09/11  
10/05/11 09/13/11 09/13/11 09/16/11 09/23/11  
10/19/11 09/27/11 09/27/11 09/30/11 10/07/11  
11/02/11       10/11/11                                 10/11/11                           10/14/11                10/21/11 
11/16/11 10/25/11 10/25/11 10/28/11 11/04/11  
12/07/11 11/08/11 11/08/11 11/11/11 11/18/11  
12/21/11 MEETING CANCELED DUE TO  WINTER BREAK WINTER BREAK 

 



    Item #:  1. M.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: David Williams, Planning Division Manager
Submitted By: David Ronquillo, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
OV1203-31F Request for a final plat amendment to remove a requirement regarding rooftop,
mechanical equipment screening for the Mercado at Canada Hills, located near the northeast corner of
La Canada Drive and Lambert Lane, directly north of the Fry's Food Store

SUMMARY:
The applicant is requesting a final plat amendment to remove a general note regarding rooftop
mechanical equipment screening.  General note number 5.d (sheet 2) on the final plat states, "all rooftop
mechanicals must be entirely screened from all surrounding properties."  This general note
originated during the review process based on staff recommendation and neighborhood input.  Because
of the adjacent residential homes, the intent was to adequately screen rooftop mechanical equipment
(air conditioning units and other equipment) from adjacent properties. 

There are homes located to the north, east and west of this property.  The homes to the east and west
of this site are at a significantly higher elevation and the Mercado rooftops are very visible.  Rooftop
equipment is partially visible from the neighborhood to the north.  Currently, the rooftop air conditioning
units and other equipment are screened by a beige colored mesh material providing screening around
all four sides of the equipment.  There are zoning code criteria and design guidelines that provide
for screening of mechanical equipment.   

 Site Conditions

Property is 8.1 acres in size
Total number of lots is 9
Zoning is El Conquistador Planned Area Development Commercial 
There are existing retail uses on this site

Approvals to Date

2005: Development plan and preliminary plat approved by Town Council
2007: Final plat approved by Town Council

DISCUSSION:
Applicant's Request

The applicant is requesting removal of the screening requirement for the following reasons: 1) the metal
screens accentuate the air conditioning units which are only visible from two homes on the east side of
the project; (2) the air conditioning units would be less visible if they were painted to blend in with the
building color; and (3) the weight of the metal mesh screen around the air conditioning units is creating
chronic roof leaks. 

Typically, roof mounted equipment is screened by the building parapet wall and additional screening
around the mechanical equipment is not necessary.  However, on this particular project, the building is
surrounded by properties to  the north, west and east that are higher in elevation.   

Only two of a total of nine buildings have been built on the site.  To the south, the mechanical equipment



on the nearby Fry's Food Store rooftop is visible from the adjacent residential area and no screening
was required for this building. 

Staff Analysis 

The zoning code addresses screening of mechanical equipment in two areas, Section 22.6,
Development Review Criteria which states, "mechanical equipment, appurtenances and utilities shall be
concealed from view and integral to the building design" and Addendum A Design Guidelines which
states,"mechanical equipment should be screened from public view."  Typically, this language is
incorporated as notes on the plan or plat to assure that it becomes a requirement.  In order to remove
this note, a final plat amendment is necessary.     
 
Based on a recent site visit, the equipment screens were visible from residential areas to the north and
west side of the property and were highly visible from the east (the attached photos are taken from the
east and north).  Overall, the equipment screening blocked views of the air conditioning units; however,
the actual "screening" devices were highly visible on the roof typically twice the height of the equipment
being screened.        

During the development plan/plat process, four neighborhood meetings were held and as a result,
conditions were added to the development plan/plat, and specifically this note.  Furthermore, removal of
this requirement would deviate from zoning code criteria and guidelines that were applied as part of the
original approval.  In sum, staff recommends denial of the applicant's request.      

Public Notification and Comment

This project has been noticed in accordance with Town procedures, which includes the following: 

Property owner mailing for all affected residents within 300’ of subject parcel
Homeowners Association mailing
Post property
Post at Town Hall and on website

No comments have been received as of the completion of this report.  Because of the nature of the
application, and prior neighborhood meetings, a new neighborhood meeting was not required. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
The requirement for mechanical equipment screening was incorporated as part of the original
approval.  The property is surrounded by homes higher in elevation to the north, west and east.
 Screening is necessary to block views of the roof mounted equipment.  

Staff recommends denial of the applicant's request.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
The Mayor and Council may wish to consider one of the following motions:

I move to [approve, approve with conditions or deny] OV1203-31F, final plat amendment to remove a
requirement for mechanical equipment screening for Mercado at Canada Hills. 

Attachments
Link: Exhibit A
Link: Request Letter



Link: Final Plat 



View From East



View from East – Zoomed In



View From North



View From North











    Item #:  1. N.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Kathryn Cuvelier, Town

Clerk
Submitted By: Kathryn Cuvelier, Town

Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Reappointment of Mr. C. Kent Russell to the Municipal Property Corporation Board of Directors with
term effective through December 31, 2013

SUMMARY:
The Municipal Property Corporation (MPC) is a non-profit corporation that contracts with the Town to
construct and finance public facilities in accordance with specifications approved by the Town Council. 
The MPC sells bonds in order to obtain the necessary funds.  The MPC has a three member Board of
Directors that meets on an as-needed basis.

The term of Mr. C. Kent Russell member of the Municipal Property Corporation was extended by the
Mayor and Council from September 30, 2010 to December 31, 2010 when the Council voted to change
the terms of office for Boards and Commissions from a fiscal year to a calendar year.  

DISCUSSION:
Mr. Russell's term will expire on December 31, 2010.  Mr. Russell has indicated his desire to serve an
additional term on the MPC.  Members of the MPC serve 3 year terms; therefore, Mr. Russell's new term
would expire December 31, 2013.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A.

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that Mr. Russell be reappointed to the Board of Directors of the Municipal Property
Corporation with term effective through December 31, 2013.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to reappoint Mr. C. Kent Russell to the Municipal Property Corporation with term effective
through December 31, 2013.

OR

I MOVE to



    Item #:  2.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  

Submitted By: David Parker, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE NO. (O)10 - 14 AMENDING ORO VALLEY TOWN CODE,
CHAPTER 15, WATER CODE, ARTICLE 24, STORMWATER, SUBSECTION 15-24-13(K),
REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, AND RULES OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY IN
CONFLICT THEREWITH; PRESERVING THE RIGHTS AND DUTIES THAT HAVE ALREADY
MATURED AND PROCEEDINGS THAT HAVE ALREADY BEGUN THEREUNDER.

SUMMARY:
The Stormwater Utility fee was approved by the Town Council in November 2007 and the first bills sent
out in January 2008.  Penalty and collection procedures were established to mirror the Oro Valley Water
Utility (OVWU) collection procedures for all OVWU customers.  Since numerous residents and business
owners in Town receive their water from Tucson and Metro Water, additional collection
procedures were added to the ordinance authorizing placing liens on real property and the issuance of
civil citations.  The original procedures identified in the ordinance have proven to be inadequate for civil
enforcement.  As such, the enforcement provisions of the ordinance have been amended by Town legal
staff in consultation with the Town Magistrate and Development and Infrastructure Services department
personnel.  The amendments are presented today for Council consideration and approval.   

DISCUSSION:
Since January 2008, if a non OVWU customer was overdue in paying their Stormwater Utility fee, a
collection procedure that included numerous late notices from the Stormwater Utility Manager and the
Town Attorney culminating in a civil citation was used to enforce collection.  The existing ordinance
authorizes the use of civil citations but does not detail specific step by step procedures or penalties to be
assessed.  These shortcomings in the existing ordinance have hindered enforcement and
collections.  The need to amend the ordinance was highlighted by a case in which a default judgment
was required but not obtainable under the existing ordinance due to a resident not paying, being
summoned, and not appearing in court in response to the summons.  The amended ordinance corrects
the enforcement issues by identifying the specific step by step process to follow and specific penalties
that can be assessed through civil sanctions or a default judgment. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
The amended ordinance will be revenue neutral to the Town.  The number of potential sanctions cannot
be estimated. 

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. (O) 10 - 14.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to adopt Ordinance No. (O) 10 - 14, Amending Oro Valley Town Code, Chapter 15, Water
Code, Article 24, Stormwater, Subsection 15-24-13(K).

Attachments
Link: Ordinance 10-14



ORDINANCE NO. (O) 10-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AMENDING ORO VALLEY TOWN CODE, 
CHAPTER 15, WATER CODE, ARTICLE 24, STORMWATER, 
SUBSECTION 15-24-13(K), REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS, 
ORDINANCES, AND RULES OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY IN 
CONFLICT THEREWITH; PRESERVING THE RIGHTS AND DUTIES 
THAT HAVE ALREADY MATURED AND PROCEEDINGS THAT HAVE 
ALREADY BEGUN THEREUNDER. 

 
WHEREAS, Oro Valley is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, is vested with all 
rights, privileges, and benefits and entitled to the immunities and exemptions granted 
municipalities and political subdivisions under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arizona 
and the United States; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-511, et seq., the Town has requisite statutory authority to 
acquire, own and maintain a Stormwater utility for the benefit of the landowners within and 
without the Town’s corporate boundaries; and  
 
WHEREAS, on June 20, 2001, the Council adopted Ordinance No. (O) 01-15, Article 15-24, 
Stormwater Utility Ordinance which serves as the Comprehensive Stormwater Management 
Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, on November 9, 2007, the Town adopted Oro Valley Town Code, Chapter 15, 
Article 24, Section 15-24-13, Stormwater Utility Fee System; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current Subsection 15-24-13(K), Stormwater Utility Fee Payable Date; Interest 
Amount; Lien on Real Property; Abatement of Small Amounts Due, proved unworkable as a 
mechanism to collect delinquent stormwater utility fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council desire to rename Subsection 15-24-13(K) to “Delinquent 
Stormwater Utility Fee Process/Penalties”, and to amend the subsection to clarify the mechanism 
for collection of delinquent stormwater utility fees. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and the Council of the Town of 
Oro Valley, Arizona, that:  
 
SECTION 1.  Subsection 15-24-13(K) of the Oro Valley Town Code is hereby amended as 

follows with additions in ALL CAPS and deletions in strikethrough. 

15-24-13 Stormwater Utility Fee System 
 
K.    Stormwater Utility Fee Payable Date; Interest Amount; Lien on Real Property; 

Abatement of Small Amounts Due. 
 
 

\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_2_Att1_Ordinance 10-14.doc                                                                                                                                       Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/100810 



1.    The invoiced fee is due within thirty (30) days from the date that the bill is issued to 
the property owner and is overdue after that date. Late fees will be charged in accordance with 
the Oro Valley Water Utility’s delinquency policy. 

2.    Any fee, including interest, when overdue, is a lien on real property and may be 
collected in the same manner as delinquent Oro Valley Water Utility fees.  

3.    The Stormwater Utility Administrator may abate the fee, including interest, if the cost 
of collection is estimated to exceed the amount of the fee, including any interest due. 

4.    The Town Engineer, and/or his designee, may institute any appropriate action or 
proceeding by the issuance of a civil citation or summons pursuant to Article 1-8, Penalties, of 
the Oro Valley Town Code. 

. . . 

K.     DELINQUENT STORMWATER UTILITY FEE PROCESS/PENALTIES.  FOR 
ORO VALLEY RESIDENTS BEING SERVED WATER BY THE ORO VALLEY WATER 
UTILITY AND CHARGED THEIR STORMWATER UTILITY FEES AS PART OF THEIR 
WATER UTILITY BILL, THE ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY REGULATIONS SHALL 
APPLY TO ALL DELINQUENT FEES. 

 FOR ALL OTHER ORO VALLEY STORMWATER UTILITY CUSTOMERS, THE 
FOLLOWING SHALL BE FOLLOWED TO OBTAIN PAYMENT OF DELINQUENT FEES 
AND PENALTIES. 

1. PROCESS.  STORMWATER UTILITY FEES ARE OVERDUE TWENTY ONE (21) 
DAYS AFTER THE STORMWATER UTILITY BILL IS ISSUED AND A PENALTY 
FOR ANY OVERDUE PAYMENTS MAY BE IMPOSED.   

 
a) THE STORMWATER UTILITY MANAGER SHALL SEND A DELINQUENCY 

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS RESPONSIBLE FOR STORMWATER 
UTILITY FEES DEMANDING PAYMENT OF THEIR DELINQUENT FEE 
WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF THE DATE OF THE NOTICE. 

b) IF THERE IS NO REPLY TO THE STORMWATER UTILITY MANAGER’S 
LETTER, THE TOWN ATTORNEY’S OFFICE SHALL SEND A LETTER 
DEMANDING PAYMENT OF THE STORMWATER UTILITY FEE FROM 
PROPERTY OWNERS WHO HAVE NOT REPLIED TO THE FIRST NOTICE.  
IN THE EVENT THAT THERE IS NO RESPONSE TO THE TOWN 
ATTORNEY’S LETTER, THE TOWN WILL INITIATE LEGAL 
PROCEEDINGS IN THE ORO VALLEY MAGISTRATE COURT AFTER TEN 
(10) DAYS. 

c) FAILURE TO PAY THE FEE, INCLUDING ANY LATE CHARGES, BY THE 
DUE DATE SHALL BE CONSIDERED A CIVIL VIOLATION AND A 
SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT WILL BE SERVED ON THE PROPERTY 
OWNER.  THE SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT WILL BE SERVED ON THE 
PROPERTY OWNER BY A PROCESS SERVER. 

d) IN THE EVENT THE DEFENDANT(S) FAIL(S) TO APPEAR IN COURT, THE 
ORO VALLEY MAGISTRATE IS AUTHORIZED TO ISSUE A DEFAULT 

\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_2_Att1_Ordinance 10-14.doc                                                                                                                                       Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/100810 



 
2. PENALTIES.  
 

A.  CIVIL SANCTIONS 
 

1. A PERSON FOUND RESPONSIBLE FOR A VIOLATION OF THIS 
ARTICLE SHALL BE SANCTIONED BY THE MAGISTRATE OR 
HEARING OFFICER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
a) FIRST VIOLATION WITHIN A TWENTY FOUR (24) MONTH 

PERIOD: A SANCTION OF NOT MORE THAN ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($100.00).   

b) SECOND VIOLATION WITHIN A TWENTY FOUR (24) MONTH 
PERIOD: A SANCTION OF NOT MORE THAN ONE HUNDRED 
AND FIFTY HUNDRED DOLLARS ($150.00). 

c) THIRD OR SUBSEQUENT VIOLATION WITHIN A TWENTY 
FOUR (24) MONTH PERIOD: A SANCTION OF NOT MORE 
THAN TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200.00).   

d) THE COURT MAY, AT ITS DISCRETION, REDUCE OR 
SUSPEND THE SANCTION. 

 
SANCTIONS ARE IN ADDITION TO THE DELINQUENT STORM WATER 
UTILITY FEE, LATE FEES AND CHARGES. 

 
B.  DEFAULT JUDGMENT 

 
1. IF AFTER BEING LEGALLY SERVED WITH A SUMMONS AND 

COMPLAINT, THE PARTY FAILS TO APPEAR AT THE HEARING 
TIME DESIGNATED IN THE SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT AND/OR 
TIME DESIGNATED FOR A HEARING BY THE COURT, THAT 
INDIVIDUAL SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE ADMITTED THE 
ALLEGATION IN THE COMPLAINT AND THE COURT SHALL ENTER 
JUDGMENT AND IMPOSE A CIVIL SANCTION IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER. 

 
2. UPON ENTRY OF THE DEFAULT JUDGMENT THE COURT, IN 

ADDITION TO THE SANCTIONS, MAY IMPOSE ALL APPLICABLE 
SURCHARGES, SECURITY FEES, A DEFAULT JUDGMENT FEE AND 
OTHER COURT FEES AS AUTHORIZED BY STATE LAW OR TOWN 
ORDINANCE.   

 
3. IF ANY PENALTY ORDERED TO BE PAID BY THE MAGISTRATE OR 

FORFEITED PURSUANT TO DEFAULT IS NOT PAID WITHIN THIRTY 
(30) DAYS OF THE MAGISTRATE’S ORDER, A LIEN ON THE REAL 

\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_2_Att1_Ordinance 10-14.doc                                                                                                                                       Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/100810 



\\lexicon\AgendaQuick\PacketPrinter\AGENDA\TC\Item01_2_Att1_Ordinance 10-14.doc                                                                                                                                       Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/100810 

. . . 
 
SECTION 2.  All Oro Valley ordinances, resolutions, or motions and parts of ordinances, 

resolutions or motions of the Council in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions thereof. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona this 17th day of November, 2010. 

 
       TOWN OF ORO VALLEY 
 
 
              
       Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Kathryn E. Cuvelier, Town Clerk   Tobin Rosen, Town Attorney 
 
Date:       Date:       



    Item #:  3.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Philip Saletta, Water

Utility Director
Submitted By: Shirley Seng, Water

Department: Water

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING - RESOLUTION NO. (R)10 - 82  AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING INCREASES
IN WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

SUMMARY:
The Water Utility Commission approved a motion on September 13, 2010 to recommend the Preferred
Financial Scenario to the Mayor and Council.  The Commission's recommendation was based on the
following: 

Meeting all Mayor and Council water policies with regard to debt service, cash reserves and rate
shock.

1.

Maintaining financial sustainability.2.
Minimizing future debt for existing system capital improvements.3.
Building cash reserves in anticipation of direct delivery of CAP water.4.

The following items highlight the proposed changes for water rates, fees and charges included in the
Preferred Financial Scenario:

No increase in the monthly base rate
No increase in the tiered commodity rates
No increase in the construction water rate
Increase the Groundwater Preservation Fee by $0.20 per 1,000 gallons for potable water use
Increase the Groundwater Preservation Fee by $0.10 per 1,000 gallons for reclaimed water use
Increase the Meter Installation Fees to recover costs
Increase the New Service Establishment Fees to recover costs

The purpose of the Groundwater Preservation Fee (GPF) is for existing customers to pay for a portion of
the acquisition of renewable water resources including wastewater effluent, reclaimed water and CAP
water, infrastructure and related debt. The GPF was established in 2003 prior to the issuance of the
Series 2003 Bonds which were sold to finance the first phase of the reclaimed water delivery system.
This was the first debt to be repaid by GPF revenue with annual debt service of $887,000. Subsequent
debt includes the acquisition of effluent and CAP water rights from the City of Tucson and construction of
the second phase of the reclaimed water delivery system. These additional obligations have increased
the annual debt service in the AWRDIF Fund to $1.66 million for FY 10-11.

In addition to this debt, capital costs associated with our allocation of CAP water ($154,000 annually)
are paid through the AWRDIF Fund as well as the past capital costs associated with the reallocation of
CAP water in 2007 ($994,000 remaining balance).

The proposed increase in the GPF is to help pay these costs and to begin building cash reserves for
future CAP development. The intent is to have the proposed GPF increases keep pace with the CAP
water development time line.

DISCUSSION:
The Town Council held a study session on September 22, 2010 to discuss the proposed water rates.



The Town Council held a study session on September 22, 2010 to discuss the proposed water rates.
 Discussion centered around the intended use of Groundwater Preservation Fees and the need to build
cash reserves in the Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee (AWRDIF) Fund for future
CAP water development.  The Council requested that Staff provide additional information on the different
options for bringing CAP water to the Town and their respective time lines prior to the public hearing. 
That information will be provided under separate cover to the Council.

On October 6, 2010 the Town Council adopted Resolution No. (R) 10-68 providing the Town's notice of
intent to increase water rates, fees and charges for the Water Utility.  This action established a public
hearing date for November 17, 2010 and made the Water Rates Analysis Report available to the public. 
Comments that have been received from customers regarding the proposed rate increases are included
as an attachment.  Comments received after this communication will be provided to the Council prior to
or on the day of the public hearing.

Advertising of Resolution No. (R) 10-68 occurred on October 18, 2010 in the Daily Territorial
newspaper as required by state statute.  Additionally, the Water Utility inserted a flyer in water bills in
late October that advertised the public hearing and explained the proposed increases.  This flyer will
also be inserted in the early November water bills.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The proposed increase in the GPF will help pay existing debt service on the reclaimed water system
and the remaining debt on the CAP acquisition.  It will put the Water Utility in a better financial position
with a sufficient ending fund cash balance for the future debt service on CAP water.

The proposed increases in Meter Installation Fees and New Service Establishment Fees will allow the
Water Utility to recover costs associated with providing those services.
 

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
The Water Utility Commission has recommended the Preferred Financial Scenario in the Water Rates
Analysis Report.

Staff respectfully requests approval of Resolution No. (R) 10 - 82.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to approve Resolution No. (R) 10 - 82, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING INCREASES IN
WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY.
 

Attachments
Link: R 10-82 Water Rate Increase w/ Exhibit A
Link: Correspondence on Increase
Link: Schedule













































    Item #:  4.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Stacey Lemos, Interim Assistant Town Manager
Submitted By: Stacey Lemos, Finance
Department: Town Manager's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING RESOLUTION NO. (R) 07-55, THE TOWN'S
FORMAL POSITION ON DEVELOPMENT OF PROPOSED ROSEMONT MINE IN THE SANTA RITA
MOUNTAINS

SUMMARY:
At the April 18, 2007 Regular Town Council meeting, the Mayor and Town Council adopted Resolution
No. (R) 07-55 in opposition to the proposed Rosemont Mine in the Santa Rita Mountains south of
Tucson.  A copy of this resolution is included as ATTACHMENT A.  In response to repeated contact
from representatives of Rosemont Copper, members of the Council have expressed an interest in
revisiting this resolution.

DISCUSSION:
The packet materials and minutes from the April 18, 2007 Council meeting where Resolution No. (R)
07-55 was approved are included as ATTACHMENT B.  Some of the concerns expressed when this
topic came before the Council in 2007 included the following:

Pima Association of Governments (PAG) Regional Council and Pima County opposition to the
project and the issue of the appropriateness of a new mine in consideration of local land use plans,
such as the Pima County Sonoran Desert Conservation Plan
Water quality and supply issues based on historical impacts found with these types of mines, such
as a lower water table
Potential impacts to protected habitats and species
Potential adverse economic impacts of the mining industry in general

At the time this initially came to the Oro Valley Town Council, PAG brought this matter to the attention of
member agencies, coordinating an effort for local jurisdictions to consider formal action in opposition to
the mine.  On September 21, 2010 the Marana Town Council rescinded their previously adopted
resolution opposing the Rosemont Mine and have taken a neutral position on the project.  To date, other
local jurisdictions have not followed suit.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No direct fiscal impact has been determined by Town staff, but the County Administrator stated in his
2007 letter (attached as part of the 2007 Council packet) that there is a fiscal impact to county taxpayers
from mining operations.

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Council's desire.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to re-affirm Resolution No. (R) 07-55, opposing the proposed Rosemont Mine.



I move to re-affirm Resolution No. (R) 07-55, opposing the proposed Rosemont Mine.

or

I move to rescind Resolution No. (R) 07-55, thereby taking a neutral position on the proposed Rosemont
Mine.

or 

I move to rescind Resolution No. (R) 07-55, and direct staff to prepare a new resolution in support of the
proposed Rosemont Mine.

Attachments
Link: Attachment A-Reso (R)07-55
Link: Attachment B-4-18-07 Packet Materials































































    Item #:  5.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: David Williams, Planning Division Manager
Submitted By: David Ronquillo, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE PUBLIC ART 1% IN-LIEU OPTION

SUMMARY:
Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, Section 27.3.C.1 specifies that an amount equal to 1% of the building
permit valuation for commercial development projects must be provided for public art.  The code further
states that if the building permit valuation is less than two hundred and fifty thousand dollars
(<$250,000), the owner/developer may elect to pay an in-lieu fee to the Town of Oro Valley
specifically for public artwork projects.

The zoning code also specifies that if the project valuation is ten million dollars or more, the owner may
elect to contribute that portion of the one percent over one hundred thousand dollars  to the Town of Oro
Valley specifically for public artwork projects.   

In instances where the project meets these criteria, the applicant may submit an in-lieu fee for the dollar
amount of the required public art.  Currently, the Town's Public Art Fund, comprised of in-lieu fees, has a
balance of $16,800.  

Recently, the following questions and concerns have been raised:

Should there be a threshold for minimum and maximum in-lieu fees, or should an applicant be
permitted to contribute an in-lieu fee regardless of a project's building permit valuation?
If not, what are the proper thresholds for minimum and maximum in-lieu fees?
Should the Town consider additional uses for in-lieu funds contributed to the Public Art Fund? For
example, maintenance of publicly owned artwork?
Should another criteria be given consideration with or separate from the building permit valuation,
such as the location of a business which is in a low visibility location with light public access or
exposure?
Should replacement be required for artwork that has failed, even though required maintenance has
been done?

DISCUSSION:
HISTORY
Past Town Councils have held two Study Sessions in 2010, February 24 and May 12, to discuss public
art funding and maintenance.  While those discussions encompassed multiple questions surrounding
our 1% for public art program, it did include perspectives from those councils regarding the in-lieu fee
element and therefore those Council Communications and minutes from those meetings are attached for
your review.  No action was taken but direction was given to remove cultural resources from the
discussion and to bring back recommendations on what works and what doesn't, which is what is before
you this evening.

NEED FOR CHANGE
The existing code is relatively restrictive and does not appear to provide enough flexibility for applicants
interested in the in-lieu fee option.  Based on current artwork costs, building projects that result in a
building permit valuation of around $250,000 do not appear to provide enough funding to create quality



pieces of art.  Following are examples:

1.  Recently, a project was submitted with a permit valuation of $295,000.  Per Town Code, $2,950 was
required for public art.  The zoning code provides for the public artwork budget to be spent on
the design, fabrication, installation, and Town review process.  Taking all of these costs into
consideration, a quality art piece could not be achieved within the 1% budget.  The applicant preferred to
submit the in-lieu fee, rather than providing an inadequate piece of art on the site; however, this option is
not allowed under our current code.

2.  Currently the Town does not have funds dedicated for maintenance of artwork created for public
construction projects (on the other hand, private developers who provide public art on their respective
properties are responsible for maintaining the public art).  In order to satisfy maintenance needs for
publicly owned art, funds must be requested through the yearly budget process, most likely from the
General Fund.  Amending the Town Code to permit the use of in-lieu fees for public art
maintenance would relieve this potential impact to the General Fund.

3.  Another example of additional flexibility needed occurred this past year when public art was
destroyed by a wind storm and there were no specified emergency funds for the repair at the southern
entry monument sign on Oracle Road that was a youth art project.  Although we received insurance
money that covered a portion of the repair, the rest of the money came from our Highway Funds.  

4.  Additionally, there is a recent example of private art that has failed that was situated on a secluded
property.  Due to its location, there is very limited public access and visibility of the art.  At question is
whether secluded locations or restricted properties should be designated for in-lieu fees.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the following:

1.  The minimum threshold for the in-lieu option be raised to 1% of the building permit valuation for
commercial development projects with building permit valuations less than one million dollars (required
art budget of up to ten thousand dollars) to facilitate the development of quality public art.  However,
staff does not recommend a change to the maximum threshold for the in-lieu option.  
2.  Amend the zoning code to allow the use of in-lieu fees for maintenance of publicly owned artwork.
3.  Provide for remote locations to be designated for in-lieu fees.
4.  Exempt replacement requirement of failed artwork if the artwork has been properly maintained.  Staff
will bring back code changes that take into consideration multiple owners of property and how to be
equitable in those circumstances.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to direct staff to prepare for Council consideration amendments to the Oro Valley Zoning Code
Revised, Section 27.3.C.1, that would raise the minimum threshold for in-lieu public art fees to a
maximum of $10,000; would allow in-lieu fees paid to the Public Art Fund to be used for the maintenance
of publicly owned artwork; provide for remote locations to be designated for in-lieu fees; and, exempt
replacement requirement of failed artwork if the artwork has been properly maintained. Additionally, the
Council directs staff to bring back code changes that take into consideration multiple owners of property
and how to be equitable in those circumstances.

Attachments
Link: Public Art Code
Link: 2-24-10 Communication
Link: Minutes 2-24-10



Link: 5-12-10 Communication
Link: Minutes 5-12-10







































    Item #:  6.     
TC Regular Session
Date: 11/17/2010  
Requested by: Amanda Jacobs, Economic Development Manager
Submitted By: Amanda Jacobs, Town Manager's Office
Department: Town Manager's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
DISCUSSION REGARDING SIGN CODE TASK FORCE RECOMMENDATIONS RELATED TO
TEMPORARY SIGNS

SUMMARY:
At the October 27, 2010 Study Session, staff presented the Sign Code Task Force Recommendations
related to Permanent Signs.   The purpose of tonight's discussion is to review the Sign Code Task Force
Recommendations for Temporary Signs.

DISCUSSION:
The Sign Code Task Force Recommendations for Temporary Signs include:

Permitted Signs in a Commercial/Industrial District 
Real Estate, Lease, Rent and For Sale Signs
Seasonal or Special Event Banners
Three (3) Day Special Event Banners
Flags in Commercial/Residential District

Permitted Signs in a Residential Zoning District 
Model Home Banners
Model Home Complex, Custom Lot Sales Office Sign - On-Site Signs
Offsite Signs (interior and exterior)
On-Site Subdivision Signs
Real Estate, Lease, Rent and For Sale Signs

Details of the Sign Code Task Force Recommendations can be found in Attachment 1: Sign Code Task
Force Recommendations - Temporary Signs.

Staff is seeking Council feedback regarding the Sign Code Task Force Recommendations for
Temporary Signs.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION:
Before Council takes any action on the Sign Code Task Force Recommendations, staff recommends
that Council receive an update on the impact to businesses who have participated in the Temporary Sign
Relief program and how it relates to Sections 28.6 and 28.7 of Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised
(OVZCR).  During the July 21, 2010 Council meeting where the Council directed staff to initiated a
Temporary Sign Relief program, the Economic Development Manager proposed that an update be
brought to Council prior to the Temporary Sign Relief expiring on February 1, 2011.  Below is
the recommended action plan:     

January 19, 2010 - Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Temporary Sign Relief 
February 16, 2010 - Public Hearing to Amend Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, Chapter 28, Signs 



February 16, 2010 - Public Hearing to Amend Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, Chapter 28, Signs 

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Discussion only- no action required.

Attachments
Link: Sign Code Task Force Recommendations - Temporary Signs
Link: Temporary Signs Summary Table
Link: Sign Code marked-up version
Link: Oro Valley Commercial Sign Survey



 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Sign Code  
Task Force 

Recommendations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

Temporary Signs 
Banner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Current Code: 
Description: Any sign of lightweight 
fabric or similar material that is 
temporarily mounted to a pole or 
building. A banner may be utilized for 
the purpose of “grand opening,” 
“coming soon,” or change of 
ownership to promote a new 
business. The words “grand opening” 
and/or “coming soon,” along with 
other copy, shall be displayed on the 
banner, based on the event taking 
place. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Description: Any sign of lightweight 
fabric or similar material that is 
temporarily mounted to a pole or 
building. A banner may be utilized for 
the purpose of “grand opening,” 
“coming soon,” a new business 
opening or change of ownership to 
promote a new business. The words 
“grand opening” and/or “coming 
soon,” along with other copy, shall be 
displayed on the banner, based on 
the event taking place.  For Seasonal 
or Special Event Banner signs, see 
Sections 28.6.A.7 & 8.  



 3 

Temporary Signs 
Banner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Area: Maximum 64 square feet 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Area: Maximum 64 square feet, or no 
more than one (1) square foot of sign 
for each linear foot of building 
frontage, whichever is less. For 
tenants that are further than 300 feet 
from the street, the banner may 
contain no more than 1 ¾ square feet 
of sign area for each linear foot of 
building frontage. 



 4 

Temporary Signs 
Banner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Location: Must be installed on the site 
and/or tenant space in which the 
event is taking place. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Location: Must be installed on the site 
and/or tenant space in which the 
event is taking place. All banners 
shall be securely anchored to the 
ground and/or parapet wall in such a 
manner that the banner shall not fold 
over and shall be taut. The banner 
may be located inside the tenant 
space. 



 5 

Temporary Signs/Permitted Signs in a 
Commercial/Industrial District 
Real Estate, Lease, Rent and For Sale Signs 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

16 square foot sign 
15 feet away 

32 square foot sign 
15 feet away 

Current code: 
• Area of Sign: Maximum of 16 

square feet 

• Height: Not to exceed five (5) 
feet in height above grade. 
May be increased to 10 feet 
with permission of Senior 
Zoning Supervisor 

Task Force 
Recommendation: 
• Area of Sign: Maximum of 32 

square feet 

• Height: Not to exceed eight (8) 
feet in height above grade. 
May be increased to 10 feet 
with permission of Senior 
Zoning Supervisor 

 



 6 

Temporary Signs 
Seasonal or Special Event Banners 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
• Description: A special event sign 

shall be used to advertise a 
holiday sale and/or special 
event, including civic, public, 
religious, philanthropic, or 
educational events. Such signs 
are permitted in any zone and 
are not to be used for Model 
Home Sales. 

• Location: Must be installed on 
the site and/or tenant space in 
which the event is taking place. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
• Description: A special event sign 

shall be used to advertise a 
holiday sale and/or seasonal or 
special event, including civic, 
public, religious, philanthropic, 
or educational events.  Such 
signs are permitted in any zone 
zoning district and are not to be 
used for Model Home Sales. 

• Location: Must be installed on 
the site and/or tenant space in 
which the event is taking place. 
All banners shall be securely 
anchored to the ground and/or 
parapet wall in such a manner 
that the banner shall not fold 
over and shall be taut. 



 7 

Temporary Signs 
Three Day Special Event Banner  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Special event sign is included under 
Special Event Banner Signs. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Created a separate section for 
Temporary Three Day Special Event 
Banners. 



 8 

Temporary Signs 
Flags Signs in Commercial/Residential 
District 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Current code: 
• One pole per development 

Task Force Recommendation: 
• A maximum of two poles for a 

commercial development 

• A maximum of one pole per individual 
property/subdivision 



 9 

Temporary Signs/Permitted Signs in a 
Residential Zoning District 
Model Home Banners 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Quantity: One (1) banner per model 
home complex. The banner may be 
wall mounted or freestanding and 
shall be good for 16 days per 
calendar year. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Quantity: One (1) banner per model 
home complex.  
 
Duration: The banner shall be 
mounted only on Saturdays and 
Sundays (104 days). The banner may 
be permitted an additional 16 
consecutive days for the purpose of 
opening the model home center. 



 10

Temporary Signs/Permitted Signs in a 
Residential Zoning District 
Model Home Complex, Custom Home Lot Sales 
Office Signs – On-Site Signs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Removal: All signs must be removed 
upon the completion of 95 percent of 
the development and/or subdivision. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Removal: All signs must be removed 
upon the completion of 95 percent of 
the development and/or subdivision 
within seven (7) days after the closing 
of the sales office or model home 
office. 



 11

Temporary Signs/Permitted Signs in a 
Residential Zoning District 
Off-Site Signs (interior and exterior) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Location: An exterior, off-site sign 
shall be located at the intersection of 
an Arterial Roadway and subdivision 
street, as long as no other Town 
approved kiosk sign exists. The sign 
must be located on private property 
with the permission of the owner of 
the premise.  

Task Force Recommendation: 
Removal: All signs must be removed 
upon the completion of 95 percent of 
the development and/or subdivision 
within seven (7) days after the closing 
of the sales office or model home 
office. 



 12

Temporary Signs/Permitted Signs in a 
Residential Zoning District 
Off-Site Signs (interior and exterior) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Removal: All signs must be removed 
upon the completion of 95 percent of 
the development and/or subdivision. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Removal: All signs must be removed 
upon the completion of 95 percent of 
the development and/or subdivision 
within seven (7) days after the closing 
of the sales office or model home 
office. 



 13

Temporary Signs/Permitted Signs in a 
Residential Zoning District 
On-Site Subdivision Signs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Code: 
Removal: Any sign that lists an 
individual developer, contractor 
and/or sub-contractor must be 
removed upon completion of 95 
percent of the subdivision or 
development. 

Task Force Recommendation: 
Removal: Any sign that lists an 
individual developer, contractor 
and/or sub-contractor must be 
removed upon completion of 95 
percent of the subdivision or 
development within 7 days after the 
sale and closing of 100 percent of the 
lots within the subdivision, 
development or 180 days after the 
closure of the sales office, whichever 
comes sooner. 



 14

Temporary Signs/Permitted Signs in a 
Residential Zoning District 
Real Estate, Lease, Rent and For Sale Signs 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Four (4) square feet 

5 ft 

Six (6) square feet 

6 ft 

Current code: 
• Area of Sign: Four (4) square feet 

• Height of Sign: Five (5) feet but 
may be allowed up to 10 feet with 
approval of P&Z Administrator 

Task Force Recommendation: 
• Area of Sign: Four (4) Six square feet 

including all riders/hanging modifiers 

• Height of Sign: Five (5) feet but may 
be allowed up to 10 feet with approval 
of P&Z Administrator A maximum of 
six (6) feet.  The Planning Division 
Manager may approve heights up to 
10 feet, if warranted.  



 1 

 
 

Attachment 1: 
Temporary/Permitted Signs in Commercial/Industrial District 

 
 

Sign Type 
 

 Current Code Task Force Recommendations 

 
Banner 

 
Description: 

 
1. “Grand opening” & 

“Coming Soon” 
 

 
1. A new business opening 
 

  

Area: 

 

 
1. 64 sq ft 
 

 

 
1. 64 sq ft or 1 sq ft/1 linear ft of 

building frontage, whichever is less 
 

  
Location: 

 

 
1. On site and/or tenant 

space 
 

 
1. Anchored to ground and/or parapet 

wall. Must be taut. 
 

 
Real Estate, Lease, 
Rent and For Sale 
 

 

Area: 
 

1. 16 sq ft 
 

 
1. 32 sq ft 
 

  

Height: 

 

 
1. 5 ft, or 10 ft with 

Zoning Approval 
 

 
1. 8 ft maximum 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 2 

 
Seasonal or Special 
Event Banners 

 

 

Description: 
 
1. For holiday sale, or 

special events (civic, 
public, religious, 
philanthropic, 
educational) 

2.  Not for Model Home 
Sales 

 

 
1. For any seasonal or special events 
2. No restriction 
 

  
Location: 

 
1. Installed on 

site/tenant space 
 
 

 
1. Anchored to ground and/or parapet 

wall. Must be taut. 
 

 
Three-Day Special 
Event Banners 

 

Duration: 

 

 
1. One day (separated 

from Special Events 
above) 

 

 
1. Up to 3 days 
 
 

 
Flags in 
Commercial/Residential 
District 
 

 

Poles: 
 
1. 1 per development 
 
 

 
1. 2 for commercial development 
2. 1 per individual property or 

subdivision 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
 

Attachment 2: 
Temporary/Permitted Signs in Residential Zoning District 

 
 
 

Sign Type 
 

 Current Code Task Force Recommendations Staff Recommendations 

 
Model Home 
Banners 

 

Duration: 
 

1. 16 days/calendar 
year 

 

 
1. Saturdays & Sundays (104 

days). Plus 16 consecutive 
days for grand opening 

 

 
N/A 

 
Model Home 
Complex, Custom 
Home Lot Sales 
Office –On-Site 
 

 

Removal: 
 

1. Upon 95% 
completion 

 

 
1. Within 7 days of closing 

sales/model home office 

 
N/A 

 
Off-Site (interior & 
exterior to 
subdivision) 

 

 

Removal: 
 
1. Upon 95% 

completion 
  
 

 
1. Within 7 days of closing 

sales/model home office 
 

 
N/A 

  
 

   
1. Add ‘Temporary Signs 

on Public Property’ 
 
 

 
On-Site 
Subdivision 

 

Removal: 
 

 
1. Upon 95% 
completion 

 
1. Within 7 days after final sale 

or 180 days after sales office 
closes, whichever is sooner 

 

 
N/A 

 
Real Estate, 
Lease, Rent and 
For Sale 

 

Area: 
 
1. 4 sq ft 
 

 
1. 6 sq ft 
 
 

 
N/A 

  
Height: 

 

 
1. 5 ft 
 

 
1. 6 ft 
 

 
N/A 

 



 1 

Chapter 28 
SIGNS 

Section 28.1 General - Signs 

A.    Purpose 

1.    The purpose of this Chapter is to establish reasonable regulations for the 
design, construction, installation and maintenance of all exterior signs in the 
Town of Oro Valley in order to: 

a.    Preserve and protect the public health, safety, welfare, and 
convenience. Protect the general public from injury or damage, 
which may be caused by faulty and uncontrolled construction or 
improper location of signs within the Town. 

b.    Provide for an effective form of communication while preserving 
the scenic beauty of the desert environment. Ensure that the 
signage is clear, compatible with the character of the adjacent 
architecture and neighborhoods and provides the essential identity 
of, and direction to, facilities in the community. 

c.    Enhance the potential economic value and encourage quality 
development within the community, as well as, promote and aid 
tourist industry, which is an important part of the economy of the 
Town. 

d.    Promote the effectiveness of signs by preventing their over-
concentration, improper placement, excessive clutter, size, and 
number. 

e.    Safeguard and preserve the unique character of the Town creating 
an attractive and appealing community environment in which to live, 
work and visit. Assure that the public benefits derived from 
expenditures of the public funds for the improvement and 
beautification of streets and other public structures and spaces 
shall be protected by exercising reasonable controls over the 
character and design of sign structures. 

2.    It is not the purpose of this Chapter to repeal, abrogate, annul or in any way 
impair or interfere with existing provisions of other laws or ordinances, 
except those specifically repealed by this Chapter. 

 

 

 



 2 

B.    Requirement for Conformity 

If any sign and/or sign structure is located, constructed, reconstructed, 
altered, repaired, converted or maintained in violation of this Chapter, the 
Town or any owner or tenant of real property aggrieved by the alleged 
violation, in addition to other remedies available at law, may institute 
appropriate injunction proceedings to correct the violation with the Oro 
Valley Magistrate Court. 

C.    Non-Conforming and Discontinued Signs 

1.    Signs Rendered Non-Conforming 

a.    If, at the time of the adoption of this Chapter, or amendment 
thereto, or of any extension of jurisdiction resulting from 
annexation, or of any amendment to the Oro Valley Zoning Code or 
any permanent sign which is being used but does not conform to 
the provisions of this Chapter, shall be deemed legal non-
conforming. 

b.    Any sign which becomes legal non-conforming,conforming shall 
be permitted to remain, provided the sign; 

i.    Is not increased in area or height 

ii.    Remains structurally unchanged, except for reasonable 
repairs or alteration; and 

iii.    If relocated, due to no fault of the owner, is placed in the 
same relative position on the remaining property that it 
occupied prior to the relocation 

iv.    Is relocated in a manner so as to comply with applicable 
safety requirements, and 

v.    Is not discontinued per Section 28.1.C.2. 

c.    Alteration or Removal of Non-Conforming Signs 

i.    A non-conforming sign shall not be re-erected, relocated 
(except as permitted above), or replaced unless it is brought 
into compliance with the requirements of this Chapter. 

ii.    Any non-conforming sign shall be removed or rebuilt in full 
conformity to the terms of this Chapter if it is damaged or 
allowed to deteriorate to such extent that the cost of repair or 
restoration is 50 percent or more of the costs and/or 
replacement of materials. 

 



 3 

2.    Signs Rendered Obsolete or Discontinued 

a.    Except Lease, Rent, and For Sale Signs, any sign, which is 
located on a property, which becomes vacant and unoccupied for a 
period exceeding three (3) months shall be deemed to have been 
discontinued. 

b.    Sign structures, which remain vacant, unoccupied, obsolete, 
devoid of any message or display, a message pertaining to a time, 
event or purpose that no longer applies for more than three (3) 
months, shall be deemed discontinued. 

c.    It shall be the responsibility of the owner of the premise to remove 
any sign deemed discontinued subject to penalty as set forth in 
Section 30.2 of the Oro Valley Zoning Code. 

3.    Change in Business 

a.    When a business establishment closes, relocates, changes 
names, or abandons any sign or structure, the owner of the 
property shall remove the sign, or cause it to be removed, within 30 
days of the change of business. If the sign is to be immediately re-
faced with a new business name, a new sign permit shall be 
required and applicable fees shall be paid. A permit shall be non-
transferable from one to another. 

b.    A non-conforming sign shall be brought into compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter when a business establishment 
closes, relocates, changes names, or abandons any sign. A permit 
and applicable fees for the sign modifications are required. 

D.    Liabilities for Insurance and Damages 

1.    The provisions of this code shall not be construed to relieve or to limit in 
any way, the responsibility or liability of any persons, firm or corporation 
which erects or owns any sign from personal injury or property damages 
caused by, attributed to, such sign. The provisions of this code shall not be 
construed to impose upon the Town of Oro Valley, its officers or its 
employees any responsibility or liability by reason of the approval of any sign 
under the provisions of this code. 

E.    Prevailing Code 

In the event a provision established in this Chapter is found to be in conflict 
with another provision in the Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, or any other 
Town Code, the more restrictive shall prevail. 



 4 

If the Town-adopted sign regulations/guidelines for any development, 
including Planned Area Developments, do not address specifically any such 
sign criteria, the provisions of this Chapter shall apply. 

In the event that a Commercial, Industrial, Residential, and/or Subdivision 
should fall under a Zoning of a Planned Area Development (PAD), the rules 
and regulations of that PAD shall apply.  

F.    Signs Prohibited by Omission 

In addition to those signs, or sign types, specifically prohibited by Section 
28.9 of this Chapter, any sign, or type of sign, not specifically permitted 
under provisions of this code shall be prohibited. 

Section 28.2 Procedures and Enforcement 

The Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager 
is responsible for enforcing this chapter pursuant to Section 21.2.B.7 and 
21.4.B.10. The Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division 
Manager is, hereby authorized and empowered to ensure that all provisions of 
this chapter are met in fact and intent. The Planning and Planning and Zoning 
AdministratorPlanning Division Manager may appoint a designee to assure code 
compliance. The procedures to be followed in exercising this authority are 
outlined in Section 28.2.C through 28.2.E. 

A.    Sign Permits, Fees, and Application 

Procedures  

A sign permit shall be required in order to erect, install, relocate, modify, or 
change any sign within the Town of Oro Valley. 



 5 

1.    Approval of all temporary sign permits shall be at the discretion of the 
Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager 
or his/her designee. 

2.    The Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division 
Manager or his/her designee shall authorize issuance of permits for 
permanent signs, after applications have been reviewed by staff for code 
compliance. Any proposed sign criteria or Comprehensive Sign Programs for 
a new Development are subject to review by the Development Review 
Board. Once sign criteria have been approved for a new Development, any 
issuance of sign permits shall be at the discretion of the Town as along as 
the application meets the approved sign criteria set forth for that 
Development. 

3.    All electrical work associated with the sign installation must conform to the 
currently adopted versions of the 2002 National Electrical Code and must be 
reflected on the application. 

4.    Permit Fees: Upon approval of an application for the sign permit, the 
applicant shall be advised of the applicable fee. Permits will not be issued 
until all applicable fees have been collected. Fees shall be assessed 
according to a schedule adopted by the Town Council. 

Exception: The owner of a non-conforming sign shall not be required to 
pay a fee for a permit to bring an existing sign into conformance with 
this code. 

5.    Application Procedures 

a.    Additional information as specified by the Planning and Zoning 
AdministratorDivision Manager. 

6.    Permit Expiration 

a.    Every permit issued under this Chapter shall expire by limitation 
and become null and void if the work authorized by such permit is 
not completed within 180 days from the date of such permit. Prior to 
expiration of the permit, the applicant may request an extension of 
the expiration date at the discretion of the Planning and Planning 
and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager and/or his/her 
appointee. Once the permit has expired, before such work can 
recommence, a new permit shall first be obtained and the fee 
therefore shall be 50 percent of the amount required for a new 
permit for such work, provided no changes have been, or will be, 
made in the original plans and specifications. 

b.    Any sign, for which renewal fees have not been paid, and said 
remittance is delinquent for 14 days or more is deemed to be an 



 6 

illegal sign, and said sign must be removed in accordance with the 
requirements of this Chapter. 

B.    Sign Criteria and master Master Sign Program 

Sign Criteria and Master Sign Programs are official documents that regulate 
all signage within a development. An approved Sign Criteria or Master Sign 
program is required prior to issuance of a sign permit for: (1) non-residential 
multiple-occupancy buildings; (2) commercial, office, resorts, and/or 
industrial centers. 

Any development, including single-occupancy developments, within and/or 
adjacent to an existing development that shares access and/or parking with 
that development must: (1) follow the approved Sign Criteria or Master Sign 
Program for the existing development; or (2) submit an approved Sign 
Criteria or Master Sign Program. If the owner elects to follow the Criteria or 
Program of the existing center, no additional approvals are required prior to 
issuance of a sign permit. 

A sign package for commercial and/or industrial businesses, that has not 
been approved as part of a Sign Criteria and/or Master Sign Program shall 
be reviewed by the Development Review Board prior to the issuance of a 
permit. 

1.    Sign Criteria 

Sign Criteria shall be written in compliance with the provisions of this 
Chapter and Addendum A design guidelines. For areas within a PAD 
(Planned Area Development), Sign Criteria shall be written in 
compliance with the provisions of the PAD. Sign Criteria require the 
approval of the Development Review Board. 

2.    Master Sign Program 

A Master Sign Program is an alternative to the sign regulations herein, 
which provides latitude in order to achieve variety and good design. 

a.    Master Sign Programs shall be based on the provisions of this 
Chapter and shall conform to the purpose and intent of the Chapter 
and to the guidelines in Addendum A. 

b.    Master Sign Programs shall include only those sign types already 
permitted herein and may allow adjustments to the standards of 
those types provided they are justifiable.  

c. A Master Sign Program  shallProgram shall not be used for single 
occupancy developments.  The use of a Master Sign Program is to 
allow adjustments to the standards of multiple sign types.   



 7 

cd.    Master Sign Programs require review by the Development 
Review Board and approval by the Town Council. 

de.    Compliance with these provisions does not necessarily 
guarantee approval by the Town Council. 

3.    Review of Sign Criteria and/or Master Sign Program shall be guided by the 
following: 

a.    Overall presentation of the entire development, including 
landscaping, architecture, topography, uses and design. 

b.    Compliance with the criteria specified in Addendum A-C.4 and the 
purpose statements of this Chapter. 

c.    Any other applicable information that may be useful in the overall 
presentation of the proposed criteria for the development. 

4.    Application for the Sign Criteria and/or Master Program shall be submitted, 
with the required fee(s) as prescribed by the Planning and ZoningPlanning 
Division Manager Administrator. 

C.    PAD Exemption 

In the event that a Planned Area Development District (PAD) has 
established its own sign Requirements, the owner/residents of lands within 
identified planning areas of the PAD, as determined by the Planning and 
Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager, may elect to 
operate under all or a portion of Chapter 28, Signs, in accordance with the 
following procedures set forth below: 

1.    A letter requesting exemption from the specific PAD Sign Regulations must 
be submitted by the property owner within the planning area of the PAD. The 
letter shall be accompanied by a list of all Homeowners/Master Associations 
within the subject planning area. Upon review by the Administrator, the 
request shall be scheduled for public hearing before the Development 
Review board for their recommendation. 

2.    Not less than 30 days prior to the Development Review Board hearing, 
Town staff shall verify the list of Associations for accuracy and completeness 
and shall, by first class mail, notify them of the Development Review Board 
hearing date. 

3.    The Development Review Board shall consider the applicants request for 
exemption from the PAD Sign Regulations and shall forward their 
recommendation to Town Council, which shall render a final decision. A 
favorable motion shall have the effect of applying all or portion of the rules 
and regulations set forth in this Chapter 28, Signs, to the applicant’s 



 8 

particular project area. The Town Council shall approve, conditionally 
approve, or deny the request. 

D.    Revocation of Permit 

The Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division 
Manager may, in writing, suspend or revoke a permit issued under 
provisions of this Section whenever the permit is issued on the basis of a 
material omission or misstatement of fact, or is in violation of this ordinance 
or the Oro Valley Town Code. 

E.    Abandoned, Illegal, Prohibited, or Inadequately Maintained Signs 

If an abandoned, illegal, prohibited, or inadequately maintained sign is 
located within the Town, the Planning and Planning and Zoning 
AdministratorPlanning Division Manager shall be empowered to authorize 
the Senior Zoning InspectorPlanning ManagerPlanning Division Manager  to 
issue a citation. The Planning and Planning and Zoning 
AdministratorPlanning Division Manager may also require removal or repair 
of the sign and shall advise the owner of said sign, or as an alternative, the 
owner of the property where said sign has been posted, to correct whatever 
violation or inadequacy he/she deems to exist. All actual costs and expenses 
of any such removal or repair shall be borne by the property owner of such 
sign. 

F.    Emergency Removals and/or Repair 

1.    The Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division 
Manager is authorized to cause the immediate removal or repair of any sign 
or signs found to be unsafe or defective to the extent that it creates an 
immediate and emergency hazard to persons or property. The Planning and 
Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager shall make 
reasonable effort to notify the property owner and/or lessee that the unsafe 
or defective sign must be removed or repaired immediately. The Planning 
and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager may 
cause any sign or advertising structure which is an immediate peril to 
persons or property to be removed summarily after attempt to reach the 
owner of the sign and the owner of the property, and without notice if the 
peril does not allow time for telephone notice. 

2.    All actual costs and expenses of any sign removal or repair shall be borne 
by the owner of such sign and by the owner of the premises on which the 
sign is located. Each of them shall be jointly and severally liable thereof, and 
an action for recovery thereof may be brought by the Town upon proper 
documentation of such cost and/or expenses by the Planning and Planning 
and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager. The Planning and 
Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager shall provide 



 9 

written notification to the property owner, prior to the Town placing a lien on 
the property with the County Assessor’s Office. 

G.    Variances 

The Board of Adjustment shall review any request for a variance to the 
standards contained in the Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised in accordance 
with Section 21.6.  

Section 28.3 Requirements 

A.    Construction 

1.    Building Code 

All signs shall be designed and constructed in conformity with the 
current Building Codes of the Town of Oro Valley. 

2.    Electrical Code 

All signs requiring an electrical permit per Section 28.2.A shall be in 
conformance with the current 2002 National Electrical Code adopted by 
the Town of Oro Valley. 

3.    Permanent Sign Materials 

All permanent signs shall be constructed using structural members of 
materials subject to approval of the Building Official and/or Town 
Engineer. Non-structural trim may be wood, metal, aluminum, approved 
plastics, lexan, and or a combination thereof. 

4.    Temporary Sign Materials 

Materials proposed to be used in constructing Temporary signs shall be 
at the discretion of the fabricator but shall be stated in the application for 
the sign permit unless otherwise provided in this code. Adequacy of 
materials proposed from the standpoints of stability and safety and of 
composition and color shall be subject to approval by the Planning and 
Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager, Building 
Official and/or his/her designee. 

B.    Illumination 

1.    Illumination of signs may be accomplished only by the following methods: 

a.    Halo Illumination, white or neon internal illumination only, unless 
otherwise approved by the Planning and Planning and Zoning 



 10 

AdministratorPlanning Division Manager or the Development 
Review Board. 

b.    Area lighting provided such lighting is in accordance with the Town 
of Oro Valley Lighting Code. 

c.    Internal illumination to the extent that only the sign characters and 
logos emit light. 

d.    An illuminated wall sign may be turned on at 5 a.m. and shall be 
turned off no later than one (1) hour after the closing of a 
business11 p.m. or when the business closes, whichever is later. 

e.    LED lighting may be a component of a sign as specifically called 
out under this Chapter. 

2.    Prohibited Lighting 

The following types of light sources are prohibited as means to 
illuminate or attract attention to any sign: 

a.    Exposed neon and/or neon type tubing except for “open” and/or 
“closed” signs. 

b.    Internal lighting other than that expressly permitted in Section 
28.3.B.1. 

c.    Blinking, flashing, rotating and animated light sources. 

d.    Search lights. 

e.    An illuminated sign placed on the interior of a business, which is 
visible from the outside, cannot be illuminated when the business is 
closed. 

C.    Colors 

1.    Various sign colors shall be permitted, except fluorescent or iridescent 
colors. 

2.    All developments, including those within a Planned Area Development 
(PAD) that have established sign criteria or Master Sign Program approved 
by the Development Review Board, shall be required to utilize only those 
colors that were approved by the Development Review Board. 

3.    Consistency of typeface, illumination, and color is preferred if established 
sign criteria have been approved, and then all requirements of that criteria 
must be utilized. 
 



 11 

D.    Location and Measurement Standards 

1.    The following shall apply for the location standards of a sign: 

a.    No sign shall be installed so as to obstruct any door, window, or 
fire escape of any building. 

b.    No sign shall be erected in such a way as: a) to interfere with or to 
confuse traffic, b) to present any traffic hazard, c) to obstruct the 
vision of motorists. 

c.    No sign shall be erected in a manner which projects over any 
public sidewalks, street, alley, or public place unless otherwise 
approved by the Town Engineer and/or Planning and Planning and 
Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager or is allowed by 
any portion of this Chapter. 

d.    No person shall place or maintain a sign in public right-of-way, 
except as permitted by Sections 28.1.C, Non-Conforming and 
Discontinued Signs, 28.6.B.6., Real Estate Lease, Rent and For 
Sale Signs and 28.7, Temporary Signs on Public Property. The 
Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division 
Manager may cause the removal of any unauthorized signs from 
public right-of-way.  

e.    No sign shall be installed so as to interfere with the essential 
identity of another sign. 

2.    The sign area shall be measured in compliance with the following 
guidelines: 

a.    The area of a sign that consists of individual letters, words and 
symbols, which are placed upon a building wall of freestanding wall 
and are not encompassed by a frame or boundary, shall be 
measured by the overall height of the tallest letter by the overall 
length of the entire sign. The Planning and Planning and Zoning 
AdministratorPlanning Division Manager may approve the 
calculation of signs by measuring the sum of the smallest 
rectangular shape needed to enclose each letter or symbol if 
special circumstances arise that would warrant the need to 
calculate differently. 

b.    A sign that consists of multiple faces such as a freestanding sign 
shall be measured to encompass the overall height by overall 
length of one (1) face. 

c.    The sign height shall be measured as the vertical distance from 
the average finished grade beneath the sign to the topmost feature 
of the sign. If the sign is located where the average finished grade 



 12 

is lower than the adjoining grade of the road, the sign height may 
be taken from the top of the road, curb, or crown of the road 
nearest the property to the topmost portion of the sign. 

d.    Clearance is measured as the shortest distance between the 
underside of the sign and the average finished grade beneath the 
sign. 

e.    Setbacks for freestanding signs shall be measured from the edge 
of the sign structure closet to the property line. 

E.    Inspections and Maintenance 

1.    Inspections 

The Building Codes Administrator, Planning and Planning and Zoning 
AdministratorPlanning Division Manager, and/or Town Engineer, or any 
such person officially designated by them, is hereby empowered to 
perform inspections, as deemed appropriate, to assure compliance with 
this code.  

2.    Maintenance 

Each sign shall be maintained in a new or like new condition at all times 
so as not to constitute a danger or hazard to public safety or become an 
eyesore to the community. 

F.    Landscaping 

1.    The base for all permanent freestanding signs shall be integrated into a 
landscape buffer area. 

2.    The landscaped area shall conform to the Town’s landscape requirements 
and shall be maintained at all times. 

3.    The landscape design shall not permit plants that would obstruct the 
visibility of the sign face from the street. 

Section 28.4 Definitions and Sign Types 

1.    Abandoned Signs 

A sign which advertises, identifies or gives notice of a business which is 
no longer in operation or an activity which has already occurred. 

2.    Advertisings 

A sign primarily listing products sold or services offered, or products 
manufactured on the premises. 



 13 

3.    Alterations 

Shall mean any change, addition, or modification in construction of an 
existing sign. 

4.    Animations 

The movement or optical illusion of movement of any part of a sign 
structure, design, or pictorial segment, including the movement of any 
illumination, flashing or varying of light intensity. The automatic 
changing of all or part of the facing of the sign. The movement of a sign 
set in motion by the atmosphere. 

5.    Awning Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.1. 

6.    Balloon Signs 

An airtight bag filled with helium, gas, hot air or the like, causing it to 
rise, that is anchored to a building or structure with ropes, wires and/or 
string to attract attention to the public. 

7.    Banners 

Refer to Section 28.6.A.1. 

8.    Billboards 

An off-site sign that is pasted, painted or fastened on in a manner to 
allow for periodic replacement of messages that is not located on the 
property where the billboard is located. 

9.    Building Frontage 

The measurement between two (2) straight lines projecting from the 
outermost edges of a building or tenant space wall, that are 
perpendicular to a straight line running along the ground level of the 
front of the measured wall. 

10.    Cabinet Signs 

A three (3) dimensional structure which includes a frame, borders and 
sign panel face and may include internal illumination upon which the 
sign logos are placed or etched, and is architecturally integrated with 
the building. 

 



 14 

11.    Change of Copy 

A replacement face(s) or material to an existing sign without changing 
any structural members, sizes, and/or heights. 

12.    Changeable Copy Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.2. 

 

13.    Character 

Any letter, number, logo, and/or symbol as defined in this Section. 

14.    Construction Signs 

Refer to Section 28.6.A.2. 

15.    Development Complex 

A site, having common vehicular access points, which is subject to a 
development plan. 

16.    Development Signs 

Refer to Section 28.6.A.3.  

17.    Direct Lighting 

A source of external illumination located a distance away from the sign 
which lights the sign, but which itself, is not visible from any normal 
position or view. 

 

 



 15 

18.    Directional Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 16 

19.    Directory Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.4. 

 

20.    Double-Faced Signs 

A sign having two (2) display surfaces, one (or more) support(s) of 
which is (are) shared by both surfaces. Hence, double-face signs 
include back-to-back signs as well as V-shaped signs. 

21.    Electronic Message Signs 

A sign that permits the movement or frequent changing of messages by 
means of electronically controlled sign copy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 17 

22.    Entryway Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.5 and Section 28.5.c.1. 

 

23.    Fascia 

A parapet-type wall used as part of the facade of a flat-roofed building 
and projecting from the building face immediately adjacent thereto. 
Such a wall shall enclose at least three (3) sides of the projecting flat 
roof. 

24.    Flags 

Refer to Section 28.6.A.4. 

 

25.    Freestanding 

Shall mean any structure, which is not attached to any other structure or 
portion of a structure. 

 

 

 



 18 

 

26.    Freestanding Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.6. 

 

27.    Garage Sale Signs 

An on-site or off-site, temporary sign, made from paper, poster board, 
cardboard, or like material. 

28.    Government Signs 

A sign installed or required by a public agency such as traffic, public, 
transit, public information, or the like. 

29.    Grade 

Shall mean the elevation of the ground surface, paving, or sidewalk. 

30.    Grand Opening Signs 

An on-site sign advertising the opening of an establishment, expansion, 
or change of ownership of a commercial enterprise, new business, 
store, or office. 

31.    Ground or Monument Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.96. 



 19 

 

32.    Halo Illumination 

Illumination produced by recessing a light source inside a hollow 
character with an open back or within the surface to which the sign 
letters are mounted. An outline glow around the characters is created by 
this light reflecting off the background to which the characters are 
attached. 

33.    Historical Marker 

A sign marker locating and identifying a historical interest or site. 

34.    Home Occupation Signs 

A sign that identifies a business or commercial activity that is conducted 
from the property zoned for residential use. 

35.    Human Signs 

Any portable commercial advertisement that is held or worn by a person 
or persons to draw attention to or direct the public to a business or 
event. 

36.    Identification Signs 

An on-site, permanent sign, which identifies the premise where the sign 
is located. 

37.    Illuminated Signs 

A sign, whose surface is lit internally or externally. 

38.    Indirect Lighting 

A source of external illumination located a distance away from the sign, 
but which is itself not visible from any normal position. 

39.    Internal Illumination 

A source of illumination entirely within the sign wherein the source of the 
illumination is not visible. 

40.    Kiosk Signs 

A freestanding sign providing directional information to Town facilities, 
subdivisions and apartments.The Town shall contract with an 
independent contractor who will coordinate a subdivision tract and 



 20 

apartment sign program within the Town limits. The contractor shall be 
responsible for the manufacture of all kiosks and tract signs. All signs 
shall be built in accordance with the contract, specifications of the 
International Building Code and specifications of the Town’s Building 
Safety Division. 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.7. 

41.    Logo 

A graphic symbol representing a business. Logos shall be registered 
trademarks.  

42.    Maintenance 

The replacing or repairing of a part of a sign made usable, unsafe, or 
unattractive by ordinary wear, tear or damage beyond the control of the 
owner, or the repainting of an existing sign without changing the 
wording, location, composition or color of said sign. 

43.    Marquee Signs 

Any sign affixed to or constructed in a roof like structure or awning 
projecting over an entrance to a building such as a theater. 

44.    Memorial Signs 

A permanent sign, table, or plaque memorializing a person, event, 
structure, or site. 

45.    Menu-Boards 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.8. 

46.    Model Home Flags 

Refer to Section 28.6.B.3. 

47.    Modifier 

A word describing uses and activities other than the business name. 

48.    Moving or Animated Signs 

Any sign or part of a sign which changes physical position, flashes, 
blinks lights, rotates or conveys the illusion of movement by mechanical 
means, illumination and/or air movement. 

 



 21 

 

49.    Neon Signs 

An illuminated, commercial display made up of glass tubes, shaped to form 
letters and designs. 
 

50.    Non-Conforming Signs 

Any sign which does not conform to the provisions of this code but 
which, when first constructed, was legally allowed by the Town of Oro 
Valley or political subdivision then having control over signs. 

51.    Obsolete 

That which is no longer used. 

52.    Off-Site Signs 

Any sign not located on the premises or site of the use identified or 
advertised by the sign. 

53.    On-Site Signs 

Any sign, which is located on the premise or site of the use identified or 
advertised by the sign. 

54.    On-Site Subdivision Signs 

An on-site, temporary sign, located at the entrance to a subdivision. 

55.    Open House 

A dwelling or office space to which the public is invited for walk-in 
inspections. 

56.    Pan-Channel Letters 

A dimensional character fabricated to form a pan (i.e., a back and 
sides). The pan is formed in the shape of a character. The sides are 
strips of the same material fastened to the back. The open end of the 
pan is usually capped by a character cut from translucent acrylic, and is 
known as the face. Neon or low voltage lights are then installed inside 
the pan to illuminate the face. 

 

 



 22 

57.    Parapet 

The top portion of the wall which extends above the roofline. 

58.    Pennants 

Any lightweight plastic, fabric or other material, containing multi-colors and 
whether or not containing a message of any kind, suspended from a rope, 
wires, or string, designed to move in the wind. 
 

59.    Permanent Sign 

Any display of letters, numerals, symbols, and/or insignia that is 
intended to be displayed for an indefinite or long-lasting period and the 
lettering or message of which is intended to remain  

essentially unchanged except for the maintenance against normal 
effects of exposure to weather. 

60.    Pole Cover 

Covers made from various materials which enclose or conceal a pole or 
other structural supports or members to the sign. 

61.    Political Election Sign 

A sign not permanently installed in the ground or attached to a building 
relating to the election of a person to a public office, or relating to a 
public party, or relating to a matter to be voted upon at an election 
called by a public body.  

62.    Portable Signs 

Any sign not permanently attached to the ground or other permanent 
structure, or a sign designed to be transported, including, but not limited 
to, signs designed to be moved by means of wheels; signs converted 
into A-frames; menu and sandwich board signs; balloons used as signs; 
and signs attached to or painted on vehicles parked and visible from the 
public right-of-way, unless said vehicles is used in normal day to day 
operations of the business. 

63.    Posters 

A large printed display or picture often posted in a public place as a 
notice or advertisement. 

 



 23 

 

64.    Premises 

All contiguous land used and occupied by an establishment, whether 
owned or leased from another. Included are all buildings, storage and 
service areas, and private roads or driveways which are an integral part 
of the establishment. 

65.    Prohibited Use 

Shall mean a use not specifically permitted. 

66.    Public Service Signs 

A sign which provides directions to a public or quasi-public location such 
as community centers, schools, town facilities, and religious instititions. 

67.    Projecting Signs 

An on-site sign attached to and extending more than 12 inches from a 
structure not designed exclusively for the support of the sign and/or a 
sign which projects from the wall of a building or structure perpendicular 
to the wall surface. 

68.    Real Estate Signs 

A sign pertaining to the sale, rent or lease of the premise, or portion of 
the premise on which the sign is located. 

69.    Reasonable Repairs 

To restore an existing structure to a good or sound condition resulting 
from decay or damage. 

70.    Residential Signs 

A sign on which is displayed the name and address of the occupant. 

71.    Reverse Channel Letters 

A sign with dimensional character(s) fabricated from opaque material to 
form a pan, i.e., a front and sides. The pan is formed in the shape of a 
character. The sides are strips of material fastened to the front. The 
back remains open. Neon or low voltage lights may be installed inside 
the character which creates a halo illumination. 

 



 24 

 

72.    Roofline 

The top edge of the roof or the top of the parapet, whichever forms the 
top line of the building silhouette. 

73.    Roof Signs 

A sign that is mounted on, above or over the roof of a building, so that is 
projects above the highest point of the roofline, parapet or fascia of the 
building. 

74.    Seasonal Signs 

Refer to Section 28.6.A.6. 

75.    Service Station/Fuel Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.109. 

 

76.    Setback 

The shortest straight line distance in feet from the nearest property or lot 
boundary to the main accessory building, structure, sign, or the like, 
located on the same property or lot. 

77.    Sign 

Every message, announcement, declaration, display, illustration, 
insignia, character, surface, or space erected, maintained or attached to 
any structure, surface, or thing and made visible for the purpose of 
attracting attention or to make anything known to the public. 

 



 25 

78.    Sign Area Allotment 

The permitted amount of identification sign area on ratio to the linear 
footage of building frontage. 

79.    Sign Modification 

Any change to an existing sign’s copy, color, and/or supporting 
structures. 

80.    Sign Structure 

A freestanding wall, pole, pedestal, or object erected for the purpose of 
supporting the sign. 

81. Single Occupancy Development: 

A development that is not part of a larger development and is solely used 
for a single business. 

8182.    Site Plan 

A plan drawing of an individual site including the layout of buildings, 
circulation system, parking, walls, landscaping, open space and any 
other appropriate information as required by the Town of Oro Valley to 
provide adequate review. 

8283.    Special Event Signs 

Refer to Section 28.6.A.7. 

8384.    Subcontractor Signs 

A temporary sign which identifies the firm, business, persons, or entity 
responsible for work or activity in progress at the location of the sign. 

8485.    Symbol 

A letter, figure, or other conventional mark designating an object, 
quantity, operation, function, or the like. 

8586.    Temporary Signs 

Any display in public view to advertise or convey information or direction 
which is intended to be displayed for a limited or finite period of time 
only. The type, quality, and materials of construction of which, although 
visually attractive and structurally sound, are not intended to be long 
lasting. 



 26 

8687.    Tenant Directoriesy 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.1110. 

 

8788.    Theater Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.1211. 

 

8889.    Time and Temperature Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.1312. 

8990.    Traffic Signs 

An on-site sign or off-site sign whose sole purpose and placement are 
solely to define and streamline the flow of vehicular traffic so as to 
minimize congestion and promote safety. 

9091.    Under Canopy Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.1413. 

 

 



 27 

9192.    Unoccupied 

A premises or structure which is not occupied or being put to those uses 
as authorized by the last business privilege license issued by the Town 
for that address and business or a premises or structure where the 
public utilities are not in service. 

9293.    Vehicle Signs 

A sign mounted, painted, or erected upon trucks, cars, boats, trailers, or 
other motorized vehicles or equipment and is parked for the primary 
purpose of functioning as a sign. 

9394.    Wall 

Any structure or device required or allowed by the code forming a 
physical barrier which is so constructed that 50 percent or more of the 
vertical surface is closed and prevents the passage of light, air, and 
vision through said surface in the horizontal plane. This shall include 
concrete, concrete block, wood, or other materials that are solid and are 
so assembled as to form a screen. Where a solid wall is specified, 100 
percent of the vertical surface shall be closed except for approved gates 
or other access ways. Where a masonry wall is specified, said wall shall 
be concrete block, brick, stone, or other similar material and 100 
percent of the vertical surface shall be closed except for the approved 
gates and access ways. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9495.    Wall Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.1514. 



 28 

 

 

9596.    Window Signs 

96.    Refer to Section 28.5.B.165. 

((O)07-33, Amended, 9/19/07) 

Section 28.5 Permanent Signs 

A.    Identification Signs 

1.    The following sign shall be required for the purpose of identification: 

a.    Residential address 

b.    Building address for multi-building development (Refer to the 
current Pima County Addressing Code Regulations) 

c.    Names of streets, drives, circles, complexes, condominiums, etc. 

B.    Permitted Signs in a Commercial/Industrial District 

The following permanent sign types shall be allowed within a Commercial, 
Industrial and/or Private Schools District. 

1.    Awning Signs 

a.    Description: A sign, which is placed on, or integrated into, fabric or 
other material canopies, which is mounted on the exterior wall of a 
building. Sign copy affixed to an awning may only display the name 
of the business and/or address.   

b.    Quantity: One (1) awning allowed per business. 



 29 

c.    Area of Sign Copy: 20 square feet maximum which shall count 
against the businesses sign area allotment. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed above the roofline of a building. 

e.    Illumination: Internal illumination, fluorescent lamps, provided only 
the copy emits light. The background material shall be opaque. An 
awning sign must be turned off one (1) hour after closing of 
business. 

2.    Changeable Copy Signs 

a.    Description: A sign or portion thereof with characters, letters, or 
illustrations that can be changed or re-arranged without altering the 
face or surface of the sign. Changeable copy signs are limited to 
and/or restricted to theater, service station/fuel signs, schools, and 
religious institutions. Such signs shall be integrated into 
freestanding and/or wall mounted type signs and may be 
illuminated. Changeable copy may not be changed electronically, 
except for those specifically called out under this ordinance. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) allowed as part of a freestanding or wall sign. 

c.    Area of Sign: To be included as a component of a freestanding or 
wall sign. 

3.    Directional Signs 

a.    Description: A permanent freestanding, on-site sign that is placed 
solely to define location and streamline the flow of vehicular and/or 
pedestrian traffic so as to minimize congestion and promote safety. 
A directional sign can only display one of the following: “exit,” 
“enter,” “name of the business and/or logo,” “address and/or suite 
#,” along with an arrow directing traffic. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) single or double faced directional sign per 
individual, freestanding, business that is not part of a Master Sign 
Program. Businesses that have drive-thru lanes shall be allowed 
one (1) additional directional sign. 

c.    Area of Sign: Six (6) square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed three (3) feet. 

e.    Location: To be located at an access point to the property and/or 
interior to the property of the business.  

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 



 30 

g.    Illumination: Internal illumination allowed provided that the sign is 
turned off one (1) hour after the business has closed. 

4.    Directory Signs 

a.    Description: An on-site, freestanding sign, interior to a 
Development, that lists only names and locations of the businesses 
or activities within a building or multi-tenant complex. A directory 
sign shall help to direct vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic. 

b.    Quantity: Shall be determined and reviewed by the Town. 
Applicant shall follow the guidelines set forth under a Master Sign 
Program, Section 28.2.B.  

c.    Area of Sign: Not to exceed 40 square feet. Each business 
displayed on the sign shall not exceed two (2) square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed eight (8) feet from grade. 

e.    Location: Interior to the property or development, such as the 
parking area. 

f.    Setback: Minimum 40 feet from the property line. 

g.    Illumination: Internal illumination allowed provided that the sign is 
turned off at 11:00 pm. 

5.    Entryway Signs 

a.    Description: A permanent sign identifying the entrance to a 
subdivision, complex, facility, or commercial development. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per entry wall per street frontage. If the linear 
dimension of the project exceeds 600 400 feet and there is more 
than one (1) entry point along that frontage, a second entryway sign 
may be permitted on that frontage. A corner wall that fronts both 
streets may be utilized as an allowable sign. A property may utilize 
a combination of entryway signs and freestanding signs so long as 
the property does not exceed a maximum of three (3) for any one 
project. 

c.    Area of Sign: 32 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed the height of the entryway wall in which the 
sign is placed. 

e.    Location: At the main entrance in a landscaped area setting, either 
on the ground or in raised planters, which extends a minimum of 
three (3) feet from all sides of the sign visible from the street. 



 31 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Illumination: Halo illuminated letters, (white or neon or amber LED 
or neon) or direct lighting that shall not project above the wall.  The 
sign may be turned on at 5 a.m. and shall be turned off by 11 
p.m[JDL5]. 

6.    Freestanding/Monument Signs 

a.    Description: A permanent, freestanding style sign supported by 
structures, supports, columns, uprights, and/or braces, that are 
placed on, or anchored in the ground and is independent of the 
building or business. The sign may be single or doubled-faced. The 
sign may contain the name of the development and a maximum of 
six (6)eight (8) anchor tenants[JDL7], along with the address of the 
property. No individual tenant may be displayed on more than one 
(1) freestanding sign per street frontage. A theater, service 
station/fuel, religious institution, or school sign may display their 
name and/or logo along with changeable copy panels. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per entrance to a development. If the linear 
frontage of the development exceeds 600 400 feet and there is 
more than one (1) entrance to the development, a second 
freestanding sign shall be allowed on that frontage. A corner sign 
that fronts both street frontages may be utilized as an allowable 
sign. A property may utilize a combination of entryway signs and 
freestanding signs so long as the property does not exceed a 
maximum of three (3) for any one project. 

c.    Area of Sign: 50 square feet for a single tenant or the 
/development name.sign and 72 square feet for a multiple tenant 
sign with tenant panels.. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed eight (8) feet from grade.  An architectural 
element to the sign, such as an arch or column, may exceed the 
height of the freestanding sign by 25% provided that all text and 
logos are under the eight (8) feet in height from grade. 

e.    Location: To be placed at the entrance to a development or 
individual property. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Illumination: Individual letters to be halo illuminated (white neon 
oror amber LED or neon).. Individual panels are to be opaque with 
routed copy in which the copy may be lit internally or a combination 
thereof.  Unused tenant panels shall be opaque and designed to 



 32 

match the rest of the sign.  The sign may be turned on at 5 a.m. 
and shall be turned off not later than 11:00 pm. 

7.    Kiosk Identification Signs 

All kiosk signs shall be governed by the following sign program: 

a.    Description: The Town shall contract with an independent 
contractor who will coordinate a subdivision tract and apartment 
sign program within the Town limits. The contractor shall be 
responsible for the manufacture of all kiosks and tract signs. All 
signs shall be built in accordance with the contract, specifications of 
the International Building Code and specifications of the Town’s 
Building Safety Division. 

b.    Quantity: Provided in the contract approved by the Town. 

c.    Area of Sign: Each sign panel shall not exceed a maximum of 
eight (8) inches by four (4) feet in length. 

d.    Height and Width: Each kiosk shall not exceed a maximum five (5) 
feet in width and eight (8) feet in height. 

e.    Location: Kiosks shall be approved in any zone within the Town, 
provided they are located on an Arterial or Collector street. 

f.    Standards: Planning and Zoning, along with Public Works, shall 
review all applications for the location of the kiosks. 

i.    There shall be no more than four (4) kiosks to any 
application; 

ii.    An encroachment permit shall be issued for any kiosk 
proposed in public right-of-way. 

iii.    Kiosks shall not obstruct the view of the traveling public. 

iv.    Kiosk signs shall only display and give direction to, the name 
of a subdivision. 

gf.    Illumination: Shall be non-illuminated. 

hg.    Removal: Any kiosk containing less than three (3) panels, for a 
period of 90 days, shall be removed by the contractor. 

h    Additional Requirements: The Development and Infrastructure 
Services DepartmentPlanning and Zoning, along with Public Works 
(check for other instances)shall review all applications for the 
location of the kiosks. 



 33 

i.    There shall be no more than four (4) kiosks to any 
application; 

ii.    An encroachment permit shall be issued for any kiosk 
proposed in public right-of-way. 

iii.    Kiosks shall not obstruct the view of the traveling public. 

iv.    Kiosk signs shall only display and give direction to, the name 
of a subdivision. 

 

 

 

8.    Menu-Boards 

a.    Description: A sign that may be freestanding or wall mounted. A 
menu-board is for the purpose of placing orders and providing a list 
of bill of fare of a drive-thru or drive-in restaurant. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per individual business. 

c.    Area of Sign: 32 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed six (6) feet. 

e.    Location: To be placed within a designated drive-thru lane so as 
not to be readable from a street or an adjacent property. 

f.    Setback: Must be on private property and shall not interfere with 
flow of traffic or obstruct the vision of a motorist. 

g.    Illumination: Shall be internally illuminated provided the menu-
board is turned off no later than one (1) hour after business is 
closed. 

9.    Monument/Ground Sign 

a.    Description: A monolith-type, freestanding sign attached to a 
freestanding masonry wall or supported by structures, supports, 
columns, and/or braces that are concealed by a pole cover or 
masonry base. The sign may be single or double-faced and shall 
only consist of the name of the individual business, building or 
building complex, along with the address of the property. 

[JA11]b.    Quantity: One (1) per individual property. 

c.    Area of Sign: 32 square feet. 



 34 

d.    Height: Not to exceed a maximum of six (6) feet. 

e.    Location: On private property where the business is located. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Illumination: Halo illumination (white neon or amber LED only), 
internal illumination, (provided that only the characters emit light) or 
a combination thereof, provided that the sign is turned off one (1) 
hour after business is closed. 

 

 

109.    Service Station/Fuel Signs 

a.    Description: A permanent, two (2) component, freestanding sign, 
displaying the current fuel prices, fuel types, name of the station 
and/or any logo’s. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per street frontage. 

c.    Area of Sign: 32 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed six (6) feet from grade. 

e.    Location: On private property on an arterial or collector street only. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Illumination: Name of the business along with logo’s, shall be 
internally illuminated. Current fuel prices and fuel types may be 
internally illuminated or may be electronically illuminated by means 
of LED, provided the light is low in intensity. Any constant 
movement, blinking, flashing, or animation caused by an LED is 
prohibited. 

 

1110.    Tenant Directorys 

a.    Description: An exterior, wall mounted sign, that lists only the 
names and locations of those residing within a complex or 
development and its sole purpose is for pedestrian traffic only. The 
sign shall consist of a uniform background color and letter styles. 



 35 

b.    Quantity: Shall be determined and reviewed by the Town. 
Applicant shall follow the guidelines set forth under a Master Sign 
Program, Section 28.2.B. 

c.    Area of Sign: The sign shall consist of a four (4) square foot panel 
for the name of the complex. Each business or resident within the 
complex shall be allowed a maximum two (2) square foot panel. 

d.    Height: Should be at eye level for pedestrian traffic and shall not 
exceed the roofline of a building. 

e.    Location: Mounted to a wall at entrance points to the complex, 
pedestrian walkways, and the like. 

f.    Illumination: Sign shall be non-illuminated. 

 

 

1211.    Theater Signs 

a.    Description: A freestanding or wall sign with changeable copy 
panels, used to display the current movies and times that are 
playing within the theater. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) wall sign and (1) freestanding sign allowed. 

c.    Area of Sign: 50 square feet for a freestanding sign. 64 square feet 
for a wall sign. 

d.    Height: Eight (8) feet for a freestanding sign. A wall sign shall not 
extend above the roofline of a building. 

e.    Location: A freestanding sign shall be located on private property 
and a wall sign shall be displayed at the main entrance to the 
building. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Illumination: The sign may be internally illuminated or the copy 
may be electronically illuminated by means of an LED. The sign 
may only display the current listing of movies and their times. No 
other advertising message is allowed. Any constant movement, 
blinking, flashing, or animation is strictly prohibited. The sign shall 
be turned off one (1) hour after closing of theater. 

 



 36 

1312.    Time and Temperature Signs 

a.    Description: An electronically controlled sign providing the current 
time and temperature. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per premise. 

c.    Area of Sign: A time and temperature sign may be a component of 
a freestanding sign. Wall signs shall not exceed 20 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed the roofline of a building. 

e.    Location: Shall not be located within 600 feet of another time and 
temperature sign, not including an analog mounted on a wall. 

f.    Illumination: May be electronically controlled by means of an LED.  

 

 

 

1413.    Under Canopy Signs 

a.    Description: A wall mounted or hanging sign which identifies the 
name of the business and/or logo. Under canopy signs shall be 
consistent in color, shape, design[JDL12],  and materials within a sign 
criteria approved by the Town of Oro Valley. An under canopy sign 
is to be located entirely under a covered porch, walkway, extended 
roof or the like and is solely used for pedestrian traffic only. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per tenant space. 

c.    Area of Sign: Four (4) square feet. 

d.    Height: A minimum clearance of seven (7) feet shall be maintained 
beneath the sign and shall not extend above a roofline of the 
building. 

e.    Location: The sign shall be in front of the tenant space that it is 
identifying and shall be suspended from a roof overhang, above a 
walkway or porch or may be perpendicular to the street and 
attached to the fascia of the building. 

f.    Illumination: Shall be non-illuminated. 

 

 



 37 

1514.    Wall Signs 

a.    Description: Any sign which is fastened, attached, connected, or 
supported in whole or in part by a building or structure other than a 
sign structure which is supported wholly by the ground with the 
exposed face of the sign in a plane parallel to the plane of the wall. 
A wall sign may consist of individual character letters (pan channel 
or reverse channel). Individual logos may consist of cabinets with a 
translucent type face. Wall signs may include the name of the 
business, a trademarked logo, and modifiers, if needed to further 
clarify the goods or services available on the premise. 

b.    Quantity: No more than two (2) elevations may contain a wall sign.  
A single tenant who occupies an entire freestanding building may 
have signs on three elevations.  Only two elevations may contain 
illuminated wall signs.   

c.    Area of Sign: For building elevations containing wall signs, a sign 
may be 24 square feet by right, with no single wall sign containing 
more than one (1) square foot of sign for each linear foot of building 
frontage, not to exceed a maximum sign area of 150 square feet. 
Wall signs for building elevations further than 300 feet from the 
street, may contain no more than 1¾ square feet of sign area for 
each linear foot of frontage, not to exceed a maximum sign area of 
200 square feet. Where businesses do not possess individual 
frontages, each may maintain an individual sign; however, the 
maximum wall sign square footage shall not be exceeded. 

d.    Height: No wall sign shall extend above the roofline of a building. 

e.    Location: Shall only be placed on the building elevations or at the 
main entrance of a business, which the sign identifies, and may not 
project more than eight (8) inches from the wall on which the sign is 
mounted. 

f.    Illumination: May be non-illuminated, halo illuminated (white neon 
or amber LED) or internally illuminated for cabinet type signs. The 
sign may be turned on at 5 a.m. and shall be turned off one (1) 
hourat 11 p.m. or afterwhen the business closing of the 
business.es, whichever is later. 

 

 

 

 



 38 

1615.    Window Signs 

a.    Description: Any form of advertisement and/or identification 
associated with the business that is affixed to the interior or exterior 
of a window, or one that is placed immediately behind a window so 
as to inform or attract attention to the public outside of the building 
and/or tenant space. Window signs shall be divided into three (3) 
types of signs: 

i.    Business Name/Hours of Operations: Signs shall identify the 
name of the business along with hours in which the business is 
open and/or closed for operation. 

ii.    Sign Band: A thin band which stretches the overall length of 
the windows of a building front and/or tenant space and 
displays either the name of the business or logo in multiple 
successions. 

iii.    Display Area: Shall be defined as an area for the purpose of 
displaying miscellaneous items such as posters, menus, 
promotional items or the like which pertain to the business 
itself, in a defined location.   

Note: Window displays such as mannequins, three (3) 
dimensional figures, clothing and the like, which do not contain 
advertisement, shall not be considered a window type sign as 
described above. 

b.    Quantity: A maximum of one (1) sign type each for any one (1) 
business and/or tenant space. For businesses that are corner 
tenants or individual properties having two (2) street frontages, the 
same shall apply on both sides. Businesses and/or tenants who 
have a building front in excess of 40 feet shall be allowed one (1) 
additional “Display Area.”  

 

c.    Area of Sign: Each sign type shall be allowed the following: 

i.     “Business Name/Hours of Operation” shall not exceed a 
maximum of three (3) square feet. 

ii.    A “Sign Band” shall not exceed a maximum of six (6) inches 
in height by the overall length of the building frontage and/or 
tenant space. 

iii.    A “Display Area” shall not exceed a maximum of six (6) 
square feet.     



 39 

d.    Height: The “Sign Band” shall be placed no higher than half the 
distance of the overall height of the windows from grade. No height 
restrictions apply for the other available sign types. 

e.    Location: All sign types shall be subject to the following locations: 

i.    The “Business Name/Hours of Operation” shall be located on 
the entrance door to the establishment. If an entrance door 
cannot be utilized, then the sign may be located within another 
area that will not interfere with any other sign types, under this 
provision. 

ii.    The “Sign Band’ shall be located across all windows, the full 
length of the building frontage and/or tenant space. 

iii.    The “Display Area” shall be located on the first immediate 
window to the right of left of the entrance door. For tenants 
having a corner space, the “Display Area” shall be located so 
as to not interfere with visibility pertaining to safety issues or 
interfere with any other sign types under this provision. 

f.    Illumination: All window signs shall contain no illumination except 
for an open/closed sign.  

g.    Additional Requirements: All window signs shall utilize colors that 
are compatible with the character of the land and/or architecture. 
Fluorescent or iridescent colors shall not be allowed. 

Permits are required for all window signs. Business Name/Hours of 
Operation and open/closed signs shall be exempt from obtaining a 
permit. No additional permits will be required to continually change 
the “Display Area” so long as, the location of the original permitted 
area did not change. Any off-site advertisement displayed in a 
window is strictly prohibited unless otherwise specified in this 
ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 40 

Figure 28.1 

Sample Illustration for placement of Window Signs for business or tenant with 
greater than 40 feet of building frontage.  

 

((O)07-33, Amended, 9/19/07) 

 

 



 41 

C.    Permitted Signs withfor permitted within a in a Residential Zoning 
District/Subdivisions 

The following permanent signs shall be allowed within a Residential District. 

1.    Entryway Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.5. 

2.    Kiosk Signs 

Refer to Section 28.5.B.7. 

Section 28.6 Temporary Signs 

A.    Permitted Signs in a Commercial/Industrial District 

The following temporary sign types shall be allowed within a Commercial 
and/or Industrial District. 

1.    Banners 

a.    Description: Any sign of lightweight fabric or similar material that is 
temporarily mounted to a pole or building. A banner may be utilized 
for the purpose of a new  “grandbusiness opening,” “ or coming 
soon,” or change of ownership to promote a new business. For 
Seasonal or Special Event Banner signs, see Sections 28.6.A.7 & 
8, below..The words “grand opening” and/or “coming soon,” along 
with other copy, shall be displayed on the banner, based on the 
event taking place. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) banner per street frontage, per business. No 
more than two (2) banners shall be issued to any one (1) business 
within one (1) calendar year. For a Special event banner different 
standards are provided in §§ 7&8 below. 

c.    Area of Sign: Maximum 64 square feet, or no more than one (1) 
square foot of sign for each linear foot of building frontage., 
whichever is less.  For tenants that are further than 300 feet from 
the street, the banner may contain no more than 1¾ square feet of 
sign area for each linear foot of building frontage.  Any  tenant may 
have a 24 square foot banner by right..  

d.    Height: Not to exceed the roofline of a building. 

e.    Location: Must be installed on the site and/or tenant space in 
which the event is taking place.  All banners shall be securely 
anchored to the ground and/or parapet wall in such a manner that 



 42 

the banner shall not fold over and shall be taut.  The banner may 
be located inside the tenant space. 

f.    Duration: Banners are good for a period of 30 days. One (1) 
extension for an additional 30 days may be granted by the Planning 
and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning Division Manager, 
due to extenuating circumstances. A written request must be 
submitted prior to the first 30 days expiring. No more than one (1) 
extension may be granted in a calendar year. 

g.    Additional Requirements: A banner must be removed immediately 
after 30 days or it must be removed if permanent signage has been 
installed prior to the expiration on a “coming soon” banner. A 
banner shall be securely anchored to the wall of the business. No 
banner is allowed to be hung from any freestanding sign structure, 
utility pole, or the like. 

2.    Construction Signs 

a.    Description: A construction sign shall contain the name of the 
architects, engineers, contractors, or similar artisans, as well as, 
the owners, financial supporters and similar individuals or firms that 
are associated with the project. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per street frontage. No one (1) development 
may have more than one (1) construction sign or development sign 
on a single street frontage. 

c.    Area of Sign: Maximum 32 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed eight (8) feet from grade. 

e.    Location: On the property that is being developed. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Removal: All signs must be removed upon the completion of 95 
percent of the development. 

3.    Development Signs 

a.    Description: A development sign shall identify the name of the 
Development in progress or one in prospect. The sign shall contain 
the name of the Development along with the words “coming soon.” 

b.    Quantity: One (1) per street frontage. No one (1) development 
may have more than one (1) development sign or construction sign 
on a single street frontage. 



 43 

c.    Area of Sign: Maximum 32 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed eight (8) feet. 

e.    Location: On the property that it is identifying. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from proper line unless otherwise 
required. 

g.    Removal: Sign must be removed when permanent signage has 
been installed on the site or when the project has been completed, 
whichever comes first. 

4.    Flags 

a.    Description: Any flag containing distinctive colors, patterns, or 
symbols, used as a symbol of government or a political entity. All 
National and State flags shall be allowed within a commercial, 
industrial or residential district. 

b.    Quantity: One (1Two (2) flag poles per development and/or 
individual property. 

c.    Area of Flag: The length of the flag shall be no greater than 1/4º 
the height of the flag pole. 

d.    Height: No greater than 1.25 times the height of the nearest 
adjacent building. 

e.    Location: On private property. 

f.    Setback: to be located accordingly so that the flag does not 
overhang public right-of-way. 

g.    Additional Requirements: A permit for the flag pole shall be 
obtained through the Building Department and a site plan shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Department for review of location and 
setbacks. Any flags used for the purpose of advertising or attention 
to advertising, is strictly prohibited unless otherwise specified by 
this ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 



 44 

5.    Real Estate, Lease, Rent and For Sale Signs 

a.    Description: Any sign pertaining to the sale, rent, or lease of the 
premise or portion of a premise. The sign may be freestanding or 
wall mounted, single, and/or double-faced. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) sign per street frontage.   

c.    Area of Sign: Maximum 1632 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed five (5) feet above grade. The height may 
be increased up to ten (10) feet by the Senior Zoning Inspector, if 
warranted.Not to exceed eight (8) feet from grade 

e.    Location: Upon the property that is being sold, rented or leased. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Removal: Must be removed within seven (7) days upon the sale,  
rent, or lease of the property. 
 

6.    Seasonal Signs 

a.    Description: Seasonal signs may include decorations, holiday 
lights, garland, or the like and are oriented toward a holiday type 
event. Holiday banners are allowed provided they are approved 
under a Special Use permit. Seasonal signs and decorations shall 
be displayed temporarily for traditionally accepted civic, patriotic, or 
religious holidays. 

b.    Location: On private property and shall not be displayed in such a 
manner as to constitute a traffic hazard. 

c.    Removal: All decorations and/or signs must be removed 10 days 
after the subject holiday. 

d.    Additional Requirements: All signage related to the event must 
obtain a permit under this ordinance. Any other style decoration 
shall not require a permit and shall be exempt. 

 

 

 

 



 45 

7.    Seasonal or Special Event Banners Signs 

a.    Description: A special event sign shall be used to advertise a 
holiday sale and/or special event, including civic, public, religious, 
seseasonal, philanthropic, or edor specialucational events.  
Banners may be permitted for schools and/or religious 
institutionsSuch signs shall be permitted in any zoning district.Such 
signs are permitted in any zone and are not to be used for Model 
Home Sales. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) freestanding sign per street frontage and/or one 
(1) wall sign. One (1) business is allowed to have a maximum of 4 
permits, per calendar year. 

, with each permit not exceeding 30 days. 

c.    Area of Sign: Maximum 16 square feet for a freestanding style 
sign. Maximum 24 square feet for a wall sign. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed 5 feet from grade for a freestanding sign. 
Wall signs shall not exceed the roofline of a building. 

e.    Location: On private property and located where the event is 
taking place and/or the merchandise is being sold.  All banners 
shall be securely anchored to the ground and/or parapet wall in 
such a manner that the banner shall not fold over and shall be taut. 

f.    Setback: A zero foot setback from property line unless otherwise 
required. 

g. Duration:  Each permit shall not exceed 30 days. 

g.    Removal: Shall not exceed the event advertised by more than 3 
weeks, and all signs shall be removed within 48 hours after the event. 

H8.  Temporary Sign on Day of the EventThree Day Special Event Banners Sign 

a. Description:  An additional banner may be permitted on the day 
of a seasonal or special event.  The banner shall not be used to 
advertise any event that exceeds three (3) days in duration. 
 
b. Quantity:  One per street frontage.  Not to exceed four (4) 
permits per calendar year. 
 
c. Area of Sign:  64 square feet maximum  
 
d. Height: Not to exceed 5 feet from grade for a freestanding sign. 
Wall signs shall not exceed the roofline of a building. 
 



 46 

e. Location: On private property and located where the event is 
taking place and/or the merchandise is being sold.  All banners 
shall be securely anchored to the ground and/or parapet wall in 
such a manner that the banner shall not fold over and shall be taut. 

f. Setback: A zero foot setback from property line unless otherwise 
required. 

 

B.    Permitted Signs in a Residential/Subdivisio Zoningn District 

The following temporary signs shall be allowed within a residential and/or 
subdivision district. 

1. 1.    Flags 

a.    Description: Any flag containing distinctive colors, patterns, or 
symbols, used as a symbol of government or a political entity. All 
National and State flags shall be allowed within a commercial, 
industrial or residential district. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) flag pole per development and/or individual 
property. 

c.    Area of Flag: The length of the flag shall be no greater than 1/4 the 
height of the flag pole. 

d.    Height: No greater than 1.25 times the height of the nearest 
adjacent building. 

e.    Location: On private property. 

f.    Setback: tTo be located accordingly so that the flag does not 
overhang public right-of-way. 

g.    Additional Requirements: A permit for the flag pole shall be 
obtained through the Building DepartmentDevelopment and 
Infrastructure Services Department along with  and a site plan shall 
be submitted to the Zoning Department for review of location and 
setbacks. Any flags used for the purpose of advertising or attention 
to advertising, is strictly prohibited unless otherwise specified by 
this ordinance. 

Refer to Section 28.6.B.4. 

 

 



 47 

2.    Model Home Banners 

a.    Description: Banners for a Model Home Complex shall be utilized 
for the sole purpose of a special sales event or to identify a new 
model home.. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) banner per model home complex.  

c.    Area of Banner: Maximum 32 square feet. 

d.    Height: A banner attached to the model home complex shall not 
extend above the roofline. A freestanding banner shall not exceed 
five (5) feet from grade. 

e.    Location: Shall be on private property where the model home 
complex is located.  The banner may be wall mounted or 
freestanding. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line for a 
freestanding style banner unless otherwise specified. 

g. Duration:  The banner shall bemounted only on Saturdays and 
Sundays (104 days).  The banner may be permitted an additional 
16 days for the purpose of opening the model home center. 

gh.    Removal: Placement or erection of the banner shall not precede 
the event advertised by more than one (1) day and all signs must 
be removed within one (1) day after the event. 

3.    Model Home Complex, Custom Home Lot Sales Office Signs 

The purpose of the Model Home Complex/Custom Home Lot Sales 
Office Signs is to provide specific guidelines for the size, number, and 
location of on-site signs. Such signs shall identify and give direction to 
individual model home complexes or custom home lot sales offices.  

The following types of signs are permitted for Model Home Complexes 
or Custom Home Lot Sales Offices: 

a.    On-Site Signs 

i.    Description: Developer, Contractor and/or Sub-Contractor ID 
signs, subject to the standards of Section 28.6.A.4. Individual 
Model Units may have a single model identification sign and/or 
an informational sign may be provided for the model home 
complex or custom home lot sales office. A single parking lot 
directional sign may be included to direct people to available 
parking at, or near the model home/custom home sales office. 



 48 

ii.    Quantity: One (1) identification sign for Model Home Units, 
One (1) informational sign for Model Home Complex/Custom 
Home lot Sales Office and one (1) parking lot directional sign. 
(Signs may be freestanding, wall mounted or integrated into an 
awning type structure.) 

iii.    Area of Signs: Individual Model units shall be four (4) square 
feet. Model Home Complex/Custom Home Lot Sales Office 
signs shall be 16 square feet and a parking lot directional sign 
shall not exceed a maximum of six (6) square feet. 

iv.    Height: Individual Model Units not to exceed three (3) feet, 
Model Home Complex/Custom Home Lot Sales Office not to 
exceed five (5) feet and the parking directional sign not to 
exceed a maximum of three (3) feet from grade. 

v.    Location: Within the Model Home Complex/Custom Home 
Lot Sales Office and shall be located so as to not interfere with 
the flow of traffic or within a sight visibility triangle. The parking 
directional sign shall be located at the driveway entrance to the 
designated parking area. 

vi.    Removal: All signs must be removed upon the completion of 
95 percent of the development and/or subdivision.within seven 
(7) days after the closing of the sales office or model home 
office.  

b.    Minor Off-Site Signs (interior and exterior to the subdivision) 

 

The following off-site signs are allowed interior to a subdivision: 

i. Offsite within the Subdivision 

a. Description: Signs which direct traffic to the Model Home Complex 
or Custom Home Lot Sales Office. 

b. Quantity: The number of signs allowed is based on the number of 
intersections or change of direction on subdivision streets, as 
approved and deemed necessary by the Senior Zoning 
InspectorPlanning ManagerPlanning Division Manager. 

c. Area of Sign: Maximum size allowed is 1.5 feet x 2.0 feet (3.0 
square feet). 

d. Height: Maximum allowable height shall not exceed 3.0 feet from 
grade. 

 



 49 

e. Location: An interior, off-site sign shall be located along streets 
within the subdivision being developed. Such signs shall be 
located only at each intersection or each change of direction 
on subdivision streets and shall be located on private property 
with the permission of the owner of that property. 

f. Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from the property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g. Removal: All signs shall be removed within seven (7) days of 
upon the closure of the sales office or model home 
office.completion of 95 percent of the subdivision or 
development. 

The following off-site signs are allowed exterior to the subdivision. 

ii. Temporary Signs on Public Property 

a. Description: Temporary signs located off-site providing direction to 
Model Home Complex or Custom Home Lot Sales Office. 

 
b. Quantity: No more than one sign per change of road direction 

 
c. Area of Sign: Shall not exceed a maximum of four (4) square 

               feet. 
 

d. Height: The sign shall not exceed 30 inches in height 
 

e. Location 
i. An off-site real estate sign shall not be located: 

 
a.  Within a median, 
b. In any area that may cause or create a traffic hazard, on a 
sidewalk, multi-use path or pedestrian access ramp, or, 
c. Where it obscures any sight distances and must maintain the 
required “Clear Zone” as approved by the Town Engineer. 

 
ii. When located in the public right-of-way, signs shall be placed as 

follows or as directed by the Town Engineer: 
 

a. For all major arterial and collector streets with a posted 
speed limit greater than 25mph: 

i. Where no sidewalk or multi-use path exists along the 
street, signs shall be placed a minimum of ten (10) feet from 
the paved surface of the roadway. 
 
ii. Closer placement to the pavement will require pre-
approval by the Town Engineer and is based on sign 



 50 

construction type. “A” frame type signs are not eligible for 
this provision. The actual sign utilized must be reviewed by 
the Town Engineer for consideration of this location 
provision. The sign must exhibit stability from movement due 
to wind and weather. 

 
b. For locations that have sidewalk or multi-use path along the 
street, the sign shall be placed no closer to the street than the edge 
of said walk/path farthest from the street unless there is adequate 
distance between the street and walk/path to maintain a ten (10) 
foot setback from the edge of roadway pavement. 

 
c. Sign placement between the sidewalk/multi-use path and the 
curb line that cannot maintain a ten (10) foot street setback will 
require pre-approval by the Town Engineer and is based on sign 
construction type. “A” frame style signs are not eligible for this 
provision. The actual sign utilized must be reviewed by the Town 
Engineer for consideration of this location provision. The sign must 
exhibit stability from movement due to wind and weather. 

 
d. For all other local streets with a posted speed limit of 25mph or 
less: 

i. Where no sidewalk or multi-use path exists along the 
street, signs shall be placed a minimum of five (5) feet from 
the paved surface of the roadway. 
 
ii. Closer placement to the pavement will require pre-
approval by the Town Engineer and is based on site 
conditions. 
 
iii. For locations that have sidewalk or multi-use path along 
the street, the sign shall be placed no closer to the street 
than the edge of said walk/path farthest from the street. 
 
iv. Placement between the sidewalk/multi-use path and the 
curb line will require pre-approval by the Town Engineer and 
is based on site conditions. 

 
e. No signs may be placed on Oracle Road or the eastern portion of 
Tangerine Road up to 1000 feet west of the intersection of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and 1st Avenue without approval from the 
Arizona Department of Transportation. 

 
f. Duration: Signs shall only be displayed during the hours of 7:00 

a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 



 51 

g. Additional Requirements: All commercial signage shall be 
prohibited unless otherwise specified within this Chapter. In 
addition, all right-of-way permits are subject to blue stake 
requirements for any sign that penetrates the ground. 
Temporary signs shall not obscure, be attached to or mimic 
public traffic control devices, signage or appurtenances. Any 
damage to public and/or private property caused by signs 
placed within the right-of-way shall be the sole responsibility of 
the owner of the sign. 

 

viii.    Description: Signs which direct traffic to the Model Home 
Complex Custom Home Lot Sales Office. 

ix.    Quantity: One (1) exterior directional sign is allowed. The 
Senior Zoning InspectorPlanning ManagerPlanning Division 
Manager  may approve a second exterior directional sign if 
necessary. 

x.    Area of Sign: Maximum size allowed is 2.0 feet x 3.0 feet 
(6.0 square feet). 

xi.    Height: Maximum allowable height shall not exceed four (4) 
feet from grade. 

 

 xii.  Location: 

  An exterior, off-site sign shall be located: 

 located at the W 

 Ior 

 Where it s 

 When located in the public right-of-way, s 

   

  

 typeare not   

ii. that is farthest from the street  

i. are not 

 

  

1.  

2. 



 52 

3.  that is farthest from the street 

  
xii.  Boulevard and intersection of an Arterial Roadway and 

subdivision street, as long as no other Town approved 
kiosk sign exists. The sign must be located on private 
property with the permission of the owner of the premise. 

xiii.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

xiv.    Removal: All signs shall be removed within seven (7) days 
after the closing of the sales office or model home office. upon 
the completion of 95 percent of the subdivision or 
development. 

4.    Model Home Flags 

a.    Description: Individual flags, attached to individual, freestanding 
poles that may be multi-colored and/or contain the corporate logo 
for a Model Home Complex Sales Office. 

b.    Quantity: A maximum of four (4) poles/flags are allowed. 

c.    Area of Flag: Not to exceed 15 square feet. 

d.    Height: The flag poles shall not exceed 20 feet from grade. 

e.    Location: At the main drive of the parking lot to identify the 
vehicular entrance to the Model Home sales Office. 

f.    Setback: Minimum five (5) feet from the property line. 

g.    Additional Requirements: Flag poles shall obtain a permit from the 
building department and no flag is allowed to be illuminated. 

hg.    Removal: All flags and flag poles must be removed within seven 
(7) days after the closing of the sales office or model home office. 

h.    Additional Requirements: Flag poles shall obtain a permit from the 
building department and no flag is allowed to be illuminated.  

5.    On-Site Subdivision Signs 

a.    Description: The sign shall identify a development in progress, 
including the name of the development and/or subdivision, the 
name and phone number of the developer or agent, price range of 
units to be available and information essential to contacting the 
developer or agent. All agencies or firms desiring to be identified 
shall be displayed on the same sign, such as the developer, 



 53 

engineer, architects, or firms providing financing, principal 
contracting firms, residential type, and number of units available. 

b.    Quantity: One (1) freestanding sign per subdivision. The Senior 
Zoning InspectorPlanning ManagerPlanning Division Manager may 
approve a second on-site subdivision sign if deemed necessary. 

c.    Area of Sign: Maximum 40 square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed a maximum of ten (10) feet from grade. The 
height may be increased to a maximum of 12 feet should a wall or 
fence obstruct visibility of the sign. Such an increase will warrant a 
review by the Senior Zoning InspectorPlanning ManagerPlanning 
Division Manager  for compliance. 

e.    Location: Must be located at the intersection of an arterial roadway 
and subdivision street and on private property with the permission 
from the owner of the premise. 

f.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback from property line unless 
otherwise required. 

g.    Removal: Any sign that lists an individual developer, contractor 
and/or sub-contractor, must be removed upon completion of 95 
percent of the subdivision or development.within seven (7) days 
after the sale and closing of 100 percent of the lots within the 
subdivision, development or 180 days after the closure of the sales 
office, whichever comes sooner. 

 

6.    Real Estate, Lease, Rent, and For Sale Signs (including off-premise open 
house directional signs for re-sale homes) 

a.    On-Site Signs: 

i.    Description: Signs to advertise existing individual single-
family residences for sale, lease, or rent. The sign may be a 
single or double-faced, freestanding sign. 

ii.    Quantity: One (1) for each street frontage which abuts the 
property. 

iii.    Area of Sign: Four (4)Ssix (6) square feet including all 
riders/hanging modifiers as commonly used within the industry. 



 54 

 

iv.    Height: A maximum of five (5)six (6) feet from grade. The 
Planning and Planning and Zoning AdministratorPlanning 
Division Manager  may approve heights up to ten (10) feet, if 
warranted. 

v.    Location: Only on the site of the dwelling offered for sale, 
lease, or rent. 

vi.    Setback: A zero (0) foot setback unless otherwise required. 

vii.    Removal: Within seven (7) days upon the sale, lease, or 
rent of the property. 

b.    Off-Site Signs: 

i.    Description: Used only to advertise an open house event, for 
a re-sale home being offered for re-sale, lease, or rent. The 
purpose and intent of the off-site signs, is to direct the public to 
the re-sale of individual homes, and shall not be applied to 
model homes. The signs may be freestanding, single, or 
double-faced. 

ii.    Quantity: Based on the number of each major change of 
direction.  

iii.    Area of Sign: A maximum of four (4) square feet. 

iv.    Height: Not to exceed 30 inches. 

v.    Location: Off-site, open house signs may be located at each 
major change of direction and shall follow regulations set forth 
in Section 28.7.A.2, Annual or 120 Consecutive Day Right-Of-
Way Permit. Different owners or realtors may place one (1) 
sign each at the same corner. 



 55 

vi.    Setback: Signs must be placed a minimum of one (1) foot 
from any private property line. 

vii.    Removal: All signs are to be removed immediately after the 
open house event. 

Section 28.7 Temporary Signs on Public Property 

A.    Permitted Temporary Signs on Public Property 

1.    Temporary Sign ZonesNon-Commercial Temporary Signs 

a.    Description: A temporary sign not permanently installed in the 
ground or attached to a building.A temporary sign not intended for 
commercial purposes, such as a campaign sign, and not 
permanently installed in the ground or attached to a building.  

b.    Quantity: No more than one (1) single or double-faced sign per 
temporary sign zone is allowed. 

c.    Area of Sign: The area of the sign shall not exceed a maximum of 
nine (9) square feet within a Temporary Sign Zone or if placed with 
the appropriate right-of-way permit shall not exceed a maximum of 
four (4) square feet. 

d.    Height: Not to exceed a maximum of three (3) feet, six (6) inches 
from grade within Temporary Sign Zones or 30 inches if placed with 
an authorized right-of-way permit. 

e.    Location:  An officially designated area as identified on the 
Temporary Sign Zone Map for the installation of non-commercial, 
temporary signs.    

i.    Within the Public Right-Of-Way: Zones of three hundred (300) 
to five hundred (500) square feet in size, and, in the event that 
the zones are established at an intersection, no more than two 
(2) zones may be located at or near the intersection. 

ii.    Within the Town Hall Complex: such zone shall be no greater 
than 200 square feet. Moreover, Temporary Sign Zones shall 
not be located within 150 feet of any entrance to the Town Hall 
Complex. 

iii.    At or Near Town Parks: Temporary Sign Zones shall not be 
located within 150 feet of any entrance to Town Parks. 

  

f.    Additional Requirement:  All Commercial signage within a 
temporary sign zone shall be prohibited. 



 56 

 

2.    Annual or 120 Consecutive DayOff-site Real Estate Signs Only Right-Of-
Way Permit 

a. Description: Temporary signs located off-site providing direction to a 
dwelling for sale or rent., which may be located in the Town’s 
right-of-way, require with an approved right-of-way permit from 
the Town Engineer. 

b. Quantity: Unlimited number of uses. No individual sign permit for 
such signs will be required.No more than one sign per change of road 
direction  

c. Area of Sign: Shall not exceed a maximum of four (4) square 
feet. 

d. Height: The sign shall not exceed 30 inches in height 

e. Location 
i. An off-site real estate sign shall not be located: 

a. Within a median,  
b. Iin any area that may cause or create a traffic hazard, 

on a sidewalk, multi-use path or pedestrian access 
ramp, or, 

c. Where it obscures any sight distances and must 
maintain the required “Clear Zone” as approved by the 
Town Engineer. 

   
ii. When located in the public right-of-way, sSigns shall be 

placed as follows or as directed by the Town Engineer: 
 

a. For all major arterial and collector streets with a posted 
speed limit greater than 25mph: 

 
i. Where no sidewalk or multi-use path exists 

along the street, signs shall be placed a 
minimum of ten (10) feet from the paved surface 
of the roadway. 

 
ii. Closer placement to the pavement will require 

pre-approval by the Town Engineer and is 
based on sign construction type. “A” frame type 
signs arewill not be eligible for this provision.  
The actual sign utilized must be reviewed by the 
Town Engineer for consideration of this location 
provision. The sign must exhibit stability from 
movement due to wind and weather. 



 57 

 
b. For locations that have sidewalk or multi-use path 

along the street, the sign shall be placed no closer to 
the street than the far edge of said walk/path fartheest 
from the street unless there is adequate distance 
between the street and walk/path to maintain a ten (10) 
foot setback from the edge of roadway pavement. 

 
c. Sign placement between the sidewalk/multi-use path 

and the curb line that cannot maintain a ten (10) foot 
street setback will require pre-approval by the Town 
Engineer and is based on sign construction type. No 
“A” frame style signs arewill not be eligible for this 
provision. The actual sign utilized must be reviewed by 
the Town Engineer for consideration of this location 
provision. The sign must exhibit stability from 
movement due to wind and weather. 
 

 
 

d.   For all other local streets with a posted speed limit of 
25mph or less: 

i.  Where no sidewalk or multi-use path exists along 
the street, signs shall be placed a minimum of five (5) 
feet from the paved surface of the roadway. 
 
ii.Closer placement to the pavement will require pre-
approval by the Town Engineer and is based on site 
conditions.  
 
iii. For locations that have sidewalk or multi-use 
path along the street, the sign shall be placed no 



 58 

closer to the street than the edge of said walk/path 
farthest from the street. 

 
iv. Placement between the sidewalk/multi-use 
path and the curb line will require pre-approval by the 
Town Engineer and is based on site conditions. 

 
e.  No signs may be placed on Oracle Road or the eastern 
portion of Tangerine Road up to 1000 feet west of the 
intersection of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and 1st Avenue 
without approval from the Arizona Department of 
Transportation. 

 
Signs shall be placed a minimum of ten (10) feet from the paved 
surface of the roadway.  No sign shall be placed within a median, in 
any area that may cause or create a traffic hazard, on a sidewalk or 
pedestrian access ramp, obscure any site distances and must 
maintain the required “Clear Zone” as approved by the Town 
Engineer.  

 

f. .    Duration: Signs shall be only be displayed during the hours of 
7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.. 

g. g.    Additional Requirements: All commercial signage shall be prohibited 
unless otherwise specified within this Chapter. In addition, all right-of-way 
permits are subject to blue stake requirements for any sign that penetrates 
the ground. Any sign that would require installation by the Public Works 
DepartmentPublic Works Engineer DivisionTown Engineer is also subject 
to installation fees.  Temporary signs shall not obscure, be attached to or 
mimic public traffic control devicses, signage or appurtenances.  Any 
damage to public and/or private property caused by signs placed within 
the right-of-way shall be the sole responsibility of the owner of the sign.   

  

3.    Special Event Signs on Public Property 

a.    Description: A temporary sign which may be located within the 
Town’s right-of-way with an approved right-of-way permit from the 
Public Works DepartmentPublic Works Engineer DivisionTown 
Engineer. The signs may publicize civic, public, religious, arts, 
philanthropic or educational events that are sponsored or 
sanctioned by the Town of Oro Valley. Each application is subject 
to approval and interpretation by the Town Manager and/or 
designee in regards to the type of event being held. 



 59 

b.    Quantity: Four (4) event signs maximum for any one event. 

c.    Area of Sign: A maximum of 16 square feet per sign. 

d.    Height: Shall not exceed five (5) feet from grade to top of sign. 

e.    Location: No sign may be placed within a median or in any area 
that may cause or create a traffic hazard. 

f.    Duration: The sign may be installed two (2) weeks prior to the 
event and must be removed within 48 hours after the event. 

g.    Additional Requirements: Temporary signs shall not obscure, be 
attached to or mimic public traffic control devices, signage or 
appurtenances.  All signs, which penetrate the ground, are subject 
to Blue Stake requirements and installation fees by the Public 
Works DepartmentPublic Works Engineer DivisionTown Engineer. 

4..    Sign Walker/Human Signs 

a.    Description/Definition: A commercial sign that is held, worn or 
balanced by an individual. 

b.    Quantity: No more than two (2) human signs permitted per 
business/organization. 

c.    Area of Sign: Maximum of twenty (20) square feet and a minimum 
of four (4) square feet. The sign is measured by multiplying the 
overall width and overall length of the sign. 

 

d.    Location: No human or freestanding sign shall be held within a 
median or in the intersection sight triangle in a manner that 
obstructs the required clear space view for drivers and cyclists. 
Human signs: 

i.    Are prohibited within construction zones; 

ii.    Shall be held relatively still at all times; 

iii.    No more than two (2) human signs per street corner; 

iv.    May not be located within twenty (20) feet of another human 
sign; 

v.    Must be located not farther than the nearest arterial roadway 
intersection from the business advertised by the sign. 

e.    Setback: Signs shall be held a minimum of ten (10) feet from the 
paved surface of a roadway. 



 60 

f.    Duration: Signs may be displayed during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m. 

f.    Setback: Signs shall be held a minimum of ten (10) feet from the 
paved surface of a roadway. 

g.    PermitAdditional Requirements: A permit is required.  The permit 
shall be a three (3) day right-of-way (R.O.W.) permit with a price as 
specified in the current development fee schedule. Only one (1) 
permit shall be allowed within a ninety (90) day period. 

h.    Additional Requirements: Permit is required. 

i.    Sign walkers for non-commercial purposes are exempt from this 
subsection A.4. 

((O)09-07, Amended, 5/20/09; (O)08-25, Amended, 12/17/08)  
 

Section 28.8 Public and Quasi-Public Signs  

A.    Permitted Temporary Signs 

1.    Description: Bulletin boards or announcement signs, along with special 
event type signs shall be allowed for religious institutions, schools, 
community centers and any other public or institutional buildings within a 
commercial and/or residential district. Signs may be freestanding and/or wall 
mounted, made of paper, cardboard, plastic, or fabric. All copy, color, and 
design shall not adversely affect the order, amenity, or residential enjoyment 
of the neighborhood. 

2.    Quantity: Each institution is allowed one (1) wall sign and (1) bulletin board 
per street frontage. Each institution may also apply for one (1) wall and one 
(1) freestanding, special event sign per street frontage. 

3.    Area of Sign: A religious institution wall sign shall not exceed 30 square 
feet. A religious institution bulletin board shall not exceed 24 square feet. 
Other public institution signs shall be allowed a wall sign at 30 square feet 
and a bulletin board at 24 square feet. All institutions applying for a special 
event sign shall not exceed 30 square feet. 

4.    Height: All wall signs shall not exceed the roofline of a building. All 
ground/freestanding signs shall not exceed eight (8) feet from grade. All 
special event signs shall not exceed a maximum height of six (6) feet from 
grade. 

5.    Location: All signs shall be placed on private property. Special event signs 
shall be located on the premise of the institution or organization having the 
event. 



 61 

6.    Setback: All signs may have a zero (0) foot setback from property line 
unless otherwise specified. 

7.    Removal: Any signs announcing any temporary event shall be removed 
within one (1) day after the event is completed. 

7.8.    Additional Requirements: Any sign may be single or double-faced. No 
sign shall be allowed to illuminate. All signs shall be soundly constructed and 
neat in appearance. Upon application for a special event sign, the applicant 
shall submit a statement and diagram noting the nature of the special event 
and shall indicate the location, size, copy, and colors of the proposed sign. A 
permit for a special event sign shall be valid for no more than two (2) weeks. 
No more than three (3) permits shall be issued to any institution or 
organization in a calendar year. 

8.    Removal: Any signs announcing any temporary event shall be removed 
within one (1) day after the event is completed. 

((O)07-33, Amended, 9/19/07) 

Section 28.9 Prohibited Signs 

A.    Prohibited Permanent and Temporary Signs 

The following permanent and temporary signs shall not be allowed on any 
property or public right-of-way and shall be deemed prohibited unless otherwise 
specified within this Chapter. 

1.    Balloon signs, balloons; 

2.    Billboards; 

3.    Electronic message centers; 

4.    Exposed neon sign; 

5.    Flashing lights; 

6.    Garage sale signs; 

7.    Marquee signs; 

8.    Moving/animated signs; 

9.    Obscene signs; 

10.    Off-site advertising on public property; 

11.    Off-site signs; 



 62 

12.    Portable signs (A-frame, sandwich board, etc.); 

13.    Posters that do not advertise or refer to the business; 

14.    Projecting signs; 

15.    Roof signs; 

16.    Search lights; 

17.    Signs attached to any physical public property; 

18.    Signs in the median; 

19.    Vehicle signs; 

20.  Pennant Signs; 

 210.    Any sign greater than nine (9) square feet or taller than three (3) feet 
overall height. 

((O)08-25, Amended, 12/17/08) 

Section 28.10 Exempted Signs 

A.    Code Limitations 

1.    Nothing contained herein shall prevent the erection, construction and 
maintenance of the following: 

a.    Official traffic, street identification, or roadway improvement signs. 

b.    Fire or police signs, signals, or devices to alert the public of safety 
hazards. 

c.    Markings of the State of Arizona and/or Town of Oro Valley or 
other competent public authority. 

d.    Official notices as required by law. 

B.    Exempted Permanent and Temporary Signs 

1.    The following signs shall be exempt from the application and permit 
regulations of this ordinance, although an electrical or building permit may 
be required: 

a.    Address Identification Signs: Signs which display numerals, street 
names, drives, circles, or the like, which give direction to residents, 
buildings, complexes, apartments, commercial sites, tenants 
spaces or the like. 



 63 

b.    Governmental Signs: Identification for public agencies such as 
traffic, public transit, public information, and the like. 

c.    Historical Marker: A sign locating and identifying a historical 
interest or site. 

d.    Informational/Service Sign: Signs which may include official 
notices of court or public office and legal notices posted for Town 
meetings, as well as, signs located on pumps at a service station. 

e.    Interior Signs: Signs which are displayed within a concealed area, 
such as a tenant space or building and cannot be seen exterior to 
the public. 

f.    Memorial Sign: A sign, table, or plaque memorializing a person, 
event, or site. 

g.    Non-Commercial Signs on private property: Signs that are not 
related to business or commerce and that are no more than 9 
square feet in area and no more than 3 feet in height. 

h.    Repainting/Resurfacing of Signs: Maintenance of signage, such as 
repainting or resurfacing shall not require any permits as long as 
the sign is in no way altered, changed, or modified from its previous 
state. 

i.    Residential Signs: Name and address of occupants. 

j.    Temporary Signs on Public Property: Per Section 28.7.A.1 and 
Section 28.9.A.21. 

k.    Traffic Sign: A sign used solely to define and streamline the flow of 
vehicular or pedestrian traffic so as to minimize congestion and 
promote safety. 

l.    Warning Signs: Warning and instructional signs such as “No 
Trespassing” shall be exempt from permits. Said signs shall not be 
installed on utility poles or the like. 

 



O ro Val ley
Commercial

Sign S ur vey

F e b r u a r y  2 0 1 0



Background 
Efforts to examine the Town’s current sign ordinances began more than a year ago, but 
were further inspired in the summer with several outreach meetings with the business 
community who came to the Town to request considerations due to the poor economic 
conditions. After reviewing the matter, Town Council decided that, rather than consider 
changes to certain sections of the sign ordinance, it would be prudent to review the entire 
commercial sign code—which was developed more than 10 years ago—to see if there 
were opportunities to bring the code up to date with Oro Valley’s business climate today. 
 
In November 2009, the Council approved a scope of work that will involve the formation 
of a Task Force of residents, business representatives, staff and our local Chamber to 
review the current sign code and make recommendations for possible changes and 
updates.  
 
To begin that review, staff wanted to garner some baseline information regarding public 
and business attitudes with regard to commercial signage in Oro Valley. Town staff 
developed an informal community survey measuring use of signs by both segments; 
attitudes regarding certain types of signage; and overall experience in meeting the 
Town’s sign code. 
 

Methodology 
Staff developed two online surveys, one for the resident population and one for the 
business community. The surveys were available on the Town’s website, on the Planning 
& Zoning page. There was a link from the Town’s home page. The program used to 
administer the survey as a module provided by the Town’s Content Management System 
(CMS). 
 
Both surveys used a mix of multiple choice, ratings and true/false questions. The surveys 
also provided ample opportunity for open comments. An honor system directed which 
survey was completed by each target group, and demographic information was requested.  
 
The Resident Survey questions: 

• Focused on how residents identified businesses and how they responded to 
business signage 

• Looked at banner and A-frame sign opinions on use 
• Gathered general demographic information 

 
The Business Survey questions 

• Focused on how businesses promoted themselves 
• Opinions on current sign code, restrictions 
• Experience with the Town overall (Sign review, DRB, etc.) 
• Demographics—type of business, how long in Oro Valley, etc. 

 



 2

We launched the surveys through the local media and the Northern Pima County 
Chamber of Commerce a week prior to its going live, and it ran from October 19 – 
November 6, 2009. Although there were fears of “stuffing the ballot box,” with an 
estimated 350 responses to the general public survey and 80 responses to the business 
survey, we did not find this to be the case.  
 

Summary of Findings 
A copy of the questions that were included in both surveys may be found in Appendix 1. 
 
General Public Survey 
Questions targeting respondents from the general public: 

• Focused on how residents identified businesses and how they responded to 
business signage 

• Looked at banner and A-frame sign opinions on use 
• Gathered general demographic information 

 
Overall, use of signs to locate a business ranked in the top three by respondents, 
with online/internet searching number one. This suggests that respondents may use the 
internet to find a local business that provides the product or service they are looking for, 
but they rely on signage to help when they are physically going to the location. Follow up 
questions reinforced this as a large percentage (69%) said the size and readability of signs 
and familiar names (74%) were important to them. Furthermore, less than 50% of 
respondents said they often remember a business or service later after seeing a sign at 
night, again further suggesting that for at least this series of questions, respondents are 
generally using signage to locate a business once they have made the decision to go there. 
 
In looking at illumination hours for signs, there was overwhelming support for 
either turning off the signs at the close of business, or by 10 p.m. Closely following 
the 10 p.m. preference was support for all-night illumination.  
 
Regarding the use of A-frame signs, the respondents overwhelmingly stated they did 
not like the use of A-frame/sandwich boards (54%). This suggests that, while A-
frames may want to remain in the discussion, other factors clearly play a part in the 
public’s identification of businesses. 
 
General Public Survey Demographics 

• Oro Valley resident:  91% 
• Age group:  75% were aged 50 years or older 
• Gender:  The majority were male (55%) 



 3

 
Business Survey Questions 

• Focused on how businesses promoted themselves 
• Opinions on current sign code, restrictions 
• Experience with the Town overall (Sign review, DRB, etc.) 
• Demographics—type of business, how long in OV, etc. 

 
Similar to the General Public survey, businesses were asked to identify from a list 
all of the tools they use to promote their business. Signage received the highest 
responses, followed closely by the internet, with advertising and the phonebook 
virtually tied for third place. This is virtually exactly the same answer from the general 
public, suggesting that the reliance on both sides for business signage is an important 
component of the community conversation moving forward. Similar correlations were 
found when we asked for more detail on the types of signs used, with building 
signage/lettering and illuminated signs receiving the highest response from businesses. 
 
Several questions arise when we look at the responses to the size of signs. There is a 
virtually no difference between those businesses who are satisfied with their sign 
and those who feel it is too small (46 & 45% respectively). While this indicates there 
may be room for negotiation and change here, it is also important to dig further to 
determine if these are PAD standards in play, and what percentage of businesses who 
responded are in a master sign program, for example. That there is no clear majority one 
way or the other does indicate that further discussion is warranted. 
 
With respect to use of banner signs, an overwhelming number of businesses said 
they would like to use banners to promote their business and that the current sign 
code for banner use is too restrictive. This indicates there may be some opportunity to 
discuss how the Town can support businesses by working to allow banners to have a 
greater impact with the use of banners. 
 
Illuminated signs saw similar results that were seen from the General Public 
respondents that the same options were in the top three for preferences:  illuminated 
signs on all night (44%); turned off by 10 p.m. (24%); and turned off by midnight (21%), 
which was not seen in the other responses. This indicates there is much room for 
compromise in that both groups felt that turning signs off by 10 p.m. would be 
acceptable. 
 
With respect to A-frames, businesses were in direct opposition to the general 
public’s views on the use of A-frames. This reflects a gap in businesses supporting the 
argument that A-frames increase business traffic, as the majority of consumers who 
responded to the survey do not reflect that. This can be an area for further study by the 
task group. 
 



 4

A series of questions examined the service levels by the Town in several areas, including 
business experience with: 

• Review and approval timing 
• DRB Review (where applicable) 
• Staff response time 

  
In all three areas, there was a high “No Response” rate. This can be due to the fact 
that many businesses engage consultants and other vendors to handle their sign design 
and review processes, and so the business owners simply do not have direct experience 
with the process.  
 
With that in mind, Review and Approval received an overall satisfactory or greater 
rating of 35%, with more than half (52%) indicating they thought the timing was 
either “poor” or “very poor.” Although there was an opportunity for respondents to add 
additional comments, few indicated anything other than the process “took too long” or 
“was cumbersome.” The details of what caused this perception were not included. It is 
recommended that the task force examine timing considerations of the sign approval 
process as part of the focus group process. 
 
Only 25% indicated they were happy with the DRB Review, with 43% giving no 
response here. Of those indicating they did have to go through the DRB, 32% found the 
experience “poor” or “very poor,” indicating that it took too long. 
 
Finally, staff response time received the highest rating of “satisfactory” or 
“excellent” at more than 51%, with 18% not responding and 31% ranking their 
experience as “poor” or “very poor.” 
 
This section indicates there are several customer focus areas that can be improved, which 
can include both the time the process takes, and staff education and communication with 
the business community to help set expectations. 
 
 
Business Demographics 
Types of business (may not add up to 100% as not all businesses answered) 

• Health/Beauty  
• Nonprofit 
• General office/service 
• Banking/Financial 
• Medical office 
• Restaurant 
• Retail  



 5

Years in business 
• Less than 1 – 5 years:  51% 
• 6 – 20 years:  44% 

No. of employees 
• Less than 10:  36% 
• 1-25: 40% 
• 26-50:  10% 
• More than 50:  10% 

For a review of all responses, please refer to Appendix A. For a complete listing of all 
respondents open-ended comments, please refer to Appendix B. 

 

Conclusions 
As a first-time effort for online surveys, the sign survey provided opportunities to explore 
several key areas with respect to the sign code review. This complex project will have 
many facets and it will be important to consider all concerns as the Town moves forward.  
The survey looked at several key areas that, according to the November 18, 2009 Council 
Communication, will play a large role in the task force review and recommendations. 
With that in mind, the following conclusions should be considered as the task force 
moves forward: 
 

• There is universal agreement from both groups that signage is important to 
them, both to identify a business and for a business’ marketing plan. This 
is important as it demonstrates there is strong support for signs—and thus, 
room for community conversation. 

 
• There is opportunity for compromise on the hours of illumination for 

commercial signs as indicated in both groups’ willingness to consider a 10 
p.m. cut off.  

 
• Although residents stated that signage was very important in locating a 

business, they did not support A-frame signs and rely more on size and 
lettering of signs. Business respondents, however, feel that A-frames are 
strong in driving customers. Focus groups to understand the divide on this 
matter should be part of the task force public participation process. 

 
• The business community indicated that there are several areas for 

improvement needed in both the process and service levels by Town staff 
and the DRB. This should be another area for focus groups to examine to 
asses the specific areas that can be improved. 

 
 
 
 



 6

Appendix A 
 
General Public Survey Results 
 

 

What resources do you rely on to help locate a business or service in 
Oro Valley? Select all that apply 

0 50 100 150 200 250

Business Navigator

Business Signage

Online / Internet Search 

Phonebook

Newspaper / Radio
Advertising

Word-of-Mouth

Other



 7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you use "Business Signage," the size and readability of a sign is important to you.

69%

21%

10%

TRUE

FALSE

No Answer

If you use "Business Signage," you look for 
familiar logos or company names.

74%

15%

11%

TRUE
FALSE
No Answer



 8

If you use "Business Signage," you often remember a business or 
service later after having seen an illuminated sign when driving by a 

business at night.

48%

43%

9%

TRUE
FALSE
No Answer

 

 
 

With respect to the use of illuminated signs, 
signs should be turned off:

15%

29%

21%

12%

22%

1%

One hour after the close of business

At the close of business.

By 10 p.m.

By midnight.

I am ok with illuminated signs being lit all
night.

I don't have an opinion of illuminated
signs in Oro Valley.



 9

With respect to business identification, please select the following 
answers that best fit your opinion. Select all that apply.

0 50 100 150 200 250

I identify a business that uses
freestanding monument

signs.

I like the use of A-
frame/Sandwich board signs

I think A-frame signs present
a potential safety hazard

I do not like the use of A-
frame/Sandwich board signs

34%

54%

30%

35%

 
 
 



 10

 

 

Are you an Oro Valley resident?

91%

8% 1%

Yes
No
No response

Age Group

0% 6%

19%

40%

34%

1%

Younger than 21
21 - 34
35 - 49
50 - 65
Over 65
No Response



 11

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gender

55%

44%

1%

Male
Female
No Response



 12

Business Survey Results 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How do you promote your business location? Select all that apply 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Business signage

Advertising (Print, Radio, TV)

Direct Mail

Business Navigator

Internet

Phonebook

Other



 13

 
 
 
 
 
 

Please describe the type of signs you use to promote your business. 
Select all that apply.

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Monument signs

Illuminated signs

Building sign/lettering

Banners



 14

Size of my sign...

45%

46%

9%

I am satisfied with the size of my
sign
I think the size of my building
sign is too small
No response

 
 
 
 
 

With respect to banner signs, please select the following answers that best fit 
your opinion. Select all that apply.

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

I believe the size of the
banners is too restrictive.

I would like to use banners to
promote my business.

Current regulations for
commercial promotion are

adequate.

I have never used a banner
for my business.

 



 15

 
 
 
 

With respect to mounted illumination signs, please select the following answers 
that best fit your opinion. Select all that apply.

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Should be off 1 hour after
close of business.

Should be turned off at close
of business.

Should be turned off by 10
p.m.

Should be turned off by
midnight.

I am ok with illuminated signs
being lit all night.

I believe illuminated signs
interfere with the night sky.

I have no opinion of signs in
Oro Valley.

1%

6%

44%

21%

24%

6%

4%

 
 
 
 
 



 16

With respect to A-frame/Sandwich Board signs, please select the following 
answers that best fit your opinion. Select all that apply.

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

I would like to place an A-
frame sign in front of my

business.

I would like to place an A-
frame sign by the road.

I dislike the use of A-frame
signs.

I think A-frame signs present
a potential safety hazard .

 
 
 
 
 

In meeting the Town’s sign ordinances, please describe your experience with 
the following processes

21%

31%

31%

4%

3%

10%

Very Poor
Poor
Satisfactory
Very Good
Excellent
No response

 



 17

 
 
 
 

Review & approval timing:

15%

37%28%

3%

4%

13%

Very Poor
Poor
Satisfactory
Very Good
Excellent
No response

 
 
 
 
 



 18

DRB Review (where applicable):

14%

18%

24%
0%

1%

43%

Very Poor
Poor
Satisfactory
Very Good
Excellent
No response

 
 
 
 
 

Staff Response Time

10%

21%

39%

6%

6%

18% Very Poor
Poor
Satisfactory
Very Good
Excellent
No response

 



 19

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Type of Business

32%

7%

8%
14%

13%

1%

5%

20%

Retail

Restaurant
Medical office

Banking/Financial
General office/service

Nonprofit
Health/Beauty
Other



 20

Years in business in Oro Valley

12%

39%

10%

23%

12%

4%

Less than 1
1 to 5
6 to 10
11 to 20
More than 20
No response

 
 
 
 
 

Number of employees:

36%

40%

10%

10%

4%

Less than 10
10 to 25
26 to 50
More than 50
No response

 



 21

Appendix B 
 

Business Sign Survey 
Residential Open Ended Comments 
 

Please feel free to add any additional comments regarding Oro Valley’s sign 
codes. 

  
I believe that the only lighting needed after dark should be for safety and security 
purposes. Billboards should not be illuminated when the store is closed. 
 
A-frame sandwich board advertisements look tacky. I am leery of any business that 
relies on them. 
 
Another issue that bothers me is the use of outdoor music in the Oro Valley Marketplace 
parking lots. I believe there should be no music of any kind in a parking lot--it's just an 
annoyance. 
   
The dark sky in Oro Valley is so important and beautiful.  Having recently viewed the 
night sky at Kitt Peak, I see how our dark sky has changed with more lights over the last 
8 years. 
 
The current sign codes are reasonable. 
 
I liked the business signs much better when they were the copper patina finish or green. 
I thought Oro Valley had a nice clean look. I have considered not shopping at the stores 
that are changing their sign colors from the classy copper patina or green. 
 
Important factors to me are the night sky and energy use. Generally, if everyone is using 
smaller signage it is easy to read and identify a business.  Bright, large signs are not 
necessary to identify a business.  In general, fewer signs are better. 
  
Bad enough this community permitted the construction of the Oro Valley Marketplace 
right opposite a State Park, are we now going to permit such commercial interests to 
light it up like Times Square in New York?  Besides, their arguments for justifying such 
lighting needs are tranparently (sic) spurious. 
  
The low light pollution (dark sky) portion of the sign & light ordinance should be 
strengthened. There is no reason why sign & parking lot lights should be directed  
anywhere but down. The park district lights light up miles of otherwise dark areas and a 
few sign lights make no impact on dark skies. Think about shielding these VERY bright, 
nightly park district lights so that the light emitted is aimed DOWN! At present they are 
NOT. 
  
  
The baseball field lights (Oro Valley Park Dist.) actually light up the face of the Pusch 
Ridge they are so bright. I don't worry about a few store lights, especially when they are 
in a brightly lit shopping center. 



 22

  
The sign code is just fine the way it is. The sky is already to bright from all the parks and 
schools in the area.  Do not add more light by all night signs. If some businesses had 
their way they would have rotating beacons and strobe lights.  
 
No, it's fine the way it is leave it alone. 
 
Moved here because of the dark skies. 
   
I don't want a Town Property tax. Help business make money and use the 2% sales tax 
to run the Town 
 
There are too many lights in our beautiful valley. Turn them off!!  I would like to stricter 
rules from the Town for business lighting signs. Most of the businesses in the 
Marketplace don't even face Oracle, our main throughofare (sic). 
 
I see no good reason for any business to illuminate its signs after closing.  
 
We are amatuer astonomers (sic).  One of the factors that drew us to this area was the 
low light density which makes it possible to observe the marvelous (sic) night skies.   
 
Keep the lights low in Oro Valley! 
 
Why in the world would the town of Oro Valley want business not to have their sign lit up 
all night ???????? 
 
I'm sure some business owners would take advantage of 100 foot tall signs if they were 
allowed.  However they aren't because we (the city in general) have decided that they 
are not appropriate.  The fact that businesses now want to leave their signs on all night 
does not have any bearing on weather they should be allowed to. 
 
Two reasons I would like the illuminated signs to be turned off at the close of business 
are to signal they are closed for business for the day and no need to stop and 
unnecessary light pollution for viewing the stars and planets at night which is why we 
don't live closer to downtown. 
 
Signs should conform to surrounding area fixtures. 
  
Modest size, comfortable colors 
 
I find oro valley's current sign illumination regulations to be petty and ridiculous.  once 
again, oro valley is head over heels consumed in nonsense, while practicality and 
reasonability are not addressed.  case in point - the obtrusive, ugly, and unnecessary 
wall along oracle road; the unsightly side entrance to the new wingate inn (the entrance 
should have been located on the length of the building for a much better curb appeal 
image), WALMART, etc. 
 
Not a very good survey.  Lots of questions truly can not convey a useful answer 
  
Lights on after closing are a waste of energy and do not uphold our dark skies support.  
If lights are on, one would assume the business is open.  If lights are on and the 



 23

business is closed, it would encourage me NOT to do business with someone that 
wastes resources so lightly. 
  
We do not need now should we allow large numbers of garish sinage (sic) that destroys 
the character of our community and environment.  The town should control the size, 
color, and hours sinage (sic) is allowed.  Please do not relax he existing regulations. 
 
I like a neat and clean community with quality signs at a minimum level. 
 
I think the night skies are very important to Tucson and its observatories.  We really don't 
need to be blasted with lights from all angles. 
 
Keep the lights low please.  No more light pollution. 
  
I am concerned abot (sic) safety at night if the lights are dimmed - vagrants, young 
people, drug peddling and so on. 
  
I think the sinage (sic) is not the only problem that you might address.  Exterier (sic) 
lighting can be excessive like the Holiday Express as an example.   
 
There is a distinction to be made between being aware of a business, and trying to find it 
while driving.  I often have to go past the place I'm looking for because there isn't 
enough warning. 
  
Oro Valley's restrictive business sinage (sic) law hurts small business locating in our city. 
The new ACE hardware at 1st Ave. and Tangerine. is significantly handicapped by being 
forbidden to place a sign on either bordering street. Despite having been here for several 
months, many customers walk in today saying "I didn't know you were here" We should 
have policy's that encourage and support small business. The repressive sinage (sic) 
law has the opposite effect. Is this law in place to beautify our streets and thereby limit 
tax revenues and discourage businesses from locating here? 
 
Please limit the placement and size of signs to the smallest reasonable size.  It is 
wasteful, unnecessary and offensive to have lighted signs after dark if the business is 
closed. 
 
I do not believe a business needs a gigantic sign to identify their business. I feel a limit 
on size is needed but should not be too small to catch your eye while driving by. 
   
I just feel that any illumination after the business is closed is not in the best interest of 
the business or the customers.  Anyway, I don't shop by signs. 
 
Help business, I do not want a property tax 
  
I feel sorry for all of us because I see more and more businesses going out and that 
means less shopping resources available for residents of the area - and less city 
revenue from sales tax. This could result in a less safe city for everyone.  We need our 
local businesses and the stricter the city is with them the harder it will be to keep them 
here. 
 
The current sign code and outdoor lighting code are adequate as currently written. 



 24

 
Illuminated signs being on all night reminds us of where this particular business is.  A 
location being dark casts a gloomy atmosphere. 
  
Leaving the lights on after closing is a bad idea. I would not patronize a business that did 
so.  Also, signs should be subdued to minimize light pollution. Many businesses have an 
infatuated concept of themselves as reflected in garish signs that are inconsiderate of 
the interests of the larger community. Target comes immediately to mind. 
  
I am very concerned about light pollution. One of the reasons I live in this area is the 
ability to see the night sky. 
   
I am tired of the Town of Oro Valley dictating policies that don't benefit the residents who 
live there. You all seem to have your own agenda's . . . whether it's dogs barking (inside 
a house), business signage, or our youth skate boarding . . . it's ridiculous.  If the 
housing market were different, I would move out of this "Stepford" town immediately!!! 
   
I don't think A-frame signs would be needed if businesses were allowed to have 
monument signs that were larger and more visible 
   
When it comes to the monument signs I know that some people might not like the large 
tall signs, so why don't you mandate that all signs must be no taller that 6ft.  This way 
everything is the same hight (sic) and you don't have large signs all over the place. 
 
I think illuminated signs should match a uniform code that require low-voltage backlit 
signs like what the businesses at Vistoso Office Park use.  These signs are tasteful and 
subtle. 
 
I don't very often need to look at signs at night because I don't often go to unfamiliar 
locations at night. 
   
Oro Valey (sic) has bee (sic) over bearing with codes and controls. Both in the laws of 
zoning and an inability to make allowances for one time events or once a year events. 
Requiring signage to conform to one color is in sane. A logo is the most important 
symbol of a business. it's time for the town to back and allow some creativeness in to the 
air. 
 
Signage lighting after 10pm is unreasonable! The current OV  code should be enforced 
now. 
  
I identify by the signage on the business itself or in the case of a strip mall situation, the 
sign by the street listing the businesses in that complex. 
  
Oro Valley has already compromised being distinctive by allowing too many colors, 
styles and logos of business signage.  We were promised a classy town and it has 
become just another strip city with not even a scenic corridor.  No more compromises!!! 
  
when signs are illuminated that indicates the business is open 
  
We moved to Oro Valley because of the scenery, the people, and the fact that a new 
community MIGHT make a significant difference to the environment.  We admire the fact 



 25

that Tucson keeps its lights low to enable Kitts Peak to do scientific research.  We would 
be MOST unhappy to be a part of a community which does not value these things. 
  
There is no reason to have illuminated business signs lit after 10PM unless they are a 
24hr. business.  I think stargazing is an integral part of Arizona's appeal and quality of 
life. 
  
Stop putting so many artificial restrictions and onerous regulations and taxes on 
businesses. 
 
You are now seeing unintended consequences of the anti-business, anti-growth 
mentality exercised by the DRB, Zoning, Development Services and some Town Council 
members over the past few years. 
 
Signs for me pollute the environment. 
   
What is a "monument sign?" 
 
I like a few dim lights on at night, but only for a short time. The rest of the night should be 
lit by star and moonlight only. 
   
They should not be left on all night. Dark skies is why I moved to Oro Valley. 
Lighted signs at night are an eye sore and a pollutant to the beautiful Arizona evening 
skies. 
 
Please don't burn lights all night. The observatories don't want any more light at night. 
  
I'm an Astronomy buff and enjoy dark skies. With the growth of Oro Valley, our dark 
skies are slowing going. As in Tucson, I think we should restrain late night outdoor 
lighting especially after close of business hours. 
   
I think you should try to promote businesses in Oro Valley and not put barriers in the way 
for the business owners. 
 
Keep the night sky dark so we can enjoy its beaty (sic). 
   
Oro Valley seems to live up to its reputation of being a difficult place to do business. It's 
time the Town hired an independent firm to assess the areas where the Town can be 
more business friendly (signage, lighting, building codes come to mind). 
 
I appreciate signs that do not pollute the view.  i.e., I consider road signs that tell who is 
caring for a particular strip of road to be pollution in almost the same way as is garbage. 
 
I do not like signs that 'shout and scream' with their bright colors and size. 
  
I firmly believe that OV must recognize/promote substantial limits in total outdoor lighting 
in an effort to reduce light pollution of the night skies. There are at least two reasons for 
doing so: 
  1.  The dark sties economically impact this area for astrological study by U of A    Kitt 
Peak   etc.   
  2.  Night time skies are one of nature's most beautiful gifts - a sight long lost in most 



 26

urban areas. And a constant reminder of the vast universe surrounding us. I have lived 
in northern wilderness where the only night sky light interference comes from the Aurora 
Borealis. I am an astronomer, but we are appreciative of nature whether on the earth or 
above us.  Will OV work to protect or to allow further erosion of people's ability to 
observe the beauty of a clear night sky? 
  
I do not believe Oro Valley has been a business friendly town in the past.  Certainly 
requiring the businesses now to turn off their signage lighting by a certain time is not 
how to keep or attract more! 
   
I prefer to see uniform, size regulated signs. Towns that have them look uncluttered and 
one business isn't having to outdo the other in signage. 
   
Leaving your sign lit up all night when you are closed is not the best way to generate 
business. Having convenient hours will bring people in and having air-conditioning will 
keep them there. Too many businesses are closed Saturday-Sunday, the only time that 
working people have to get anything done. Others close early on Friday-Saturday, not 
giving their customers enough time to get there. Some never turn their A/C on. I've 
walked out of many establishments due to this problem. My sense is that they want to 
run their businesses for the least hours possible and save money by not running the A/C 
and then complain that they're not doing enough business. Then they want to solve the 
problem by leaving their signs illuminated all night instead of addressing the REAL 
problems of inconvenient hours and/or no air-conditioning. 
  
I often leave early in the morning to catch a 6 a.m. flight out of TIA, so I have an 
opportunity to drive through Oro Valley in the dark. There is virtually no traffic at this time 
of the morning, so there is no traffic or people to see illuminated signs if the signs are on 
all night. Likewise, the Oro Valley population being largely retirees and familes (sic) w/ 
children are not the cagories (sic) of people that are out and about late at night, like 
areas of Tucson that have nightlife/concert venues. To keep business signs on all night 
is not necessary, is a waste of energy, is a disturbance to nearby homes and IMO does 
nothing to promote a business purpose. I think lit signage until midnight is sufficient. 
  
Oro Valley's llighting codes should be strengthend to preserve the beauty of the night 
sky. I would not patronise businesses that cause light polution. (sic) 
  
I have lived in Oro Valley 7 years and drive downtown to work...normally down Oracle or 
La Canada...Soon I will be leaving while it is dark and returning when it is dark...to not 
have the ability to identify new businesses that open or find retail establishments that I 
now need but have not been recognized because I did have a need for that retail 
offering...is a negative for me and I would assume much more of a negative for new 
comers who filled our area after I moved here.  If we are not in a position to support our 
businesses by allowing them to market their products and services we will continue to 
perpetuate the lack of support in Oro Valley and will result in an area that does not have 
the necessary retail establishments to satisfy potential new residents...as well as current 
residents.  I truly enjoy the atmosphere of Oro Valley...however, we are not Santa 
Barbara, nor will we achieve that level of totally controlled environment...can we find a 
compromise that keeps our area growing...or worse case...stable. 
   
Signs being on after a business closes just makes me think they are open and I see no 
reason for them to be on once a business closes. 



 27

  
Keep lighting low,for clear skys (sic) 
I think the existing sign code needs to be revised to be more supportive of businesses. 
We need businesses in our community and should work to attrract (sic) them and reduce 
possible obstacles. 
   
Signs lit up at night do not attract more business. Residents are already aware of local 
businesses. We drive by every day and see them. We do not need to see them at night 
as well.  
 
Additionally, lights on and off are a great indication of business hours. 
   
"least intrusive" is still the proper description for signs in Oro Valley. 
   
SIgnage appears to be overly restrictive. I moved to Oro Valley 2+ years ago and 
occasionally still "discover" a business that I previously was unaware of due to not only 
very small freestanding signage, but also existing landscaping blocking signage. Why 
not allow larger freestanding and building signage rather than desperate business 
owners having to put up the A-Frame signs like you see by the poor guy that has the car 
wash behind the Target. He has a sign, but the colors blend together and its not 
noticeable. The OV Marketplace should be allowed signage on the back of buildings. 
How are commuters supposed to notice the stores, surely not the small signs at the 
entrance. Other examples are the tiny new gas signs at the Giant on Oracle/Pusch View, 
and the Loop Taste of Chicago has an ugly banner up with no freestanding sign. I'm all 
for more visibile (sic) signage as long as the signage is designed to match the buildings 
and primarily desert colors. We don't want to end up like the shopping center at the SEC 
of Thornydale and Cortaro that always has multiple banners attached to a steel railing 
near the intersection. That demonstrates that the businesses are hurting, most likely 
partly from the economy but poor signage obviously can't help their situation. Thank you. 
  
Signs are OK for a business until 10 PM. After that, night skies are more important. 
Comparatively few residents need to find businesses after 10PM. 
  
Encourage animated neon in business areas. It creates a sense of movement, 
aliveness. 
  
One of the many pleasant features of residing in Oro Valley is not being bombarded by 
signage.  I am not in favor of relaxing the current code. 
I have previously lived in Boca Raton which had strict guidelines (sic) for signs.  I think 
businesses should have the ability to have illuminated signs but I like the idea of having 
restrictions on size and height and please do restrict billboards to the Interstate as they 
are unsightly in a city. 
 
This town seems to do what it can to hamper businesses.  I've never seen a town 
operate like this one. 
 
I think businesses shouldn't be restricted when it comes to promoting their business. The 
more business done equals more income for Oro Valley. 
   



 28

Oro Valley needs to become more lenient when it comes to their signage rules. As an 
Oro Valley resident, I feel that signs not only illuminate our small town, but also help 
promote business, which is very important in this tough economy. 
  
Controlling light pollution in Oro Valley is important. Reaching a compromise situation 
where lighted signage is illuminated during business hours is a very reasonable 
approach. 
   
I moved back to Oro Valley (from Kansas) in part because of the beautiful night sky.  I 
have five sons, and we use our telescopes often.  I do NOT think signs should be left on 
after hours as it increases light pollution (sic)!  Thank you for taking this survey into 
account. 
  
The sign code needs to be realistic and permit plenty of advertising opportunity, 
especially in this economy, but even in better times.  Advertising and the convenience 
and efficiency provided by good signage allow the economy to function smoothly, which 
is what provides jobs, job growth, and tax revenue for the town. 
 
In reference to business lit signs if they are on the highway we don’t care if they are on 
all night... but residential neighborhoods they should be out by midnight 
  
Sometimes when driving through an existing strip mall or business area it is difficult to 
locate a business because of the signage only being on the front of a building.  It would 
be easier to see something jutting out of the building stating the name of the business.  
Perhaps not so much an A-frame, but something more stable.  Thanks. 
   
They should be made to be business friendly based on the input from Northern Pima 
Chamber members suggestions 
 
I support the sign guildlines (sic) per the Outdoor Lighting Code. I frequent the Oro 
Valley area. (non resident) 
 
Re Lights: As long as the lights are not shining in the windows of my house or lighting up 
my property at night, I don't care if the signs are lit all night. With today's economy, I 
realize that the companies are using the a-frame signs to attract customers...it's a 
difficult world for these businesses. While I don't care for them, I respect that these 
businesses need to use them to help stay in business. 
  
I feel leaving the lights on beyond business hours is a waste of our valuable energy and 
is a pollution to the sky. 
 
Signs at the large shopping center on Oracle would be nice to see who is in there while 
driving past 
   
It seems to me the code that requires that the sign be turned off one hour after closing 
isn't business freindly nor friendly (sic) to their clients. Much of what I see in Oro Valley is 
a controlled image that really wouldn't be offensive if left on until 10pm or later. The only 
reason to go past mid-night is if the business happens to be open beyond that hour such 
as a hospital or emergency care. It is easier to relate to signage than address numerals 
when looking for a distenation (sic). 
 



 29

I would like to see the signs conform to a prescribed size and color -enough to identify 
the business, but still in good taste and quiet. 
 
The on-premise signs are too small. I can't see the signs well from the road. The 
businees (sic) signs should also be lit at night in order for the public to see the signs. 
  
I feel midnight is a reasonable time for the illuminated signs to go off, unless the 
business is still open, then it should be one hour after closing. 
 
A-frame signs are ok at the store entrance, but not at the edge of the street. 
Business is really tough right now. The city should do everything it can to help these 
businesses get through these trying times. If that means having a sign on all night, then 
they should be allowd (sic) to do it. It also adds a safety factor to an otherwise dark area. 
 
I think your sign code ordianance (sic) is archaic and nonsensical. I also think that 
billboards should be allowed on main roads. If done right they don't hurt the beauty of an 
area. I want to know when Oro Valley is going to start acting like a real city(town) and 
stop living in the past like. Its almost 2010 for God's sake and the last I heard you need 
all the revenue/tax base you can get! 
   
Signage is important and needs to be obvious enough to be seen, without being 
overpowering or obnoxious. 
   
I am not a resident of Oro Valley but do spend significant amount of time transacting 
business within the Oro Valley city limits 
   
I think the illumination of signs at night is a waste of electricity and money for 
businesses. Production of electricity uses precious natural resources which are being 
wasted by illuminated signs of closed businesses. By turning off unused lights at home 
or work (or in this case signs) we can reduce the use of our natural resources. Also, it 
helps cut down on light pollution which cuts down on light pollution and allows another 
Arizona industry, Astronomy to thrive.   
Illuminated signs of closed businesses do nothing to attract people to the stores.  People 
that live in the area know where the businesses are and people not familiar with Oro 
Valley and are just passing through/visiting will not benefit from illuminated signs of 
CLOSED businesses, because they will not be able to purchase items or services from 
them.The A-frame signage is okay immediately in front of a business (if sidewalk width 
permits) but not 500 yards away on the side of the road. 
  
Businesses need signage to attract new customers, charge them make some revenue, 
allow them to have the signage they  feel necessary to get customers within reason...... 
  
We must maintain a dark sky policy, especially now as the town grows. I feel businesses 
for the most part think they are above it all. They will do just fine without all of the 
lighting, all night long.  
 
The present code should stand and be enforced. 
 
I love the requirement for copper patina signs. Much better than gaudy multicolored 
signs (Shame on Target for breaking this rule!!!) 



 30

 
I am LESS likely to patronize a business that creates an eyesore. 
  
I believe the excessive signage restrictions discourage many MUCH NEEDED 
prospective "quality" businesses (both large and small ) from establishing their operation 
in our community. 
 
Maybe use the Pima County code so that all businesses in the county have a level 
playing field in how they can identify and advertise their businesses. 
 
I have always found it very difficult to find a busniess (sic) in Oro Valley. Signage is very 
poor, hard to locate a business even when I have an address. Businesses should be 
allowed to advertise their business perhaps a standard on signage but large enough to 
be seen. 
 
Churches should also be forced to turn off their signs. All business should turn off/down 
their parking lot lights past a certain hour. 
  
The strength of Oro Valley is the beautiful view of the mountains and the great efforts 
made to support outdoor recreation.  Do not make Oracle Road in Oro Valley as ugly as 
Oracle Road near Tucson Mall. 
 
What prompted this sign change in the first place?  It was not bothersome for me to drive 
down La Canada or Oracle at night and see the lit up shopping centers.  This seems a 
big waste of everyone’s time - why try to fix something that was not broken? 
   
With respect to signs, I believe an organization would benifit (sic) from turning off signs 
after 10 p.m. (as long they are not still open) in that money spent and carbon footprint 
generated would both be reduced.   
 
If you look at signs where the light eminates (sic) from behind a non-lit front, they do not 
produce light pollution like neon signs and are more effective. I am thinking of church in 
town, either on La Canada, or Thornydale where the cross is not lit, but there are light 
behind it that throw light directly on to the building.  It is not obtrusive but very appealing 
and effective. 
 
Thanks 
 
Get off the backs of the businesses and let them prosper. 
  
I would be strongly against extending the time signs can be lit. 
  
A frames are fine, but only during business open hours and only in front of the business. 
The signs should be of a standard size so as not to block any traffic or sidewalks. 
  
what happened to uniformity? and the discrete sign color too many exceptions to the 
rule, especially to conglomerates with well paid legal team 
 
the lighting issue mainly involves all the parking lights left on, sign lighting is less 
invasive 
 



 31

I am happy to see Oro Valley accepting input regarding their sign code. I believe Oro 
Valley has not been business friendly and personally know several businesses that have 
either tried to open in Oro Valley or have heard the horror stories associated with 
opening a business in Oro Valley and chose not to. Relaxing the sign code would be a 
step in the right direction. Businesses need advertising and signage plays a very 
important role. Thank you. 
  
I have been following this big hoopla and I think it's obsurd (sic), how can a business 
drum up business if you can't see what a store is? Signs have to be illuminated in order 
for people to know the business is there. Oro Valley is a very dark town at night ! Stores 
are going under left and right and they need all the help they can get ! 
 
I think "dark skies" are very important to Arizona. I am proud to be a part of and suporter 
(sic) of our Astronomy industry/organizations. I just returned from the east coast and was 
amaized (sic) at the limited view of the stars. 
  
I think Oro Valley has cut their throat on this issue and the throat of the business owners. 
Why do we have a theater with no marquee or sign showing it is a theater till you are 
right up front. If we are going to have these places they should be able to excel. You tell 
me...if you were to drive by the wal-mart center on Tangerine or Oracle not knowing 
what was there would you be able to tell without driving into the center. We wanted that 
center and then tie their hands. I drive by every day and it would be nice to know what is 
playing at the theater if it is going to be there. But for how long? 
 
Business signs illuminted (sic) past 9 pm is too late, unless the business is open. I would 
prefer all off by 8 pm unless the business is still open, then off 1/2 hour past closing. 10 
pm is entirely unacceptable.  When my family and I drive at night, we are not out 
sighnteseeing (sic); in fact, we would prefer that there be fewer distracting lights off the 
sides of the road. 
 
Regarding A-frame signs, they should only be allowed for special events, limited to 5 
days per month per business/entity. 
  
I REALLY prefer a uniform, unobtrusive set of signs for the businesses in Oro Valley.  I 
feel this is what gives Oro Valley it's unique look and feel, compared to the rest of 
Tucson (or most other Arizona towns, for that matter). 
  
Oro Valley, as a town, needs to realize that business owners need to have signs that will 
draw in customers.  Leaving a sign lit up a night is not a problem and will only help the 
business. 
   
Yard Sale signs on weekends are the only free standing I use and I like that they come 
down after that day. 
 
I love the signage at the shopping plaza at 1st and Oracle.  Please don't let Oro Valley 
become like Tucson with lots of gaudy ugly signs... 
 
No illuminated signs please.  We enjoy dark skies in Oro Valley for Astonomy (sic) 
purposes. 
  



 32

 I am very much for the idea of restricting sign size and turning illuminated signs off if the 
business is closed. The size of a sign not actually on the building of the business itself 
should correspond to how far that sign sits off the roadway for a "reasonable" person to 
see and identify where that business is. As far as a sign on a building itself, I believe it 
should be proportionate to the size of actual business. A small 800 sq. ft. shop should 
not be allowed to have the same size sign as say a large grocery store chain, etc. As I 
said before, I also am an advocate of reducing light pollution thus forcing businesses to 
turn off their lights after they close. Not only is this good energy saving practice,(I credit 
myself with convincing AMC to shut the billboard and other bright lights off at their 
Catalina Theater at Campbell and Grant in Tucson, which they had left on all hours of 
the night even after it was shuttered for good) but it also lets citizens enjoy the "peace" 
and tranquility of looking at the stars, etc. and provides preservation to the reason many 
move to Oro Valley (for the "darkness" in the first place.)  Obviously, safety and security 
need to be addressed and some leeway allowed such as street and security lights, but 
this is another issue. Lights should be on to allow customers to see where the business 
is located. Lights should not be for solely for advertising at all hours of darkness. If a 
business is closed, then the light should be off. If anything, this also saves a potential 
customers time by showing them that if the light is off, the business is closed and there 
is no need to try and drive into the plaza or otherwise make an attempt at trying to go 
into that business. If the light is on all the time, but the business is actually closed at a 
certain time, such as at a fast food restaurant that IS NOT open all night, then many 
potential patrons may approach the restaurant even though it is closed and waste their 
time. Thanks for reading my input. 
 
We are losing the night sky. Please keep the lights down. Once we give up the 
darkness, it is hard to get it back. Our clear night skies are a treasure. Please help 
preserve them. 
 
All businesses in our community need to be in compliance with our lighting ordinace (sic) 
as it pertains to the light pollution (sic) and our long standing astronomy interests. This 
has been good for our tourism businesses too.  I feel there is a happy medium for 
business to have the proper lighting for safety and continued advertising without being 
over powering. There is a wonderful local/international organization in town called 
International Dark Sky Assn that works on this issue and they should be consulted! 
 
We need additional businesses in our community and businesses must be able to 
identify themselves and be found. 
 



 33

I don't really understand the monument-A-frame question. I want signs that are clear and 
easy to read, if they are illuminated I assume the business is open. A- frames are okay 
for shops that are tucked away, but should only be out when business is open. Signs 
should be tasteful, in keeping with an upscale community. I don't want tons of 
neon/illuminated signs that spoil views and hinder viewing the night sky. Logos are okay 
because of immediate identification. No Vegas-like strips, please!!! 
   
Please preserve our Arizona dark sky. 
  
AZ House Bill Title 49 (See Chapter 7) 
 
http://www.darksky.org 
  
Why would you need a sign if the business is closed. 
 
We do not need any further distraction at night when driving. I only want to know where 
a business is during opening hours. 
  
Our town is famous for being "dark" lets keep it that way. 
   
All business signs should be off by 9pm unless the business is still open. 
  
I find that inadequate sized/no numbers on businesses are the biggest frustration I have 
in locating a business especially the office buildings. I feel that brightly lighted as well as 
large signage is offensive and a threat to our dark skies. I have previously called the city 
offices to complain about the bright lights on the signs at the storage center on North 
Oracle. Lights on at night will never have an influence as to whether I would patronize it 
during the day. 
  
I think that it is a great idea to take this survey. Thank you 
 
While traveling in the northeast,I was pleasantly surprised at the lack of signage along 
highways, such as billboards. It was VERY pleasing to the eye. We MUST not cave in to 
business interests and allow signage to run rampant. I think the argument is very poor 
that business owners rely on drive-by business and therefore need sgns (sic) to be big, 
and illuminated all night.  We have WAY too many signs along the road.   
 
Talk about a need for inclusion in a distraction while driving law: is it worse to talk on a 
cell phone while driving, or to read all of the signage along a roadway? 
We must do a better job of uning (sic) less electricity 
   
The lighted sigs at night are a waste of energy and a distraction. Turn them off when the 
business is closed. Also, Fry's (new) RED sign on Oracle Road is ugly too! 
   
I live north of Oro Valley and drive through Oro Valley every day. I do a lot of shopping in 
Oro Valley, especially along the Oracle corridor near First Avenue and in Oro Valley 
Marketplace. The signage that has been allowed, per the Town's signage code, is limited 
and tasteful, so I see no reason to force businesses to turn off their lights at night if they 
don't want to. (nonresident) 
 



 34

I feel that signs should either be turned off 1 hour after a business closes or by 10pm.  
Keeping signs on all night is a waste of energy and light pollution for our night skies.  
Also, if I see a sign on, it leads me to believe that the business is open. 
 
Oro Valley should really get rid of the green signs only rule! It is very difficult to 
distinquish and see different businesses. Shopping centers look bland and boring with all 
green signs everywhere too. 
 
Business need to be able to keep their signs on as they see fit. 
 
If the Town imposes a time deadline for businesses, why not tell homeowners to turn 
their outside lights off, too? This is a bad idea. Let businesses keep thier (sic) lights on 
all night.  They are paying for it. 
 
The above-"business signage" questions appear to "fish" for an answer to support an 
agenda. Wouldn't it have been more neutral to have those questions multiple choice like 
the others? 
   
I believe the lights should be off after a business closes, for the courtesy of surrounding 
(sic) residents and for the observatorys (sic) and the natural beauty of the stars. 
 
I do not understand why it's necessary to have the lights on after 10 pm. In this economy 
isn't it better to save on the electricity? 
   
Sandwich boards are ok if they are professionally done and kept in good condition. Do 
not like hand painted, messy signs or ones that look like they've been through many 
seasons without being cleaned up. 
  
I do not like bright lights - they are very distracting while driving and they ruin the 
beautiful night skies that we have. Please continue to limit the amount of light that we 
are projecting into our skies. 
  
no signs extending out from a building, no neon lights, no flags other than AZ and US 
and those should be limited in size and height 
 
Keep them small. Size does NOT matter. They just show you where to park and what 
door to go into. Being able to see the stars at night is a real showoff blessing for OV 
residents to our visitors. When its gone its gone forever. 
The unobtrusiveness of signs is a "quality of life" feature of Oro Valley that should be 
maintained. Moreover, our "dark sky" should be maintained. 
The current signage code is fine. In keeping with the need for dark skies in this part of 
AZ, it is important to minimize light usage after sunset. 
 
It's pretty simple to me. The businesses came to Town knowing what the sign code was 
(or should have). They should comply.  
 
I moved to Oro Valley because Oracle (and La Canada and Rho V Blvd) is not like 
Speedway and in my humble opinion it should remain that way. 
 
If a business is counting on someone driving by at 2am seeing a sign and returning at 
some later date for customers....maybe they should reconsider their business model. 



 35

p.s. - I happen to live fairly close to Oracle and drive through the Rooney Ranch/Steam 
Pump area all the time. I think the low key (compared to south Oracle Rd) look they have 
is definitely preferential. 
   
Do not use signage except to locate the specific location of a business after I have made 
a decision to use their services / never see a sign and decide spur of the moment to visit 
the business. 
 
Would prefer 1 hour after closing or  midnight, whichever is the earliest time 
 
Size of sign and design must be regulated. Lighted sign illimunation (sic) output must be 
controlled (sic). OV does not need light pollution 
 
All Business signage should be backlit. A great example is Home Depot, Fry's, Target, 
and Office Max on Oracle and First Ave. 
 
The business signage at Tangerine Crossing should have never been allowed to fully 
illuminate their signs. 
  
I want to continue enjoying the Dark night skys (sic) and the stars. 
   
Oro Valley in my opinion is very business unfriendly.  The cry is support the local 
business but the Town is so restrictive concerning business needs, I would understand 
why businesses wish not to open in OV. 
 
I do not believe anyone who is out driving after 10pm is looking at business signs saying 
oh now I know where they are, let me drive in and check businees (sic) hours.  do not 
believe lighting except for security purposes is needed after 10pm. 
 
As bad as the economy is currently, the Government should NOT stifle anything a 
business can do to bring patrons into their shops. I enjoy seeing business signs at night.  
When I am out to dinner or visiting friends, these signs stand out more and help me to 
locate business locations in the daylight. The entrepreneur spirit, that these businesses 
project, is comforting in these troubled economic times.  As an Oro Valley Resident, I 
want new businesses to feel welcome to set up shop here and bring their profitable / 
taxable wares to our community. 
 
In these difficult times, I think the rules should be relaxed to make the businesses 
survive. It's tough enough without overegulation to make it. 
 
I like the idea that Oro Valley complies with the dark sky program. 
 
My only concern would be interference with star gazing. Could these lights be low level 
or covered on top to prevent a lite sky? I don't want this to be a burden to the business 
community-I use lite (sic) signs and like them 
 
They should be off after business hours.  Why waste electricity, and why lighten up our 
beautiful, starry skies. 
 
All signs should meet the codes that all previous businesses had to meet. 
   



 36

I think the current code is sufficient and allowing any larger signs will pollute the night 
sky. 
 
Oro Valley is scaring businesses from establishing here. It is absurd to keep restricting 
signage when the residences are far away from the areas where businesses are 
established. 
 
I like to support small business in Oro Valley and when I think about how I shop and 
identify shopping locations, I will often see a sign when I'm going to a restaurant at night 
and say to myself  "oh, next time I need a postal store, here is one close to me". 
 
All signs should be off unless the business is still open.  
 
A-frame signs should not be used for daily signage; but instead limited to special 
occasions. 
 
If Signs are only limited to a height then they need to be visable (sic) from the streets 
with no obstruction.  Or if there are multiple business at a location like a plaza then all 
the names can be posted on 1 taller sign. 
Signs - - THE SPEECH OF THE STREET 
 
WE MUST BECOME MORE OF A BUSINESS FRIENDLY COMMUNITY. PEOPLE 
SEEM TO BE CONCERNED ABOUT PROPETRY TAXES. IF OUR BUINESSES DO 
NOT SUCCEWED (sic), WE WILL BE FACED WITH THE TAX SITUATION MUCH 
EARLIER. 
1.  Need to limit illumination level when it can be seen from residences. 
2.  Need to make an exception to allow rotating Barber Poles 
3.  Subdivisions should be allowed to have signage at ALL entrances. 
 
Over use of to many signs would not be my suggestion. 
 
Signs should be illuminated during business hours even if that exceeds the time of 
midnight. I think it is important for our city's economy, that the businesses are properly 
advertised with their signs at night because very often, a person is driving at night when 
it is dark, notices a sign for a business they were unaware was located there, and will 
end up going there another day. 
 
Why have a code if it's being enforced? 
  
We have enough economic headaches without depriving business of advertising their 
businesses with signs the Town required them to spend a bundle on in the first place. 
Let's get real! 
 
Oro Valley has established sign codes and we are in favor of enforcing them. We don't 
see a reason to change or relax a code every time somebody has an objection.  
 
Ok, to relax for a temporary time frame if the need is urgent or in an emergency. 
  
  



 37

Business Sign Survey 
Business Open Ended Comments 
 
 

Comments regarding types of signs used 
 We do not use signs of any sort 
 Monument signage is entirely too small to be effective 
 The sign is small, the amount of light generated is small 
 We share a lighted monument sign with other tenants. We NEED the illuminated 

sign over our door on the side of the building so our clients can find our office in 
the evening. We also use a "for sale" in front of each of our properties for sale. 

 I have independent contractors and set hours so am confused as to not having 
any set time to have my signs shut off. Almost afraid to have my ten thousand 
dollars signs burning at all. 

 I have put a table in front of my center to promote foot-traffic from nearby 
businesses and provide info to potential families 

 Color and size are too restrictive 
 open house /model open signs 
 Temporary A Frame Signs 
 None. Signs are an eye sore. 
 My proposal is to set a time of 2 am.This will allow those leaving bars or other 

late night venues to have signs and should cover all bases 
 Our signs are real estate marketing signs 

 
Comments regarding size of signs 

 Oro Valley is entirely too restrictive on size of signs - its like you want to put us 
out of busiess (sic) which will result in lower city revenue! 

 We are in the back row of the shopping center, our sign is hardly visible. We 
need walk-in business, as it is part of our business model---but we aren't allowed 
to use banners or A-frames, all we have is a tiny sign 

 Used to not having any set time to have my signs shut off 
 The color of my sign is NOT the branding color of Huntingon Learning Center, I 

was told that I was NOT allowed to use the branding color. 
 I think the size limitations are too small and installation of signage should not be 

encumbered with a design review board process 
 Lack of Monument availabiltiy (sic) is hurting traffic 
 It would be nice for people to see me easily from the road and not be confused 

when trying to find a business 
 Sinage is another form of free speach! (sic) Business pay for or lease a building, 

they should be able to use any size sign they need or want. No one stops others 
in making the biggest burger, or cookie or whatever. 

  
 
 



 38

Comments regarding banner signage 
 We do special promotions, and cannot advertise them to people who drive by 
 The limitations to the number of times per year is too restrictive 
 I think banner signs should require approval for size, color and duration of being 

posted 
 Business should be allowed to use banners without restrictions to promote their 

business and products 
 We typically only use banners during construction to indicate 

 
Comments regarding application and fees 

 We applied to update our signage and should have been given information on 
the new code before we completed the application.  We were never given the 
information other than when we build the bldg 4 years ago.  Codes have changed 

 Do not use Signs for our business 
 Difficult to navigate the system--at this time I would not recommend Oro Valley 

as a site to another business owner 
 Process takes much too long 
 Back in 2000 it was a very trying experince 
 Too much money for zero input 
 The fees seem expensive compared to other cities. 
 $1000 annual A Frame Sign Permit is criminal 
 Overly stringent on specific materials that are very costly 
 We find that our costs of doing business in OV the most costly of any of the cities 

we work in 
 I am not the one that submits the applications so I am unaware how they 

compare 
 
Comments regarding review and approval 

 Process takes much too long 
 Anything can be done if "extra" fees are paid to push it through the system 
 Very cumbersome 
 Not sure how it is possible but it actually takes more time in OV than in the City of 

Tucson which is hard to believe because they are not very quick. 
 I am not the one that submits the applications so i am unaware how they 

compare 



 39

 
 
Comments regarding DRB Review 

 Process takes much too long 
 They very seldom like anything the first time 
 The process takes too long and staff does not do a very good job of advising 

people both how long the process is going to take and the steps needed to get 
there 

 Attitude that they don't want business to suceed-no help 
 I am not the one that submits the applications so i am unaware how they 

compare 
 Our biggest issue with Oro Valley is the requirements pertaining to color and 

materials. Our business depends on our Identity and recognition by our clients 
Signage can be controlled and done tastefully while maintaining identity 

  
Comments regarding staff response time to businesses regarding signage 

 The overall philosophy in Oro Valley is obstructionist rather than promoting 
businesses that provide both the employment and revenue stream that underpin 
the economic stability of the Town 

 Too bad they are not in charge 
 They can sometimes be slow 
 I have left 3 messages and have yet to receive a call back regarding A-Frames 
 It depends on the day and project but overall it is cumbersome 
 I am not the one that submits the applications so I am unaware how they 

compare 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	Item00_a  DIS Customer Feedback Forms
	Item00_a_Att1_DIS Customer Feedback Forms
	Item00_b  Staff Recognition Letters
	Item00_b_Att1_Staff Recognition Letters
	Item00_c  Magistrate Court Report - October 1, 2010
	Item00_c_Att1_Magistrate Court Report
	Item00_c_Att2_Case Filings
	Item00_d  Tobin Sidles Recognition Email
	Item00_d_Att1_Tobin Sidles Recognition Email
	Item00_a  Plaques of Appreciation to Dan Toth and Bob Harris for service on Finance & Bond Committee
	Item00_a_Att1_Dan Toth
	Item00_a_Att2_Bob Harris
	Item00_b  Presentation of AEP Award to Brian Garrity, Procurement Administrator
	Item00_c  PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES TO GRADUATES OF THE COMMUNITY ACADEMY
	Item00_c_Att1_Attachment A - Graduate List
	Item01_A_aitem
	Item01_A_Att1_9 22 10 Minutes
	Item01_A_Att2_10 06 10 Minutes
	Item01_B  Development & Infrastructure Services, Permitting Division September 2010 Reports
	Item01_B_Att1_Activity Report
	Item01_B_Att2_Customer Chart
	Item01_B_Att3_Permit Activity
	Item01_B_Att4_Plan Review Chart
	Item01_B_Att5_Inspection Activity
	Item01_B_Att6_Revenue chart
	Item01_C  Economic Development Division Quarterly Report_ July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010
	Item01_C_Att1_Economic Development Division Quarterly Report from July - September 2010
	Item01_C_Att2_New Local Business Report from July - September 2010
	Item01_D  Fiscal Year 2010_11 Financial Update through September 2010
	Item01_D_Att1_Attachment A - Summary
	Item01_D_Att2_Attachment B - Gen Fund
	Item01_D_Att3_Attachment C - HW Fund
	Item01_D_Att4_Attachment D - Bed Tax Fund
	Item01_D_Att5_Attachment E - Transit Fund
	Item01_D_Att6_Attachment F - Dashboard
	Item01_E  September 2010 Stats
	Item01_E_Att1_September 2010 Stats
	Total # of Calls.pdf
	Sheet1

	2010-09.pdf
	Sheet1


	Item01_F  Quarterly Prcourement Report
	Item01_F_Att1_Q3 2010 Report
	Awarded Contracts _ Month 2010
	Awarded Contracts _ Month 2011
	Current Solicitations 2011

	Item01_G  Metropolitan Tucson Convention and Visitors Bureau Quarterly Report_ July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010
	Item01_G_Att1_FY2010-11 MTCVB FPA
	Item01_G_Att2_MTCVB First Quarter Report
	Item01_H  Public Safety Providers Quarterly Report to Council
	Item01_H_Att1_Public Safety Providers Quarterly Report
	Item01_I  Resolution No. (R) 10 - 79, Amendment to the Intergovemental Master Agreement between Pima County and the Town for Joint Use of Facility Space
	Item01_I_Att1_Resolution 10-79
	Item01_I_Att2_Exhibit 'A'
	Item01_I_Att3_Exhibit 'B'
	Item01_I_Att4_Statement and Scope of Work
	SBizhub_C3610092414540[1]
	PCWIN SSA OVPD - SSA Amendment 01 rev 1 081310
	Oro Valley PD SOW 2010_09_15

	Item01_J  Resolution No. (R) 10 - 80, An IGA Between the Governor_s Office of Economic Recovery and the Town Under the Public Safety Stabilization Program
	Item01_J_Att1_Resolution 10-80
	Item01_J_Att2_Exhibit 'A_
	Item01_K  Personnel Policies _25 and _27 - ABOVE Advisory Group and Annual Employee Forum
	Item01_K_Att1_Resolution 10-81
	Item01_K_Att2_Personnel Policy _25
	POLICY 25 ADVISORY BOARD FOR ORO VALLEY EMPLOYEES

	Item01_K_Att3_Personnel Policy 27
	POLICY 27 ANNUAL EMPLOYEE FORUM

	Item01_K_Att4_DRAFT AD 33
	Item01_L  Approval of 2011 Regular Town Council Meeting Schedule
	Item01_L_Att1_2011 Regular Council Meeting Schedule
	Item01_M  OV1203-31F
	Item01_M_Att1_Exhibit A
	Item01_M_Att2_Request Letter
	Item01_M_Att3_Final Plat 
	Item01_N  Reappointment of Mr. C. Kent Russell to Municipal Property Corporation Board of Directors
	Item01_2  Ordinance No. (O) 10 - 14, Amending Oro Valley Town Code, Chapter 15, Water Code, Article 24, Stormwater, Subsection 15-24-13(K)
	Item01_2_Att1_Ordinance 10-14
	15-24-13 Stormwater Utility Fee System
	. . .

	Item01_3  PUBLIC HEARING - RESOLUTION NO. (R) 10 - 82, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING INCREASES IN WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE WATER UTILITY
	Item01_3_Att1_R 10-82 Water Rate Increase w_ Exhibit A
	Item01_3_Att2_Correspondence on Increase
	Item01_3_Att3_Schedule
	Item01_4  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Formal Position on Development of Proposed Rosemont Mine
	Item01_4_Att1_Attachment A-Reso (R)07-55
	Item01_4_Att2_Attachment B-4-18-07 Packet Materials
	Item01_5  Public Art
	Item01_5_Att1_Public Art Code
	Item01_5_Att2_2-24-10 Communication
	Item01_5_Att3_Minutes 2-24-10
	Item01_5_Att4_5-12-10 Communication
	Item01_5_Att5_Minutes 5-12-10
	Item01_6  DISCUSSION REGARDING SIGN CODE TASK FORCE RECOMMENDATIONS RELATED TO TEMPORARY SIGNS
	Item01_6_Att1_Sign Code Task Force Recommendations - Temporary Signs
	Item01_6_Att2_Temporary Signs Summary Table
	Item01_6_Att3_Sign Code marked-up version
	Item01_6_Att4_Oro Valley Commercial Sign Survey



